
SELECT BOARD MEETING 
Tuesday, January 21, 2025 

7:00 pm 
Nowak Room, Town Offices 

10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING BEGINS AT 7:00 PM 

Meetings can be watched on Ch 22 or Ch 6 or YouTube. Attendees can join in person or virtually via Zoom. 

To access the meet ing, click this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83535864618 

To access the meeting via telephone, call : +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 835 3586 4618 

Please join the meeting with you r fu ll name if you want to speak. 

Use the "Ra ise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press * 9. 

More instructions for how to access the meeting can be found here: 
https ://www. exetern h .gov /town manager /vi rtua 1-town-meeti ngs 

Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues. 

AGENDA 

1. Call Meeting to Order 

2. Public Comment 

3. Approval of Minutes 

a. Regular Meeting: January 13, 2025 

4. Appointments/Resignations 

5. Discussion/Action Items 

a. Public Hearing: FY 25 Budget and Bonds 

6. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits & Exemptions 

7. Permits & Approvals 

8. Town Manager's Report 

9. Select Board Committee Reports 

10. Correspondence 

11. Review Board Calendar 

12. Non-Public Session 

13. Adjournment 

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 

Select Board 

Posted 1/17 / 25 Town Office, Town Website 



Persons may request an accommodation for a disabling condition in order to attend this 

meeting. It is asked that such requests be made with 72 hours notice. 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE 



Approval of Minutes 



1. Call Meeting to Order 

Select Board Meeting 
Monday January 13, 2025 

6:00 PM 
Nowak Room, Town Offices 

Draft Minutes 

Members present: Chair Niko Papakonstantis, Vice-Chair Molly Cowan, Clerk Julie Gilman, Dan 
Chartrand, Nancy Belanger, Town Manager Russ Dean, Assistant Town Manager Melissa Roy, 
and Finance Director Corey Stevens were present at this meeting. The meeting was called to 
order by Mr. Papakonstantis at 6 PM. 

2. Non Public Session 
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to enter into non-public session under RSA 91-A3:ll(a) and (I). 
Ms. Gilman seconded. In a roll call vote, the motion passed 5-0, and the meeting went into non
public at 6 PM. 

The Board reconvened in the Nowak Room at 7:05 PM. 

3. Bid Award 
a. 2025 Chemical Bid Award 

Mr. Papakonstantis said Mr. Dalton of the Water and Sewer Department 
has made recommendations on the bid awards. 

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to award bid item 1, Sodium Hypochlorite, to·Univar Solutions in 
Morrisville PA at $2.0310 per gallon; to award bid item 2, Activated Carbon, to Carbon Activated 
Corporation in Compton CA at $1.3500 per pound; to award bid item 3, Potassium 
Permanganate, to Shannon Chemical Corporation of Malvern PA at $2.33 per pound; and to 
award bid item 4, Sodium Hydroxide, to Borden & Remington of Fall River MA at $1.4510 per 
gallon. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 5-0. 

4. Public Comment 
a. There was no public comment at this time. 

5. Proclamations/Recognitions 
a. There were no proclamations/recognitions. 

6. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Meeting: January 6, 2025 

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the Select Board meeting minutes of January 6, 
2025, as presented. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 5-0. 

7. Appointments 
a. There were no appointments made at this meeting. 

1 



8. Discussion/Action Items 
a. Collective Bargaining Cost Items 

Mr. Dean said we reached an agreement with three of our unions. The 
ratification vote for one of them is scheduled for tomorrow. There is a cost 
agreement in the packet. The SEIU Local agreement for Public Works and 
Water/Sewer employees comes out of the General Fund at $73,451 and from the 
Water/Sewer Fund at $68,068 in the first year of the 3 year agreement. That total 
of $138,519 is needed to fund the first year over and above the current wage 
levels. The Police are represented by the Teamsters, and will be funded at 
$133,009 in the first year of the 3 year agreement. They are voting tomorrow to 
ratify the agreement. We checked with Legal and that order of operations is ok. 
In the Fire Department, the first year is funded at $158,248. 

Mr. Papakonstantis said FY26 is a full year of funding, which is a 
substantial increase. Mr. Stevens said the first year is front-loaded with increases 
to get them up to market rate. The first year is only July - December. In the 
second year, we see the second half of the front-loading. In year 3, it's dropping 
down to a 4% increase. 

Mr. Papakonstantis asked if we are moving away from staggering the 
agreements. Mr. Dean said yes, each union asked for a 3 year agreement so 
they're on the same cycle. 

Mr. Papakonstantis said these increases reflect the market right now. 
We're trying to keep our wages in line with other towns in NH and ensure that our 
employees aren't poached. When you look at market rate, these agreements are 
fair for both sides. Mr. Dean said the bargaining team agreed with that statement. 

b. TIF Update 
Economic Development Director Darren Winham was present to discuss 

the TIF update. Mr. Winham said the Epping Road widening project is underway, 
but we need additional funding to finish that off. We're proposing road 
improvements between Continental Drive and Cronin Road at $800,000; 
Industrial Drive and Commerce Way paving at $180,000; and a water pipe 
upgrade on Epping Road at $500 per foot for engineering and construction, or 
$850,000. 

Mr. Chartrand said there were previously two projects. Mr. Winham said 
he proposed four but it's down to three. These were all discussed previously. The 
first project was already approved but we need more funding. Ms. Belanger said 
the memo of December 23 doesn't include the $850,000 for the water project. 
Mr. Winham said at the time he didn't have a cost estimate for this project. Ms. 
Belanger asked where these figures came from; Mr. Winham said they are DPW 
estimates. 

Mr. Dean presented a warrant article, which would be on the town 
warrant, which covers the use of the proceeds from the TIF. 

Mr. Chartrand said the proposed TIF amendment was not included in the 
draft warrant. Mr. Dean said that's correct, we're discussing tonight whether to 

2 



move forward. Mr. Chartrand said he would like to see more details in the article. 
Transparency is important. 

Mr. Papakonstantis read the legal notice of public hearing per RSA 
162K:4: 
Pursuant to New Hampshire RSA 162-K:4, the Exeter Select Board hereby gives 
notice that they will hold a public hearing on the proposed amendment to the 
existing Epping Road Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Plan as part of the Epping 
Road Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District, which was approved in 2015. 
Copies of the amended plan are available at the Town Clerk's Office, 1 O Front 
Street, Exeter, NH. The hearing will be held on Tuesday, January 21st, 2025, 
commencing at 7:00 p.m. at the Exeter Town Offices, 10 Front Street. Dated: 
January 8th, 2025. 

c. FY25 Budget and Warrant Articles 
Mr. Papakonstantis asked where the TIF amendment would fit into the 

warrant. Mr. Dean said it would be Article 31. 
Mr. Chartrand said regarding Article 24, the BRC recommended that we 

only spend $30,000 if we got a $50,000 grant for the styrofoam recycling 
equipment. Should it be listed as $80,000 or $30,000? Mr. Papakonstantis said it 
needs to show the full cost but we could add more details. Mr. Dean said he can 
add language that the final cost will be $30,000 after the grant. 

Ms. Gilman said regarding the styrofoam recycling unit, we're also raising 
funds for transfer station improvements. Mr. Chartrand said the improvements 
would dovetail with creating space for the styrofoam recycling. 

Mr. Chartrand said the article regarding the EV Charging Facility, Article 
21, doesn't make clear how much will come from unassigned fund balance. 

Mr. Papakonstantis said the language of the articles should be as easy to 
understand as possible, given the legal requirements. Ms. Belanger said that 
voters want a bottom line number. Mr. Dean said he will work with Kristin Murphy 
on the numbers associated with the various grants. 

Mr. Dean said regarding Article 31 [not the TIF amendment], the 
expendable trust proposal, we received advice from Legal Counsel that setting 
up a Trust may not be in our best interest. Mr. Stevens said he met with the 
Pairpoint Park committee to talk about raising donations towards that project. We 
talked about creating an expendable Trust Fund to house donations. We put 
together an article, but Legal Counsel gave feedback that it would be overkill. In 
1994, the town voted to allow the Select Board to accept donations and take 
those funds and give them to the Trustee of Trust Funds until they are used. 
Unless the town were going to raise and appropriate money for it, an Expendable 
Trust Fund would not be appropriate. Therefore, we don't need Article 31. The 
committee could collect several donations and come before the Board with a list. 

Mr. Dean said regarding Article 4, Pickpocket Dam removal, $2.1 M is the 
current estimate provided by Public Works for this project. This does not include 

3 



the grants that would offset this project. He will work on this to give a better idea 
of the costs. 

Mr. Dean said Articles 8, 9, and 1 O are seeking authorization to use 

excess bond proceeds. The projects are closed, but the money hasn't been 
spent. By a 3/s ballots vote, we can reassign the proceeds to a different project. 
Mr. Papakonstantis said the BRC concurred with the use of $1 M here for these 
three projects. Last year at Deliberative Session, there was some confusion on 
this, so we want to communicate that the BRC concurred and we want to explain 
the "why," both next week and at the Deliberative Session. 

Mr. Dean said regarding the article on the ADA accessible van, Article 20, 
this would be a 5 year lease purchase. We're only raising and appropriating 
$15,000; the other 50% would come from the Rec Revolving Fund. Ms. Belanger 
asked if it would be on the warrant each of the 5 years, and Mr. Dean said no, it 
becomes part of the budget once it's approved. 

Mr. Chartrand asked if any Citizens' Petitions have come in. Mr. Dean 
said he has not received any yet. The deadline is tomorrow at 5 PM. 

Mr. Papakonstantis said he spoke with the Town Moderator and she said 
the Board need not speak to each article. They discussed which member would 
speak about which article. 

Ms. Belanger said we may want to increase our Legal budget from the 
current $100,000. Mr. Dean said there was additional cost this year due to the 
negotiations process. Labor Counsel was $12-15,000. 

9. Regular Business 
a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits and Exemptions 

i. There were no abatement requests considered. 
b. Permits & Approvals 

i. There were no permits or approvals considered. 
c. Town Manager's Report 

i. We had a State evaluation of the November wildfire. The review provided 
positive feedback on the efforts of the Exeter Fire Department. 

ii. The Union Leader wrote a story on Drew Martin, a Captain of the FD who 
had worked on wildfires in California. 

iii. The E911 Meeting Place numbering issue will come back to the Board 
after the March elections. 

iv. New Dispatcher Melissa Eckerson started today. 

v. There was a "secure campus" situation at EHS, and our PD responded. 
vi. Parks and Rec had their Senior Luncheon on Friday 
vii. Highway picked up Christmas Trees last week. If residents were missed, 

please let us know. 
viii. Dave Sharples talked with DES, who will meet with the town 

representatives and the Exeter Sportsman's Club. 
ix. We signed an MOU with UNH to create a business retention and 

expansion program for the town. 

4 



x. He attended a Housing Advisory Committee meeting last week, where 
they talked about short term rentals. 

d. Select Board Committee Reports 
i. Ms. Belanger attended a Planning Board sitewalk, which was very well 

attended. The 76 Portsmouth Ave application hearing is scheduled for 
next Thursday. At the last meeting we discussed a proposed short-term 
rental zoning change in the C1 Commercial and WC Waterfront 
Commercial districts. The Housing Advisory Committee tabled their 
discussion on 79E until May. 

ii. Ms. Gilman said she missed an Energy Committee meeting. The 
Community Build for the window dressers is coming up January 17th-
22nd at Town Hall. 

iii. Ms. Cowan had no report. 
iv. Mr. Chartrand attended a Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting. 

Chris Zigmont needs to step down as Chair but would like to continue to 
serve as a member. We're hoping to have a replacement at the February 
meeting. 

v. Mr. Papakonstantis had no report. He will go to Riverwoods tomorrow to 
give a presentation on the Board's work over the last year. 

e. Correspondence 
i. An NHMA bulletin 

10. Review Board Calendar 
a. The next meetings are Tuesday January 21, February 3, Tuesday Feb 18, March 

3, and March 17. Deliberative Session is February 1, and Town Election is March 
11. 

11. Non-Public Session 
a. There was no non-public session at this time. 

12. Adjournment 
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Cowan seconded. The motion 
passed 5-0 and the meeting was adjourned at 8:09 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Joanna Bartell 
Recording Secretary 

5 



Appointments/Resignations 



Discussion/ Action Items 

,, 



Public Hearing: FY 25 Budget and Bonds 



Legal Notice 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TOWN OF EXETER 2025 BONDS 

The Exeter Select Board hereby gives notice of a public hearing pursuant to RSA 33 :8-a on the 
following projects requiring bonds and notes as part of the fiscal year 2025 town warrant: 

I. Drinkwater Road Groundwater Well Development, $6,800,000 
2. Pickpocket Dam Removal, $2, I 00,000 
3. Linden Street Bridge Repairs, $1,257,000 
4. DPW Fuel Island Replacement, $575,000 
5. Street Sweeper Replacement, $395,000 
6. Use of $500,000 in excess bond proceeds to fund inspecting, cleaning, and dredging of 

Clemson Lagoon 
7. Use of $250,000 in excess bond proceeds to fund repairs to sewers and drains at Pine, 

Front, and Linden Streets 
8. Use of $245,000 in excess bond proceeds to fund repairs to the Wastewater Facility 

Effluent Flume building 

The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, January 21 s1, 2025 commencing at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Exeter Town Offices, Nowak Room, IO Front Street, Exeter, NH. The public is encouraged to 
attend. 

Dated: December 26, 2024 Exeter Select Board 
Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 



Legal Notice 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TOWN OF EXETER 2025 OPERA TING BUDGET 

The Exeter Select Board hereby gives notice of a public hearing on the Town of Exeter 
Fiscal Year 2025 operating budget and all financial and other warrant articles on 
Tuesday, January 21 st, 2025, at 7:00 p.m., in the Nowak Room of the Exeter Town 
Offices. This hearing will be held pursuant to RSA 32:5 and RSA 40: 13. 

Dated: December 26, 2024 Exeter Select Board 
Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 



Legal Notice 

._. ....... 
hl.ok-1t.C....( --........... --. .. 
~c.--~,i.r ~,i.,..,,..,.,i,rn,,,o 

.......... Du ... _ 
r......, llr"'-4"'.-, ..... . 
~•-•U..\lt••_.,.,....,.. ..... ~,.....__...,._~ ----t•4-~ ,_, 
, • • ).OU"" . . .. - , =.::~-~~ 
14, ., .... ,.._ ,_ • ...... .-:- ... -.., ............ 
'~·- ..... - ··-. 
,. V. f't4 v. ~--. -... , ......... ' ==.~ .. ~ 

vi, ur"'.e.v: :~ r 
, ... ,,.....,,►,m, 

n* '-'Wi '1>-•I--."' 
it.:'"''"" ' """".r,.-,:1 
\.I, -:u "J 

Legal Notice 

,ona:orrnuc~ 
rO'llllorEDTD ,..._,. 

tw~ ., _,,._...,.. 

·""""_,."·~-...... -- ·.a,~, . .......... ,,.,.,.. __ ,_,,.,.do .. ,._ .. , ... , .. ....... ., Jl'13..,_,. 
n,.,.._..-..c,.~ ......... -..... ....... 

J f'IB':n""' ~-- iw-~,~=-
-- •• , ..... o 

. ... ....... v;I,.. .,...,.:,,.,.,,, 
' ~ .....,... VJ-'-

~ ~:!n n • "-'• 
"""Jl'Wl'l"!t'lai...11f""" '111'_, __ 4"'C,.~ -, .... •.n..i ... , . ..... _.,., ........ t.MI..,,.,.. 
_. .. ◄ ¥....r<>. ""',.,.. 
_.,~ ... /"'fl., 

... ..rq .. , ""• .... .. ....... ........ ... ~ 
...... -.. ......... :a,L3i. 
r-►~ 

n -•-•"•'""' ... ~ .... ~: ... 
~,4•1'»Jo1' A 
~ ... • ... ,,,rw,,,,.,_ . ... 
:t ,_ ... Ta..·- '" ............... __.. ,._,.,, 
~ ............ .. 

t .... - ., 
~ ,,_.._ . . 

,. ... ,._,~ -·· -"'--"'" ,r tOJ,..,.._,,.,,.-.,,.,._Jlll'l 
1-.'ICAl't.<ibl !9111.,. low 

A.•!U'll'"-f' .,,4 

L<-gal Nol ice 

"'"--'~r-.--,, _,,...,,.._.,.. ... ,tr~,.. ---·---~-l,:,i,...,. 
\.l:""""4~~ ... n-.-
hf' ..... ~rlrol·,.... 

.._-.,_,-..,..-y_C.,,l"
,......'-1Tl"•.Am--: _'4-,,,...,-. ...... l,..,...,._,,_...,,.,.....~, 

, __ 1-Mr,,,;_,._."""'" 

""..........,., ........ '•► 
s..-a.,~r 

•~~'lo""1 "-"'It/JI 
1.i ... 1.-u.,i, . 

•11111: ... tM 
,.,.._ Ui\4~Kr.-,, 

Legal Notice 



~ .. ...
... WUAJwaaa,c;rt 

' ::. =.-: '::-',.!, .-t..=t 
.... r_ .. i-,._...:, 

~~~:-~ .... 11 

••• ·-~ i-....., ,,. 
lt"%\.•'011•• --... 
-#:J-,rf..._""•-4,a. 
n- .. .,., .... ,. .. ~--
•lt'.I.UU ... t.'14 ... ll .. ....,._►-•,AJil1 

~ .. v-.ti,,,.,• '---- ··~ 
Leg.ii No1ice 

.. ~~\:~; ::: 
.,._,,nJl .. _.._r...,;: 

n.._....,., _,.,""ao.) 
'"' ... -•• n.:u ""~-·' e,.....,.,.. -~ 

L.•-- r • ._. _...."" - ,.,... .. , .. . _,...._.._ .. ..... ~ --~ .. ... - ... ..... ~......,,.-... 
... ,,.,~l:11.1••"""'· ~,r..:~ 

n, ............ --..:.~
•'-.'M'-•~.•.u. 

1-UO.~ y,...._. ~I JJ1'11 
<t•O Ill -··-· . 



M ~EW HAMPSHIRE --> 
., .. ARKETPIACE ~ 

- f talUWli"1011llM.·lnN1Wffll L-4 
,...._ , s,-.10,IM,.,,,ct 

f-1,i:H'l:ifil::I i:HW AutomoUve 

..... 

+:Merchandise .. w\ 
~.n Mart - lllf ! 
---'"'"=---- t·Git®i 
=~~~ --'•- ~_,ea-_ _ _ 
........... , .. _..,!"..-~ a,,,__,; •,.,. I , __ 

•:, ~w ..,. """" _ it..,-r.t.,.., ,u_.._., 
u-,••""t.oq_,_,...~ _..,u,.,.,.,..,, 

A.Mol-• ......... ........ _,. -..-,i.~~'"'"'"' ,._, ... , ,,_,.a.-,,..,,. 
1:N'CJJD£a PHOTO or 
ATT1\ACTOR in .,.,... ad. 

l"ho,~1,.'"'d..l' 
""'~1..•s• 

,...._ ...... , .. ...__ 
Found It ems 

•• GOlDOf OOOOl.l ll'Vf'""• 
'-'JJ't••'---"" t,....._wn,_,...~, .~ _ • *""""' .,. ,. ., _._., __ .,...., ~ .... , ...... ,,.....,... :s:•ci 

,,.,..,. 0...... .....,,..__ ~ ...... Cr1.on l-urar.-•
"~""-'" w......u,. ... , ,., ~\ 
-w"1'4~J&l A_N uwa,ouau-.,.• Y"t- I _.,..,,.,1o.,.._. 

~ ... ,.,1..._:_ ... lt 
•••"•rt'111t,-t,_ , ,i:...,d " .... '-' . ._ __ ..,,.. .. , .... 

c..au,.101ot..e1wHn 1.1.m.,MS'OOp.m. 
~., 1hlwfnd •'f to pb,ce ,--red. 

WurnoTo..,.. 

&T0lMttC-&1IAJltl 
:-SL,~O,..,ot-WIIJ .,,,...,,,...,M_ 

................ ,, .. -.~ ,.,,.,_...,.,._.,,.,,......... 
~_,."""· 
""'"l£.-•-·-"" ..... ,,.,.,-,.1, ~,. .......,.__ 

"' 

fi~rtane Aaoonal SchOOl Ocstn:t ~ 
Plaltow,HH 

hHU,,.~.mc(~t~~ 

Director of Focilltle.s 
·~•~- q,,,,o~ 'kl'o,i c,.,•·c- , uc: .... roc • 
o~•y 01 rac.1 u v.-. .,. ,..,~-, •o, ..., 
~,.,-U•.I,!~# .-•-, :,c111,.•,.... 1--C -.-•c l!I' •~I 

'l> Wt'\4 n • .e1e• Ol':-.-,C"'t ~•.,~r 'O'N""".,.1-
~u,, '"L.l"<JCOO,:, !'Ut"'IC'•'" l"tl~PYCH W ;!"I 
,..~'T'rV'C• MC..r~. itlC l"Clol".ll .,.,.,.._..-C. '0 
e,.1..,.., u'• ....-.a ur-'.,.ao • -or--'1 ceno...e.,,. 
·o t,.,. .c.,l"Ct'-•1 at ,i..cC"t ,"'\J ,an ~"' ... ,.,,....,.t 
11«,.~J rH,rNIXS/rlMWl '"'">Yin o/"'9\,,ut 
(}IU,II!~ ~~t' • .,,,u,«t ~ .. : 
tt'lf'tU1\.C,...,..,l,t,en_v,rw~#oJ"r>l'Mt' 

• Custodians - 11u'"\CJ 1ftCS S!",li,A1.t◄a01, 

• HVAC Tochnicinn • 11151\.·1 

ROUTE DRIVERS WANTED 
Mancheslar 

Oohvoncs t.ako aoorcJum;ucty 
2-3hQU,spcroay 

(Fin,.sh Cy 6 JO JmJ 
Ao,11:tyu,wonc na~ndcncty.ttavoavalJd 
dtM!r's hcense. a good drrrng record 
rohablc 1ransporu11.1on and prool of auto 
.nsuranc.o 
Must bo caPJblO ot hiJOQ u;> to 30 
pouncs and oo latn1h;u 'Mlh 1mat1 ~hono 
ana/cr tablet ·cc.nnc&ogtos 

S15.00 por hour plus Upa and mlloago 
Pleaso omall Human Rosources at 

hrOunlonleador.com 

Ux~ LEADER 
., .. 4 ""11, ........ 

...... 
.... ---.-,.., ....... .---.i-..-""._....,,,,,..._..,. ,., ,___, .. - ,.__.. ... 

• aa.-. Al• I> ...... c_,_.,, \ 
t-1•.,c:o.,C,H~l~l. 

U'°'-1.fl,..,.__(~&t~ 
lli.lt"!O t.,.... o11i11 i. klCIC 
fo', - •~~•!,..l-.! 

""""' tClt.AA.WCUl•tlUOI 
wt1U- 1__,.,_JOU 

,.,..,,,U,11 . T-x:iu ~'--"""'" • ..,_..,WCl) MI-ICl- 1U4 

NH'-(.4..ltSWAltRO c..a,.,~ 
to•U 1 ION 

W:::%1 
.I.O'tl.ltl1.d1 .-.-o,l.o, ... ,,_.__.,...,....,...-.1 --·...,._oo:,,.._...a ,..,.,_,u1-,.,.u1•Je.,..., 
'-l..-l b<O <1..,...w'J•1~~1""_. -· 

AAAOft IOOMS: ~_,, .,, • l'-',.
i......,. -v• tw.\,j""I. M• ·-..u,.-..1 .. , ...... ,.. 

UAlt MOIOUIOOf\l10f' 
... .., .. ,...10••""-'•• 

D# ._,.,._"'-" ,I I ' I 

r========~;:;:;;===.:a::::::;:::::~7 ·-- ... ~_... ,.,""".,. ~to'o .......... "-_ 
..,, ... , ....... ~~_!!!, 

DRIVERS 
WANTED 

Newspaper 
Carrier 

Be done before most 
prop/~ s tart thtlr doyl 

f.•rh a,m. dclhcn. 

) lu• I haH' N'll•blc u ·hlcl" 
.,.Ith t1n)llrurln1111nnN' , 

DIUVlltY f DAU A wrg 
HASHUA.--------CAU.~21 fOAOETALS 

• w .. r-.,, lna,tM 11\ltd 11 .IPl)f'OJdnul .. 

t S"9PM-n1.al ,_..TIM• 

UNION LEADER 
q,,,t""-~ 

E-mail Humiln ResourcH 
.at h r@ounlonluder.com 

. ..,,.,,,,....,. __ --
.,..._ ,_....,..,. ... .. -,--...~ .... -. ,--,.-- ...... .n•·•i'°" ~ .,~ 

, tc,.o-,,,;,"\- ... \ .._ ........ . 
, ... , ...... '"'l..:14"tJ"" 

You 
Can 
Tell 
All 

New 
Hampshire 

With A 
Want Ad! 

Legal Notice _,_ 
,.==.:.. 

...... ...... , Jlll CISio.& 
.,.......,,.u.101.1 ~ 
~sa.,nviur,r.,.J'il\ '°' ,"?Kru1M1.•1no 

J !:.C.Ul'...'-'tU 
ffl'lli"4(.Yt. 

\..._ l\l'\l.11Wbol,lal,,\.,) 
1 :r. u,e.~,P\l"ll•r SJ 
\1' ,rn.:~%:"k 

Legal Notice 

Lt"gal Notice 
.cnx:& 0,-~D.UDO ,.., .. ...,.. 
••" ~n-. l\."Oen 

:..,,C.-,1",:.t1b<.6"1 ~ •.>f'O-.. ,,,.. __ 
llf,f _____ ,.. .. , ... 

l'l"'S ,..,......., ~ol" ..... 

.--,., .......... ·--~_,_ •• r~. ,.,.._.... ,1" 
c: ::-c:.:.~~:: n-.. ~.,.,,.,_... ,... ..... .,., 
• 't!.,\f:,Jio,J1i,."l,\..,I\ 

'.).#- '.\,,,o,-e..,.;.JLH ,._ ...... . 
'OL~ ...... -•....., 

~ gal Notice 
~' ... Jt.r,.....-... ~ 

""•l~."..._· • ..i...:.. .·...:a, .... ia~ •'-'•• :.....-. .... '"- c-....,. --~~r-. .-c,-
lta;,,b'• ~ T ....... , , J;......-, , •. ~ ............ u, 
"br-.,c ... .,,-.;,n .... 

1:~t~-:". -
L•gal Notice 
,- .. ~ 

-.crna - "2UC -.uac •-11 ....... ...... .. -...,1 . . .. ....... ,._ 
- •·J>""""-.. ~-.....,. .... _...~ 

l,J. hr ..ir'""9 •""" , .,..1,, 
- .... ..,11"1' .... ~ ... .... .... ,. ........ ,. ...... -
• ll'lt:, • • " .. .,,......,. 

1tei,Y-.,i~ ,11,p 
"'•"- , .-. IA-•.W \U • 

~~~~ =-,,r·::~ .. :-~~ "" ..... • ,_-II....., , ,.,.,cr, 1"¥',r,-11, ...... 
- .,.,,_11,f\ ..... .,I(" ~-... -=-uuw-n:. ... 

(~ .. ~;"'~~~--;: !:'~":=-~:.:..= 
- ~ ... r-.., :-:. ' ... ~ ~-• ....,. 
h_....,P, ......... ..:IIJi!.JI: '- s; t.- - "'•"' 
...... ~ rt :,, .,__t __ ,,_, ........... , - .. 

.._... ~ -·, ,,..,,.,. 1 ·"" ,...... .. ,u·t, ..... , ,_ • 
•~ l'a(" .,,. ._,.. - ·Lo-C"" I t ·~ -.~cooCD ..,._.., 
•W• n.1,f' I 'WC: ... ..,._.,_.~, ....... 'u • J 

11.o•r,& ... __., _....., .rtDT .. fl/#'l"fA 
, , ... , ... i---u ....... , ........ 
-~-•s.W:i ... .._,...., .. _, .. ,... .... .... ., .. ..... "" ,,,. ... .., . : .. ,,,_. _ _.,.h_.....-..1., ._ , ... ......-: .. 



EXETER TOWN WARRANT - 2025 

To the inhabitants of the Town of Exeter, in the County of Rockingham, in the said State, qualified to vote 
in Town affairs: 

First Session 

You are hereby notified that the first session (the Deliberative Session) of the Annual Town Meeting will 
be held on Saturday, February I st

, 2025 beginning at 9:00 a.m. at the Arthur L. Hanson III Center for the 
Performing Arts at Exeter High School, I Blue Hawk Drive. The first session will consist of explanation, 
discussion and debate of each of the following warrant articles, and will also afford voters who are present 
the opportunity to propose, debate and adopt amendments to warrant articles, except those articles in which 
wording is prescribed by state law. 

Second Session 

The,;~~~qncf s~ssion of the Annual!own Meeting, to elt;9tTown officers byofficial_bajJgt,,.~g._t,Q,VQt.e on 
all "'~Jitj~rti9}es as they may haye: been amended ~f;t:fle first session, wUtbe held q~{,~es~ity{~areh 
11~;,[1~02-s at t~~:,;f~lbot Gymnasium a~.the Tuck Lea~~;Center, 30 Linden Street. Polls"fot1llmg··by 
of~§i,t,1 ballot will ppen at 7:00 a.m. and close at 8:00/p~µilfo!(t · •::i:11:1 

Arti~!e 1 (Election :A.rticle) 

To ~Ubose the followfug: I Mod~tafu.r:-for a 2-year ,Tetm; 2 S~lect Board m~mbers for a 3-year t~ftn; I 
'''::'·<· - . ,·.······• . ·. , . . I . ·: Sw~y Parkway Trustee fora3~yearterm; I Trus.tetS of the Trust Fund for a3-yearterm; I Tru~e of the 

Rol;i~on Fund fo1u17-yeartenn; 3 Trustees of th~·;itt?.rmYJor).fJ-year term. · ·:-:" 
mi~l[ :••·'. .. ···• :· . ... . ;lll;\;\:~J~_}f111!!~~;<;: •,:::::¥'. " 

Arti.c,IJ' 2 ZoningAmendment #1: Are you in fayQr of the adoption of Amendment #I as propb~ by the 
Plan~ing Board:for the town zoning ordinance, l;>yamending Article 2, Section 2.2 Definitions by~Mding a 
new,j~~~11i,~»:JQr "Short-tetlll rental": :"1\ny in'dividually or collectively owned single-fami~v'{house or 
dwellijtga~~if~r any unit otOgroup of units fjtj\jl condominium~~eooperative, or timeshare/o~ owner
occupied residential home, that is offered for a fee and for less than thirty (30) consecutive days." 
And amend Article 4, Section 4.2 Schedule I: Permitted Uses by adding "Short-term rental" as a permitted 
use in the C-1, Central Area Commercial and WC-Waterfront Commercial zoning districts? 

Recommended by the Planning Board 6-1. 

Article 3 - Drinkwater Road Groundwater Development ($6,800,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of six million eight hundred thousand dollars 
($6,800,000) for the purpose of design, engineering and construction of a new groundwater source off 
Drinkwater Road, and to authorize the issuance of not more than $6,800,000 of bonds or notes in accordance 
with the provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize the Select Board to 
issue, negotiate, sell and deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the 
maturity and other terms thereof; and further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend 
federal, state or other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this 
project and to comply with all laws applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Select Board to 
take any other action or to pass any other vote relative thereto. Notwithstanding the general obligation 
nature of the bonds or notes, it is anticipated that debt service will be paid from the water fund. Bond 
payments would begin approximately one year after issuance. 

1 



(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) _____ by the Select Board __ _ 

Article 4 - Pickpocket Dam Removal ($2,100,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of two million one hundred thousand dollars 
($2,100,000) for the purpose of design, engineering, removal of the Pickpocket Dam and subsequent site 
monitoring, and to authorize the issuance of not more than $2, I 00,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with 
the provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize the Select Board to issue, 
negotiate, sell and deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity 
and other terms thereof; and further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend federal, 
state or other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and 
to comply with all laws applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Select Board to take any 
other action or to pass any other vote relative thereto. The Town is seeking grants to offset up to 100% of 
the project cost. Debt service to be paid from the general fund. (Estimated Tax Impact: assuming 15-year 
bond at 3.09% interest: .06/1,000, $6.00/100,000 of assessed property value). Bond payments would begin 
approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/~ ballot vote required for approval) _____ by the Select Board·_ .. _ ... 

Article 5 - Linden Street Bridge Repairs ($1,257,900) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise ·and appropriate the sum of one million two hundred fifty seven 
thoµ~#:Uld nine hundred dollars ($1,2.~;?,~00) for the purpose of making repairs to the Linden Street bridge, 
and to authorize the issuaQ.ce ·ofn.qfrnore than $1,257,900 of bonds: or notes iµ'. accordance with the 
provisions of the Municipal Finan~ Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize,the Select Board to issue, 
negotiate, sell and deliver such bonds,9r. notes and to de.termine the rate of interest thereon and the piaturity 
and other terms thereof; and :further to. ~uthorize the Sele3ctBoard to apply for, accept and experid! federal, 
state or other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and 
to comply with all laws applicable to mich project; and further to.authorize the Select Board to:take any 
other· action or to pass any other vote relative thereto. Debt service to -be paid from the genefal fund. 
(Estimated Tax Impact: assuming IO-year.bond at 2.72% interest: .05/1,000, $5.00/100,000 of assessed 
property value). Bond payments would begin approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 6 - DPW Fuel Island Station Replacement ($575,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of five hundred seventy five thousand dollars 
($575,000) for the purpose of replacing the fuel island station at the DPW Complex at 13 Newfields Road, 
and to authorize the issuance of not more than $575,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the provisions 
of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33 ); and further to authorize the Select Board to issue, negotiate, sell 
and deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity and other 
terms thereof; and further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend federal, state or 
other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and to comply 
with all laws applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Select Board to take any other action 
or to pass any other vote relative thereto. Debt service to be paid from the general fund. (Estimated Tax 
Impact: assuming 5-year bond at 2.89% interest: .04/1,000, $4.00/100,000 of assessed property value). 
Bond payments would begin approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

2 



Article 7 - Street Sweeper ($395,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of three hundred ninety five thousand dollars 
($395,000) for the purpose of purchasing a new street sweeper to be used to meet EPA nitrogen reduction 
permit requirements and the implementation of an enhanced sweeping program, and to authorize the 
issuance of not more than $395,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal 
Finance Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize the Select Board to issue, negotiate, sell and deliver such 
bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity and other terms thereof; and 
further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend federal, state or other aid, if any, 
including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and to comply with all laws 
applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Select Board to take any other action or to pass any 
other vote relative thereto. Debt service to be paid from the general fund. (Estimated Tax Impact: assuming 
5-year bond at 2.89% interest: .03/1,000, $3 .00/100,000 of assessed property value). Bond payments would 
begin approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

ts~'-''''I~~;xcess ~!l~~~s -Front, Pi0f ,,Linden St~~er~:~&~j~) 

Shallilthe Town vote fo autfl<>rize the expenditure o(:~_portjp~ of the unused bonds approved ht~7021 for 
S~l~m Street Are~it~ter, S~er, Drain~ge Road I~~rove~~rts and Ut,l~ty Replacements as lllows:_ to 
raa~w d appropna1e.the sunr9ftwo hundred fifty ~9usancl1~91lars ($250,p00), for the purpose,l9(makmg 
s~~~~repairs at Pi~/Front an~Linden ~treets, an41lfpaking'~p~irs to drainagesystym~ at Pin~~i:Jfr~nt and 
Lm<len Streets, per{RSA 33:3.;.a; R (Estimated T~Jjnpact: Nc:>:rie. No amounttobe raised by ~ftt1on). 

(3t5\ijnot vote re,q~ rorlipllroval) . i,":,:; , (l mi\Iilthe SeIJ Board __ . :;<!11~ 

--·-✓••• 

A~c°'e 9 - U~~ .91 ~xcess Bond Proceeds - Cle111~on Lagoon -~i~ning a.~d Inspection ($50«),~P0) 
,, "'"\i1i::iii!1;1i~l]¥F .u if ::: .. }: {mu( . i rnimiii 

.{OWfi vote to authorize the expendittire of a portion of'the unused bonds approved in1r2021 for 
Wastewater Lagoon Sludge Removal as follows: to raise and appropriate the sum of five hundred thousand 
dollars ($500,000), for the purpose of inspecting, cleaning and dredging of Clemson Lagoon, per RSA 33 :3-
a, II. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be raised by taxation). 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 10 - Use of Excess Bond Proceeds - Wastewater Treatment Facility Effluent Flume Repair 
($245,000) 

Shall the Town vote to authorize the expenditure of a portion of the unused bonds approved in 2021 for 
Wastewater Lagoon Sludge Removal as follows: to raise and appropriate the sum of two hundred forty-five 
thousand dollars ($245,000), for the purpose of repairing the effluent flume at the Wastewater Treatment 
Facility site at 13 Newfields Road, per RSA 33:3-a, II. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be 
raised by taxation). 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

3 



Article 11 - Choose Town Officers 

To choose all other necessary Town Officers, Auditors or Committees for the ensuing year. 

Article 12 - 2025 Operating Budget 

Shall the Town of Exeter raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including appropriations by 
special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on the budget 
posted with the warrant or as amended by vote of the first session, for the purposes set forth therein, totaling 
$23,983,368. Should this article be defeated, the default budget shall be $23,441,313, which is the same as 
last year, with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Town of Exeter or by law; or the 
governing body may hold one special meeting, in accordance with RSA 40: 13, X and XVI, to take up the 
issue of a revised operating budget only. (Estimated Tax Impact: .27/1,000 assessed property value, 
$27/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) __________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 13 ~ 2025 Water Fund Budget 

Shall-the Town ofExeter raise and appropriate as a water operating budget, not including appropriations 
by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on: the budget 
poste<I_ with the warrant or as amended by vote of the first session, for the purposes set forth therein, totaling 
$4,691,357. Should this article be def~ted, the waterdefaultbudget shall be $4,613,401, which·is:the same 
as la.styear, with certain adjustments.required by previous action of the Town of Exeter or by lawi 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 14 - 2025 Sewer Fund Budget 

Shallthe Town of Exeter raise and appropriate as a sewer operating budget, not including appropriations 
by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on-.'ffi~ budget 
posted with the warrant or as amended by vote of the first session, for the purposes set forth therein, totaling 
$8,147,727. Should this article be defeated, the default budget shall be $8,074,074, which is the same as 
last year, with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Town of Exeter or by law. 

(Majority vote required.) ____________ by the Select Board __ _ 

Article 15 - Collective Bargaining Agreement - SEIU Local 1984 and Town of Exeter 

To see if the Town will vote to approve the cost items included in the three-year collective bargaining 
agreement reached between the Select Board and the SEllJ (Service Employees International Union) Local 
1984 covering Public Works and Administrative/Clerical employees, which calls for the following 
increased salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels: 

Year Water/Sewer Fund General Fund Total 
FY25 $68,068 $70,451 $138,519 
FY26 $93,597 $105,320 $198,917 
FY27 $61,403 $80,643 $142,046 

And further, to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred thirty-eight thousand five hundred nineteen 
dollars ($138,519) for the 2025 fiscal year, such sum representing the additional costs attributable to the 

4 



increase in salaries and benefits over those of the appropriation at current staffing levels. The amounts 
raised will be $70,451 through taxation (General Fund), and $68,068 (Water/Sewer Funds) as offsetting 
revenue. (Estimated Tax Impact: .02/1,000, $2.02/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board. 

Article 16 - Collective Bargaining Agreement - Exeter Police Association and 'li'own of Exeter 

To see if the Town will vote to approve the cost items included in the three-year collective bargaining 
agreement reached between the Select Board and the Exeter Police Association, which calls for the 
following increased salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels: 

Year 
FY25 
FY26 
FY27 

Estimated Salary/Benefits Increase 
$133,009 
$225,370 
$128,120 

An4i; . ~~~~,t.o.!Jaj~e and appmPf!~_tlt~:~um of one hw,idred thirty-three-tho~~4i,11~e doll~J~l:3,!}~~:0~) 
for~~ 20:2s··fis¢~f:iYear, su~q'.;§um ·rep~$~nting the adcµti9nal costs attributa61e--tc5'the increaseJn ·salaries 
an&},~nefits ovet:fli<>se of tlie:7~ppropdit.ti~n at current~taffing levels. (E.~timated Tax Impact: .038/1,000, 
$3.82!100,000 assessed property value).; · '· 

(M~~rity vote requir¢ci.) J 
7 

> > .• by thI Selectl3oard __ . · 

Arti~~ 17 - Coll~e B~fitlig treement - ~xeter Professional Fi~~ihJs Association Local 
349lt.tnd Town ofExeter 

To;~~ if the Tqw.p.Gwm votJ
0

Jo appr◊y~fothe cost items include4 in theJbree-year collective pargaining 
agr~gient reached>betweerithe Select Bpard and the Exeter Professional Firefighters Association Local 
3491.;t}Ylijch ~s for the follC>~ing incre_~ed salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels: 

~ . ';·: .. ;.,.;,:,; .: ,-, '~~ 

Year 
FY25 
FY26 
FY27 

Estimated Salary/Benefits Increase 
$158,248 
$207,857 
$124,297 

And further, to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred fifty-eight thousand, two hundred forty-eight 
dollars ($158,248) for the 2025 fiscal year, such sum representing the additional costs attributable to the 
increase in salaries and benefits over those of the appropriation at current staffing levels. (Estimated Tax 
Impact: .045/1,000, $4.54/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 18 - Replace Sidewalk Tractor #58 ($225,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to enter into a 5-year lease/purchase agreement 
for $225,000 for the purpose of lease/purchasing a replacement for a sidewalk tractor in the Public Works 
Department, and to raise and appropriate the sum of fifty-six thousand two hundred fifty dollars ($56,250), 
which represents the first of 5 annual payments (a total of $258,750) for this purpose. This lease/purchase 

5 



will contain an escape (non-appropriation) clause. This sum to come from general taxation. (Estimated 
Tax Impact: .016/1,000, $1.61/100,000 assessed property value). 

Article 19-Replace Dump Truck #33 ($160,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to enter into a 5-year lease/purchase agreement 
for $160,000 for the purpose of lease/purchasing a replacement for dump truck #33 in the Public Works 
Department, and to raise and appropriate the sum of forty-thousand dollars ($40,000), which represents the 
first of 5 annual payments (a total of$184,000) for this purpose. This lease/purchase will contain an escape 
(non-appropriation) clause. This sum to come from general taxation. (Estimated Tax Impact: .011/1,000, 
$1.15/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board_. 

Article 20 - Purchase ADA Accessible Van for Parks/Recreation ($120,000) 

To s,e~ifthe Town will voteto authorize the Select Board to enter into a 5-year lease/purch~~:ll.gree~e!}t 
for $120,000 for·. the purpose of lease/purchasing an ADA Accessible Van for. the . Pm-k$'liR~~p 
Department, and to raise and appropriate the sum of fifteen-thousand dollars ($15,000), wlficlf~pfesenfs 
the first of 5 ann~ general fund payments (a total of$69,000) for this l)JJrpose. The total costQfthe van 
will be shared with the Recreation Revolving Fund which will provide 50% funding or $69,O0o; for this 
purchase over the 5-year lease/purchase. The total sum to be raised from taxation will be $69,0()0. The 
total amount of the lease/purchase is estimated at $138,000. This lease/purchase will contain,an escape 
(non-:appropriation) clause. This sum to come from general taxation and Recreation revolving funds. 
(Estirtjated Tax Impact: .004/1,000, $.43/100,000 t1Ssessed property value). · · 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board _. 

Article 21 - .Public EV Charging Facility (Sli"0,000) 

To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the sum of oiie.-hundred 
twenty thousand dollars ($120,000), for the purpose of purchasing and installing two (2) two port Electric 
Vehicle chargers (provides charging for 4 vehicles) to be located in the Downtown Municipal Lot. This 
project may qualify for a DOT Charging Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) Grant that provides an 80:20 grant 
match (federal:local) up to $96,000. The Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for this grant is typically 
announced in May. Any additional grants obtained will offset the cost of the project. This appropriation 
will not take effect unless at least $96,000 in grants are received, with the town's share of up to $24,000 to 
come from the unassigned fund balance. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be raised by 
taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _____________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 22 - Appropriate to Sick Leave Trust Fund ($100,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) 
to be added to the Sick Leave Expendable Trust Fund previously established. This sum to come from the 
unassigned fund balance. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be raised by taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 23-Appropriate to Capital Reserve Fund-Parks Improvements ($100,000) 

6 



To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) 
to be added to the Parks Improvement Capital Reserve Fund previously established. (Estimated Tax 
Impact: .028/1,000 assessed property value, $2.84/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 24 - Purchase Styrofoam Densitier Unit ($80,000) 

To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the sum of eighty thousand 
dollars ($80,000), for the purpose of purchasing a Styrofoam densifier unit. This project is eligible for a 
$50,000 grant through RecycleFoam.org with applications due in March/April. Any grants obtained will 
go to offset the cost of the equipment. This appropriation will not take effect unless $50,000 in grants are 
received, with the town's share of $30,000 to come from the unassigned fund balance. (Estimated Tax 
Impact: None. No amount to be raised by taxation). 

To se~ if the Town will vote to raise and,ppropriate the sum of seventy-five-thousand dollars ($75,000) to 
be ~ed to the Snow and le~ Deficit N9it.;Capital R~serve Fund previously established. This sµm;to come 
fromJhe unassignedfund bal~~~-: ___ (ij~timated Tax @pact: None. No amount to be raised by t~tion). 

· ~ ·':: . . . : ,::;,~;;'.'.;!;ltl!ll~!!l!!rn;n,, 'i , - ,;: . . , :: 

(M~jC>rity vote requged.) -- ... · by the Select Board· __ .:, 

Article 26 - Replace, Fire Utility Truck,($71,35Sf 
;;_:; .. :::: : ; . ·: ' 

To ii ifthe ]?i>,WJl will raise and apptgpriate,, t:luough speciaj yvarrant article, the sum of ~~¾~nty-one 
thoijsmtdJliree: lmndred and·fiJty-five dqllars ($7:l ,355), for the purJ)ose of purchasing a repl~~tnent for 
the Fire Department Utility Truck, purchased in 2008. This vehicle is primarily used for towing'emergency 
and non-emergency trailers to incident scenes. It is also used to pick up used equipment after fire and other 
incidents. This sum to come from the unassigned fund balance. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount 
to be raised by taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 27-Transfer Station Improvements ($50,000) 

To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the sum of fifty thousand 
dollars ($50,000), for the purpose of making improvements to the Town transfer station. This sum to come 
from general taxation. (Estimated Tax Impact: .014/1,000, $1.44/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 28 - Appropriate to Capital Reserve Fund - ADA Fund ($25,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) to 
be added to the ADA Non-Capital Reserve Fund previously established. (Estimated Tax Impact: 
.0072/1,000 assessed property value, .72/$100,000 assessed property value). 

7 



(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 29 - Sestercentennial Fund ($5,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to establish a non-capital reserve fund under RSA 35: 1-c to be known as the 
Sestercentennial Fund, for the purpose of planning events and celebrations for the Sestercentennial of the 
United States of America, , and to raise and appropriate the sum of five-thousand dollars ($5,000) to be 
placed in this fund and further the Select Board shall be named agents of the fund and be authorized to 
make expenditures from the fund. (Estimated Tax Impact: .0014/1,000 assessed property value, 
.14/$100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 30 - Appropriate to Trust Fund - Swasey Parkway ($3,750) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of three thousand seven hundred fifty dollars 
($3,750) to be added to the Swasey Parkway Expendable Trust Fund previously established .. This ~Ulllt9 
come· from unassigned fund balance. This amount is equivalent to the. amount of permit fees coll®ted 
during 2024 for use of the Swasey Parkway. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to bei:J'aised·by 
taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 31 - TIF Amendme11t -Amend Financing Plan 

To see if the Town will adopt the provisions of the Epping Road Tax Increment District Financing Plan 
Amendment ( dated Januruy 6, 2025) in accordance witb RSA 162-K:9 IV which allocates the use of tax 
increments for retirement of bonds and notes as outlined in the plan amendment. The plan amendment 
includes three _capital projects in the Epping Road TIF District. Epping Road Widening Phase 2 7 e~timated 
cost$880,000; Industrial J?rive/Comm.er°'e Way Paving - estimated 1~9.~t $180,000, and Wa.~r/Sewer 
Improvements south of the .Continental Drive traffic light - estimated cost $850,000. (Estimdted Tax 
Impact: None. No amount to be raised by taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ _ 

Article 32 - Petition Article 

On the petition of Gerry Hamel and other registered voters of the town of Exeter, NH to see if the town 
shall vote: 

To discontinue the community Revitalization Tax Incentive Program (RSA 79E) adopted by the Town of 
Exeter in March of 2014. The program was used to give tax incentives to owners and investors in certain 
districts to spur revitalization of property. 
With property values more than doubling in the past ten years and the lack of needing incentives to 
renovate, we feel the incentive program should be discontinued so that the taxes on all future projects can 
be utilized by the town and citizens instead of investors. 

Article 33 - Petition Article 

By petition ofKarishma Manzur and others, Shall the Town vote to call upon our Federal elected 
representatives to use the US government's considerable influence to (1) support the safety and right to 

8 



life of all people living in Israel and Palestine, (2) enforce U.S. laws prohibiting weapons sales to 
countries that violate human rights, and (3) ensure the safe delivery of food and medical supplies to the 
people in Gaza? 

While many Americans struggle to live from paycheck to paycheck, many are homeless, children are 
going hungry, elderly people are unable to afford to heat their homes, and millions of Americans don't 
have health insurance, our government spent over $90 million of New Hampshire tax money in 2024 to 
buy weapons for Israel. 

We want our government to spend our money to help ordinary Americans. As citizens, we are also 
concerned that our money and weapons are being used to make Gaza the most dangerous place in the 
world to be a child. 

The record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal representatives 
and the Governor of New Hampshire. , 

Ar~I :•w,i:~tion Article . . . . .. • . I :!Blilt . 
By iffti8h"--~iij~shma Manzur 'and otl)~rs, Shall the f9wn vote to call upon our Federalefoct~-, 
rep~i~ntatives tq\\µtvestigate the massive fraud and wa$~e:,jµJhe US Department of Defense, cut,\~e vast 
$900;,~illion defertse budget,: and use taxpayer funds tcf help'ordinary Americans? /:, 

Whjj~jover 45 milliori:Americat1sare struggling witbJ~unger, billions of1ollars will go to a fe~;;~ant 
def~~e contractors that overcharge the US government and make enormo,us. profits !for their CE,Qs and 

, ...• ,, . . .. . . ·• • .• . . . I ..... ., 

sh~ijolders. This:,i~ disgraceful. As citizens, we)r~nt our t~Junds to help ordinary Americ~~~i 
/\~.11 : ,, •--••·_ :': y,i::::'' :;Jt; ,:''}c;; ••·•••- Jmd 

Th<i~ord of the y9te approving this article shalf~e':~~ij]Jp:~x~~r's State and Federal represen~tives 
an~;,f Govern~~,Q'.fNew Hampshire. ·· ;ii\: tNf, ·· : 
Arti~l~:;~5 LpJijtion Article 

By petition of Karishma Manzur and others, Shall the Town vote to authorize and direct the Exeter Select 
Board, our Governor, and State and Federal elected representatives to support a $5,000 limit on 
contributions to political action committees (PACs) and super PACs that spend money to support or 
defeat candidates for office in New Hampshire? 

Democracy means that we elect our political leaders, and they represent us. As citizens, we are concerned 
that corporations and billionaires use money to make our elected officials do what they want, and most 
ordinary Americans do not have that power. 

The record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal representatives 
and the Governor of New Hampshire. 

Article 36 - Petition Article 

By petition ofKarishma Manzur and others, Shall the Town vote to call upon our Governor and State and 
Federal elected representatives to conserve and maintain New Hampshire's public natural resources for 
the benefit of this and future generations? 

9 



As citizens, we recognize the fundamental right of people, plants, and animals to have clean air, pure 
water, and a healthy environment. We urge our State and Federal governments to ensure that our 
beautiful state continues to have a clean, healthy, and sustainable environment upon which we all rely. 

The record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal representatives 
and the Governor of New Hampshire. 

Article 37 - Petition Article 

By petition ofKarishma Manzur and others, Shall the Town vote to direct the Exeter Select Board, our 
Governor, and State elected representatives to disclose and divest all town and state pension funds and 
withdraw investments from weapons manufacturers that are profiting from gun violence? 

Every year, gun violence kills more than 40,000 people in America and wounds twice as many. Injury 
from firearms is now the leading cause of death for children and teens in America. Gun violence is 
costing our nation over $557 billion in health care treatments and lost economic opportunity. The lost 
human potential cannot be measured. Put simply, America cannot afford gun.viol~nce. 

As citizens, we want to make the world safer for everyone, especially children. 

,_·. .. , ~ .. : :\~~titj 
The record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal represen.tm;ives 
and the Governor of New Hampshire. · '; 

• ~ ' :..t 

Article 38 

To transact any other businessthat may legally come before this meeting. 

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 

Molly Cowan, Vice Chair 

Julie D. Gilman, Clerk 

Nancy Belanger 

Daniel W. Chartrand 

We certify that on the __ th day of January, 2025, we caused a true copy of the within warrant to be 
posted at the Exeter Town Hall on Front Street, the Exeter Public Library at Founder's Park, Exeter High 
School at 1 Blue Hawk Drive, Talbot Gymnasium at Tuck Leaming Campus, 40 Linden Street, and the 
Town Clerk's Office, IO Front Street. 

Given under our hands and seal this __ th day of January, 2025. 

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 



Molly Cowan, Vice Chair 

Julie D. Gilman, Clerk 

Nancy Belanger 

Daniel W. Chartrand 

11 



I -~ New Hampshire 2025 
Department of 

Revenue Administration MS-636 
DRAFT 

I· (l)t-<iS:::D BU[i'··::.1 t,\~ f F-1'1ALl~l:J 
I JC: r, ) )~' 1-c,' RE vi .. t; 'JR,'CS_" O\~ y 

Proposed Budget 
- ·•·--

Exeter 
' lfy~□ Fiave rec ntly made changes to your proposed warrant articles, you must click the "View/Calculate• button at the 
......... ....._ __ bo_tto_m_ of_lhe budget tab in the portal to ensure that the values in this report have been updated. 

THIS IS A DRAFT REPORT FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY 
THE PROPOSED BUDGET PROCESS MUST BE COMPLETED IN 
THE TAX RATE SETTING PORTAL BEFORE A FINAL REPORT 

CAN BE GENERATED FOR THt: PURPOSES OF CERTIFICATION 
A~D PUBLIC POSTING 

For assistance please contact: 
NH ORA Municipal and Property Division 

(603) 230-5090 
https://www,revenue.nh,gov/about-dra/municipal-and-propecty-division/municipal-bureau 

,o,, o, .• 

t07/L)0 F:Y~ter 20:!5 t,/f) .. t12G :n,:\ T ,,,_ 1 /,/ ;),, 2 1Jb 3--~ ;:_}t-/ Page 1 of 11 



Account 

New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 

Purpose 

General Government 

4130 Executive 

4140 Election, Registration, and Vital Statistics 

4150 Financial Administration 

4152 Property Assessment 

4153 Legal Expense 

4155 Personnel Administration 

4191 Planning and Zoning 

4194 General Government Buildings 

4195 Cemeteries 

4196 Insurance Not Otherwise Allocated 

4197 Advertising and Regional Associations 

4198 Contingency 

4199 Other General Government 

General Government Subtotal 

Public Safety 

4210 Police 

4215 Ambulances 

4220 Fire 

4240 Building Inspection 

4290 Emergency Management 

4299 Other Public Safety 

Public Safety Subtotal 

Airport/Aviation Center 

4301 Airport Administration 

4302 Airport Operations 

4309 Other Airport 

Airport/Aviation Center Subtotal 

Highways and Streets 

4311 Highway Administration 

4312 Highways and Streets 

4313 Bridges 

4316 Street Lighting 

4319 Other Highway, Streets, and Bridges 

Highways and Streets Subtotal 

2025 
MS-636 

DR FT 
f <'.)'<)::;~!.) t:kJDG:: I f-;C I ;...INAU:ED 

l HS C".)PY !-<':';: '<'.EVl:::V! PJf{PC$ES ONLY 

Appropriations 
Expenditures for Appropriations 

period ending for period ending Proposed Appropriations for period 
Article 12/31/2024 12/31/2024 ending 12/31/2025 

(Recommended) (Not Recommended) 

12 $328,264 $338,034 $482,505 $0 

12 $379,349 $485,827 $444,196 $0 

12 $1,062,700 $1,116,582 $1,258,424 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

12 $105,972 $100,000 $100,000 $0 

12 $667,585 $652,246 $792,817 $0 

12 $291,246 $308,582 $332,558 $0 

12 $1,041,465 $1,243,241 $1,309,352 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

12 $92,363 $82,852 $88,441 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$59,654 $65,691 $0 $0 

$4,028,598 $4,393,055 $4,808,293 $0 

12 $3,918,096 $3,951,078 $4,190,270 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

12 $4,113,098 $4,182,911 $4,283,434 $0 

12 S263,550 $279,825 $268,728 $0 

$46,131 $52,320 $0 $0 

12 S428,577 $478,265 $508,637 $0 

$8,769,452 $8,944,399 $9,251,069 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 so $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

12 $420,703 $666,100 $706,652 $0 

12 $1,913,287 $2,001,196 $2,118,484 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

12 $125,557 $169,000 $147,000 $0 

12 $290,858 $314,696 $289,511 $0 

$2,750,405 $3,150,992 $3,261,647 $0 

Page 2 of 11 



• 
Account 

Sanitation 

4321 

4323 

4324 

4325 

4326 

4329 

New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 

Purpose 

Sanitation Administration 

Solid Waste Collection 

Solid Waste Disposal 

Solid Waste Facilities Clean-Up 

Sewage Collection and Disposal 

Other Sanitation 

Sanitation Subtotal 

Water Distribution and Treatment 

4331 Water Administration 

4332 Water Services 

4335 Water Treatment 

4338 Water Conservation 

4339 Other Water 

Water Distribution and Treatment Subtotal 

Electric 

4351 Electric Administration 

4352 Generation 

4353 Purchase Costs 

4354 Electric Equipment Maintenance 

4359 Other Electric Costs 

Electric Subtotal 

Health 

4411 Health Administration 

4414 Pest Control 

4415 Health Agencies and Hospitals 

4419 Other Health 

Health Subtotal 

Welfare 

4441 Welfare Administration 

4442 Direct Assistance 

4444 Intergovernmental Welfare Payments 

4445 Vendor Payments 

4449 Other Welfare 

Welfare Subtotal 

DRAFT 
I' \()i)OSE:D tkJDGt::. l NGT ~IN,:\Ll:ED 

IHI::; CCJPY FC:,~ t\t.Vk:V! l'Jf,POSES ONLY 

Appropriations 

Article 

12 

12 

12 

12 

12 

Expenditures for Appropriations 
period ending for period ending 

12/31/2024 12/31/2024 

$0 $0 

$1,399,307 $1,488,354 

$0 $0 

$0 so 
$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$1,399,307 $1,488,354 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$127,255 $129,899 

$420 $1,050 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$127,675 $130,949 

$174,504 $144,094 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$98,325 $98,325 

$272,829 $242,419 

Proposed Appropriations for period 
ending 12/31/2025 

(Recommended) (Not Recommended} 

$0 $0 

$1,652,139 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$1,652,139 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$142,892 $0 

$1,050 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$143,942 $0 

$177,758 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$100,000 $0 

$277,758 $0 

Page 3 of 11 



New Hampshire cM~0

~

5367 DRAFT Department of 
Revenue Administration f . ~'.)fJ0fi:.:D BUI.K;t:. l t,K) l HNAUZED 

!!-'IS C•>PY rO;\ f<'.i:VI::'!.' r'Ul~P0$:::S ONL v 

Appropriations 
••-~-----•-••"•••u•u-•~ 

Expenditures for Appropriations 
period ending for period ending Proposed Appropriations for period 

Account Purpose Article 12/31/2024 12/31/2024 ending 12/31/2025 

(Recommended) (Not Recommended) 

Culture and Recreation 

4520 Parks and Recreation 12 $668,048 $688,829 $757,774 $0 

4550 Library 12 $1,204,548 $1,185,689 $1,281,634 $0 

4583 Patriotic Purposes 12 $15,693 $16,000 $18,000 $0 

4589 Other Culture and Recreation 12 $22,949 $18,500 $18,500 $0 

Culture and Recreation Subtotal $1,911,238 $1,909,018 $2,075,908 $0 

Conservation and Development 

4611 Conservation Administation 12 $8,266 $9,555 $9,798 $0 

4612 Purchase of Natural Resources $0 $0 $0 $0 

4619 Other Conservation $0 $0 $0 $0 

4631 Redevelopment and Housing $0 $0 $0 $0 
Administration 

4632 Other Redevelopment and Housing $0 $0 $0 $0 

4651 Economic Development Administration $0 $0 $0 $0 

4652 Economic Development $0 $0 $0 $0 

4659 Other Economic Development 12 $164,894 $167,860 $180,902 $0 

Conservation and Development Subtotal $173,160 $177,415 $190,700 $0 

Debt Service 

4711 Principal- Long Term Bonds, Notes, and 12 $1,427,979 $1,436,716 $1,221,312 $0 Other Debt 

4721 Interest- Long Term Bonds, Notes, and 12 $631,679 $632,556 $556,110 $0 Other Debt 

4723 Interest on Tax and Revenue 12 $0 $0 $171,150 $0 Anticipation Notes 

4790 Other Debt Service Charges 12 $0 $1 $1 $0 

Debt Service Subtotal $2,059,658 $2,069,273 $1,948,573 $0 

Capital Outlay 

4901 Land $0 $0 $0 $0 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 12 $469,576 $474,984 $373,339 $0 

4903 Buildings $191,273 $17,522,500 $0 $0 

4909 Improvements Other than Buildings $6,084,366 $2,812,802 so $0 

Capital Outlay Subtotal $6,745,215 $20,810,286 $373,339 $0 

Page 4 of 11 



Account 

New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 

Purpose 

Operating Transfers Out 

4911 To Revolving Funds 

4912 To Special Revenue Funds 

4913 To Capital Projects Funds 

4914A To Airport Proprietary Fund 

4914E To Bectric Proprietary Fund 

49140 To Other Proprietary Fund 

4914S To Sewer Proprietary Fund 

4914W To Water Proprietary Fund 

4918 To Non-Expendable Trust Funds 

4919 To Fiduciary Funds 

Operating Transfers Out Subtotal 

Total Operating Budget Appropriations 

DRAFT 
H~OF<Jf;d) t3UDGE1 NOf FIN,\LIZ.EC 

I HS CC)!>Y f'.'.':i\ !<E:Vl~W PUl<PCS!:f; <')NLY 

Appropriations 
Expenditures for Appropriations 

period ending for period ending Proposed Appropriations for period 
Article 12/31/2024 12/31/2024 ending 12/31/2025 

(Recommended) (Not Recommended) 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 so $0 

$0 $0 so $0 

$0 $0 so $0 

14 $11,225,010 $10,417,780 $8,147,727 $0 

13 $4,387,508 $7,140,921 $4,601,357 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 so $0 $0 

$15,612,518 $17,558,701 $12,749,084 $0 

$36,732,452 $0! 

Page 5 of 11 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration [ 

2025 
MS-636 

~mtitrs:,:;,:eu SW......:::~~~ 

Special Warrant Articles 

DRAFT 
f' ~();:>Ofi::D BJuG:::.l t✓OT FINALIZED 

THIS C,..)!)'( r(JR ~E'iH:::V! PUf~POSES ONLY 

Account Purpose Article 
Proposed Appropriations for period 

ending 12/31/2025 

(Recommended) (Not Recommended} 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 07 $395,000 $0 

Purpose: Street Sweeper ($395,000) 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 21 $120,000 $0 

Purpose: Public EV Charging Facility ($120,000) 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 24 $80,000 $0 

Purpose: Purchase Styrofoam Densifier Unit ($80,000) 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 26 $71,355 $0 

Purpose: Replace Fire Utility Truck ($71,355) 

4909 Improvements Other than Buildings 04 $2,100,000 $0 

Purpose: Pickpocket Dam Removal ($2,100,000) 

4909 Improvements Other than Buildings 05 $1,257,900 $0 

Purpose: Linden Street Bridge Repairs ($1,257,900) 

4909 Improvements Other than Buildings 06 $575,000 $0 

Purpose: DPW Fuel Island Station Replacement ($575,000) 

4909 Improvements Other than Buildings 08 $100,000 $0 

Purpose: Use of Excess Bonds Proceeds - Front/Pine/Linden 

4909 Improvements Other than Buildings 27 $50,000 $0 

Purpose: Transfer Station Improvements ($50,000) 

4914S To Sewer Proprietary Fund 08 $150,000 $0 

Purpose: Use of Excess Bonds Proceeds - Front/Pine/Linden 

4914S To Sewer Proprietary Fund 09 $500,000 $0 

Purpose: Use of Excess Bonds Proceeds - Clemson Lagoon 

4914S To Sewer Proprietary Fund 10 $245,000 $0 

Purpose: Use of Excess Bonds Proceeds - WWTP Effluent Flume Repair 

4914W To Water Proprietary Fund 03 $6,800,000 $0 

Purpose: Drinkwater Road Groundwater Development ($6,800,000) 

4915 To Capital Reserve Funds 23 $100,000 $0 

Purpose: Appropriate to Parle Improvements Fund ($100,000) 

4916 To Expendable Trusts 22 $100,000 $0 

Purpose: Appropriate to Sick Leave Trust Fund ($100,000) 

4916 To Expendable Trusts 25 $75,000 $0 

Purpose: Appropriate to Snow & Ice Deficit Fund ($75,000) 

4916 To Expendable Trusts 28 $25,000 $0 

Purpose: Appropriate to ADA Fund ($25,000) 

4916 To Expendable Trusts ~ ~~ $0 

Purpose: Sestercentennial Fund ($5,000) 

4916 To Expendable Trusts M ~™ $0 

Purpose: Appropriate to Trust Fund Swasey Parkway ($3,750) 

Total Proposed Special Articles $12,753,005 so! 

Page 6 of 11 



Individual Warrant Articles 

DRAFT 
PH:Of<:•SE:D BUIJGt:. I t,Or FINALIZED 

H"'lS f.:/)l>Y FU'\ i<t:.'11:::V! i'URPCSES 0\l..Y 

Account Purpose Article 
Proposed Appropriations for period 

ending 12/31/2025 

(Recommended) (Not Recommended) 

4210 Police 16 $133,009 $0 

Purpose: Collective Bargaining Agreement - Exeter Police Association 

4220 Fire 17 $158,248 $0 

Purpose: Collective Bargaining Agreement- Exeter Professional Firefighters Association Local 3491 

4311 Highway Administration 15 $70,451 $0 

Purpose: Collective Bargaining Agreement- SEIU Local 1984 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 20 $15,000 $0 

Purpose: Purchase ADA Accessible Van for Parks/Recreation ($120,000) 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 18 $56,250 $0 

Purpose: Replace Sidewalk Tractor#58 ($225,000) 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment 19 $40,000 $0 

Purpose: Replace Dump Truck #33 ($160,000) 

4914S To Sewer Proprietary Fund 15 $34,425 $0 

Purpose: Collective Bargaining Agreement- SEIU Local 1984 

4914W To Water Proprietary Fund 15 $33,643 $0 

Purpose: Collective Bargaining Agreement- SEIU Local 1984 

Total Proposed Individual Articles $541,026 sol 

Page 7 of 11 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration G-----J 2025 
S-636 

~~~~"~ 

DRAFT 
f ~C>i<);::·.:::u nJDGE l r-..c I r11't:l_Ll~ED 

l H5 COP)' ~-U-<: :,E'/IEVi PURPOSES ONLY 

Account Source 

Taxes 

3120 Land Use Change Taxes for General Fund 

3180 Resident Taxes 

3185 Yield Taxes 

3186 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 

3187 Excavation Tax 

3189 Other Taxes 

3190 Interest and Penalties on Delinquent Taxes 

Taxes Subtotal 

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 

3210 Business Licenses and Permits 

3220 Motor Vehicle Pennit Fees 

3230 Building Permits 

3290 Other Licenses, Permits, and Fees 

Licenses, Permits, and Fees Subtotal 

From Federal Government 

3311 Housing and Urban Development 

3312 Environmental Protection 

3313 Federal Emergency 

3314 Federal Drug Enforcement 

3319 Other Federal Grants and Reimbursements 

From Federal Government Subtotal 

State Sources 

3351 

3352 

3353 

3354 

3355 

3356 

3357 

3359 

3360 

3361 

3369 

3379 

Shared Revenues - Block Grant 

Meals and Rooms Tax Distribution 

Highway Block Grant 

Water Pollution Grant 

Housing and Community Development 

State and Federal Forest Land 
Reimbursement 

Flood Control Reimbursement 

Railroad Tax Distribution 

Water Filtration Grants 

Landfill Closure Grants 

Other Intergovernmental Revenue from 
State of NH 

Intergovernmental Revenues - Other 

State Sources Subtotal 

Revenues 
Actual Revenues for Estimated Revenues for Estimated Revenues for 

period ending period ending period ending 
Article 12/31/2024 12/31/2024 12/31/2025 

12 $745,350 $325,000 $300,000 

$0 $0 $0 

12 $1,659 $2,500 $2,500 

12 $42,262 $40,000 $40,000 

12 $0 $500 $500 

12 $544 $544 $500 

12 $103,603 $140,000 $100,000 

$893,418 $508,544 $443,500 

$0 $0 $0 

12 $3,489,816 $3,250,000 $3,500,000 

12 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 

12 $149,753 $136,470 $148,925 

$3,989,569 $3,736,470 $3,998,925 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

12 $1,582,651 $1,400,000 $1,600,000 

12 $317,497 $319,497 $310,000 

$1,063,381 $1,063,381 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

12 $28,870 $25,470 $25,000 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$4,713 $0 $0 

$0 $297,500 $0 

$2,997,112 $3,105,848 $1,935,000 

Page 8 of 11 



• . 
New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration [ 
____ ....... _. ...................... ] 

2025 
MS-636 

;l;all;l:UIIUI AS.UW=a.U ...,,,UUUH 

DRAFT 
!·'H'.Of<;.~;f.::D BUDGET t,0 r FINALl..:'.ED 

·1-'1$ (f,P)' I-CJ, f~E.'-ilE::V! f>UR,>OSE:S 0\'L.Y 

Revenues 
Actual Revenues for Estimated Revenues for Estimated Revenues for 

period ending period ending period ending 
Account Source Article 12/31/2024 12/31/2024 12/31/2025 

Charges for Services 

3401 Income from Departments 12 $483,884 $476,970 $504,850 

3402 Water Supply System Charges $0 $0 $0 

3403 Sewer User Charges $0 $0 $0 

3404 Garbage-Refuse Charges 12 $797,608 $877,350 $852,000 

3405 Electric User Charges $0 $0 $0 

3406 Airport Fees $0 $0 $0 

3409 Other Charges $0 $0 $0 

Charges for Services Subtotal $1,281,492 $1,354,320 $1,356,850 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

3500 Special Assessments $0 $0 $0 

3501 Sale of Municipal Property 12 $615 $495 $1,000 

3502 Interest on Investments 12 $680,928 $600,000 $450,000 

3503 Rents of Property 12 $6,957 $9,000 $7,000 

3504 Fines and Forfeits $0 $0 $0 

3506 Insurance Dividends and Reimbursements 12 $39,058 $19,411 $20,000 

3508 Contributions and Donations 12 $7,340 $10,000 $7,500 

3509 
Revenue from Misc Sources Not Otherwise 

12 $2,070 $7,070 $7,100 Classified 

Miscellaneous Revenues Subtotal $736,968 $645,976 $492,600 

lnterfund Operating Transfers In 

3911 From Revolving Funds $0 $0 $0 

3912 From Special Revenue Funds $0 $0 $0 

3913 From Capital Projects Funds 12 $93,971 $93,971 $16,129 

3914A From Airport Proprietary Fund $0 $0 $0 

3914E From Bectric Proprietary Fund $0 $0 $0 

39140 From Other Proprietary Fund $0 $0 $0 

3914S From Sewer Proprietary Fund 14, 15 $7,662,629 $6,427.049 $8,182,152 

3914W From Water Proprietary Fund 13. 15 $4,938,241 $4,962,773 $4,635,000 

3915 From Capital Reserve Funds $0 $0 $0 

3916 From Trust and Fiduciary Funds $0 $0 $0 

3917 From Conservation Funds $0 $0 $0 

lnterfund Operating Transfers In Subtotal $12,694,841 $11,483,793 $12,833,281 

Other Financing Sources 

Proceeds from Long-Term 09, 05, 
3934 04, 06, 03, $3,713,971 $24,965,800 $12,122,900 Notes/Bonds/Other Sources 10,07,08 

22, 26, 
9998 Amount Voted from Fund Balance 24, 30, 25, $451,000 $451,000 $450,105 

21 

9999 Fund Balance to Reduce Taxes 12 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 

Other Financing Sources Subtotal $4,764,971 $26,016,800 $13,173,005 

,,~<•>o~•••----•n•-•••• 

107200 Ex~ter 202(; MS-:33:) DP;\::T, 'F 1?Cl2'.:; 2:03 -:::-~ Pf./ Page 9 of 11 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 

Total Estimated Revenues and Credits 

Revenues 
$27,358,371 

DRAFT 
F n;;of;[::l) ELJDGE l f-..0 r HNALIZED 

'HIS CCJPY F::--_,.,,: r<E'ilE:V! l'Uf,F>OSES ONLY 

$46,851 t 751 $34,233,161 I 

Page 10 of 11 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 

2025 
MS-636 

---·· .. ·---···--·Budget Summary 

Item 

Operating Budget Appropriations 

Special Warrant Articles 

Individual Warrant Articles 

Total Appropriations 

Less Amount of Estimated Revenues & Credits 

Estimated Amount of Taxes to be Raised 

Period ending 
12/31/2025 

$36,732,452 

$12,753,005 

$541,026 

$50,026,483 
$34,233, 161 

$15,793,322 

Page 11 of 11 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 
j 202s 7 DRAFT 

MS-DTB C;:F,\.JL T h'J <">·T :~c,- '3JBMl""Tf D 
w· G~'"Y OR r.ir /lF'N FURP-~sr~ ~-

Def~ult Budget of _!he Mun~cipality 

Exeter 
For the period beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31 , 2025 

-------
RSA 40:13, IX (b) "Default budget" as used in this subdivision means the amount of the same appropriations as 
contained in the operating budget authorized for the previous year, reduced and increased, as the case may be, by 
debt service, contracts, and other obligations previously incurred or mandated by law, and reduced by one-time 
expenditures contained in the operating budget. For the purposes of this paragraph, one-time expenditures shall 
be appropriations not likely to recur in the succeeding budget, as determined by the governing body, unless the 
provisions of RSA 40:14-b are adopted, of the local political subdivision. 

This form was posted with the warrant on: _________ _ 

GOVERNING BODY OR BUDGET COMMITTEE CERTIFICATION 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined the information contained in this form and to the best 
of my belief it is true, correct and complete. 

Name Position Signature 

TH IS IS A QR.A.FT g,fi;:"FP'-'<::OH'R'rlT'-IFF~''F-.--r'rE::-'\r+E-+'tl-l~~'d--.3-E-"'3-'d'l->iti::-'f-------, 
THF DFFAl II RI JDGET PROCESS Ml JST RE CQMPI ET£.:...,..L...U.:11-J...L.!.1..-..1....=~:LJ...l.--l 

SETTING PORTA_ BEFORE A FINAL REPORT CAN BE GENERATED FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF CERTIFICATION AND PUBLIC POSTING 

This form must be signed, scanned, and uploaded to the Municipal Tax Rate Setting Portal: 
https ://www .proptax.orgl 

For assistance please contact: 
NH ORA Municipal and Property Division 

(603) 230-5090 
https://www.revenue.nh.gov/about-dra/municipal-and-property-division/municipal-bureau 

--~--- -
!Ot2Cl'.J t:,•,drr 2!'12,-, MS- .lTl, I ,M - 1 2 " • C '.: P'.1 Page 1 of 6 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 

e-===<Yl 2025 
MS-DTB ~=. 

....J 

Appropriations 

D AFT 
Dff!\UlT f;\F)GET r~c,T '3UBMIHED 

,-y1~:; CGFN ;<n ~F\'IFW FLRPOSES 
Cf'.! y 

---------------------·•'-·••··••·••-·----·-· .. ··-·••-•·· -----------
Prior Year Reductions or One-Time 

Account Purpose Adopted Budget Increases Appropriations Default Budget 

General Government 

4130 Executive $338,034 $10,408 $0 $348,442 

4140 Election, Registration, and Vital Statistics $485,827 ($49,220) $0 $436,607 

4150 Financial Administration $1,116,582 $55,349 $0 $1,171,931 

4152 Property Assessment $0 so $0 $0 

4153 Legal Expense $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000 

4155 Personnel Administration $717,937 $102,437 $0 $820,374 

4191 Planning and Zoning $308,582 $18,763 $0 $327,345 

4194 General Government Buildings $1,243,241 $17,979 $0 $1,261,220 

4195 Cemeteries $0 $0 $0 $0 

4196 Insurance Not Otherwise Allocated $82,852 $5,589 $0 $88,441 

4197 Advertising and Regional Associations $0 $0 $0 $0 

4198 Contingency $0 so $0 $0 

4199 Other General Government $0 so $0 $0 

General Government Subtotal $4,393,055 $161,305 $0 $4,554,360 

Public Safety 

4210 Police $3,951,078 $245,231 $0 $4,196,309 

4215 Ambulances $0 so $0 $0 

4220 Fire $4,235,231 $88,759 $0 $4,323,990 

4240 Building Inspection $279,825 ($4,553) $0 $275,272 

4290 Emergency Management $0 $0 $0 $0 

4299 Other Public Safety S478,265 $30,372 $0 $508,637 

Public Safety Subtotal $8,944,399 $359,809 $0 $9,304,208 

Airport/Aviation Center 

4301 Airport Administration $0 so $0 $0 

4302 Airport Operations $0 so $0 $0 

4309 Other Airport $0 $0 $0 $0 

Airport/Aviation Center Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 

Highways and Streets 

4311 Highway Administration $666,100 $36.480 $0 $702,580 

4312 Highways and Streets $2,001,196 $63,760 $0 $2,064,956 

4313 Bridges $0 $0 $0 $0 

4316 Street Lighting $169,000 $0 $0 $169,000 

4319 Other Highway, Streets, and Bridges $314,696 ($186) $0 $314,510 

Highways and Streets Subtotal $3,150,992 $100,054 $0 $3,251,046 

Page 2 of 6 



• c;--J New Hampshire 2025 DRAFT 
Department of 

S-DTB [')c'.:F,'\.JLT E,t.nc:::r f--.JC,T S'.JBMl'TTEJ 

. 

Revenue Administration -. "ll~~ COPY FCY< :-.:F\'IPN PlF<POSES 
,unsant~maMfU'-'tkSU Ct-. Y 

Appropriations 
Prior Year Reductions or One-Time 

Account Purpose Adopted Budget Increases Appropriations Default Budget 

Sanitation 

4321 Sanitation Administration $0 $0 $0 $0 

4323 Solid Waste Collection $1,488,354 $622 $0 $1,488,976 

4324 Solid Waste Disposal $0 $0 $0 $0 

4325 Solid Waste Facilities Clean-Up $0 $0 $0 $0 

4326 Sewage Collection and Disposal $0 $0 $0 $0 

4329 Other Sanitation $0 $0 $0 $0 

Sanitation Subtotal $1,488,354 $622 $0 $1,488,976 

Water Distribution and Treatment 

4331 Water Administration $0 $0 $0 $0 

4332 Water Services $0 $0 $0 $0 

4335 Water Treatment $0 $0 $0 $0 

4338 Water Conservation $0 $0 $0 $0 

Water Distribution and Treatment Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 

Electric 

4351 Electric Administration $0 so $0 $0 

4352 Generation $0 $0 $0 $0 

4353 Purchase Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 

4354 Electric Equipment Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 

4359 Other Electric Costs $0 $0 so $0 

Electric Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 

Health 

4411 Health Administration $129,899 $5,352 $0 $135,251 

4414 Pest Control $1,050 $0 $0 $1,050 

4415 Health Agencies and Hospitals $0 $0 $0 $0 

4419 Other Health $0 $0 $0 $0 

Health Subtotal $130,949 $5,352 $0 $136,301 

Welfare 

4441 Welfare Administration $144,094 $33,560 $0 $177,654 

4442 Direct Assistance $0 $0 $0 $0 

4444 Intergovernmental Welfare Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 

4445 Vendor Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 

4449 Other Welfare $98,325 $0 $0 $98,325 

Welfare Subtotal $242,419 $33,560 $0 $275,979 

Page 3 of 6 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration 

IC) AFT 
cs=F,VJI T F,l;')G;::T '-lC•' ':";JBM!TTFJ 

·::-1t:: C);:;v ;::OR ;:;:FVIF\V PLRPOSES 
Ol\ Y 

Appropriations 
Prior Year Reductions or One-Time 

Account Purpose Adopted Budget Increases Appropriations Default Budget 

Culture and Recreation 

4520 Parks and Recreation $688,829 $46,590 $0 $735,419 

4550 Library $1,185,689 $66,595 $0 $1,252,284 

4583 Patriotic Purposes $16,000 so $0 $16,000 

4589 Other Culture and Recreation $18,500 $0 $0 $18,500 

Culture and Recreation Subtotal $1,909,018 $113,185 $0 $2,022,203 

Conservation and Development 

4611 Conservation Administation $9,555 $116 $0 $9,671 

4612 Purchase of Natural Resources $0 $0 $0 $0 

4619 Other Conservation $0 $0 $0 $0 

4631 Redevelopment and Housing Administration $0 $0 $0 $0 

4632 Other Redevelopment and Housing $0 $0 $0 $0 

4651 Economic Development Administration $0 $0 $0 $0 

4652 Economic Development $0 $0 $0 $0 

4659 Other Economic Development $167,860 $11,326 $0 $179,186 

Conservation and Development Subtotal $177,415 $11,442 $0 $188,857 

Debt Service 

4711 Principal - Long Term Bonds, Notes, and Other Debt $1,436,716 ($215,404) $0 $1,221,312 

4721 Interest- Long Term Bonds, Notes, and Other Debt $632,556 ($76,446) $0 $556,110 

4723 Interest on Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes $0 $0 $0 $0 

4790 Other Debt Service Charges $1 $171,149 $0 $171,150 

Debt Service Subtotal $2,069,273 ($120,701) $0 $1,948,572 

Capital Outlay 

4901 Land $0 so $0 $0 

4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment $354,988 ($84,178) $0 $270,810 

4903 Buildings $0 $0 $0 $0 

4909 Improvements other than Buildings $0 $0 $0 $0 

Capital Outlay Subtotal $354,988 ($84,178) $0 $270,810 

Page4of6 



Account 

New Hampshire [uuu.-••· fll ~0;·5oi 
Department of 

Revenue Administration , ___ M_S_•D--~~ 

Appropriations 

RAFT 
n:.:+,\UL.T 8UDCET HUT SUBMITTED 

··,.,u~~ COD'( ;:o:~ RFV!EVIJ PURPOSES 
Cl\ Y 

Prior Year Reductions or One-Time 
Purpose Adopted Budget Increases Appropriations Default Budget 

Operating Transfers Out 

4911 To Revolving Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

4912 To Special Revenue Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

4913 To Capital Projects Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

4914A To Airport Proprietary Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

4914E To Electric Proprietary Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

49140 To Other Proprietary Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

4914S To Sewer Proprietary Fund $7,490,430 $583,644 so $8,074,074 

4914W To Water Proprietary Fund $4,962,773 ($349,372) $0 $4,613,401 

4915 To Capital Reserve Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

4916 To Expendable Trusts $0 $0 $0 $0 

4917 To Health Maintenance Trust Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

4918 To Non-Expendable Trust Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

4919 To Fiduciary Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

Operating Transfers Out Subtotal $12,453,203 $234,272 $0 $12,687,475 

Total Operating Budget Appropriations $35,314,065 $814,722 $0 $36,128,787 

Page 5 of 6 



New Hampshire 
Department of 

Revenue Administration U ·····""==·J 025 
S-DTB 

DR FT 
Cff/,,Jl T f;\__;~JC::.:r f---!C1T '3J8MITTED 

-~·-llS C8F''-' ;::~r·< ;-~F\'IEW PURPOSES 
Ct-,' y 

Account 

4240 

4140 

4130 

4150 

4220 

4194 

4411 

4311 

4312 

4196 

4721 

4550 

4902 

4790 

4659· 

4299 

4520 

4155 

4191 

4210 

4711 

4914S 

4914W 

4441 

t,:~~ 

Reasons for Reductions/Increases & One-Time Appropriations 
Explanation 

Decrease in employee benefit elections 

Decrease due to changes in department staffing; fewer elections in 2025 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; contractual obligations; healthcare increases; 27th pay-date in 
'25 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; change in employee benefit elections: healthcare increases; 
27th pay-date in '25 

Increases resulting from union contract, and wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; healthcare 
increases 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; change in employee benefit elections; healthcare increases; 
27th pay-date in '25 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; 27th pay-date in '25 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; change in employee benefit elections; 27th pay-date in '25 

Increases resulting from union contract, changes in employee benefit elections; healthcare increases 

Increase in insurance obligations 

Debt service previously authorized, offset by retiring obligations 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024: change in employee benefit elections; healthcare increases; 
27th pay-date in '25 

Decrease in equipment lease/purchase obligations 

Debt service previously authorized related to Police/ Fire Substation 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; 27th pay-date in '25 

Increases resulting from union contract, benefit changes; healthcare increases 

Wage & benefit change in voted in 2024; change in benefit elections; healthcare increases; 27th pay
date in '25 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; change in employee benefit elections; 27th pay-date in '25; 
change in workers comp. insurance costs 

Wage & benefit changes voted in 2024; healthcare increases; 27th pay-date in '25 

Increases resulting from union contract, and wage & benefit changes voted in prior 2024; healthcare 
increases 

Debt service previously authorized, offset by retiring obligations 

Increase from debt service previously authorized; wage & benefit changes; increases due to union 
contract 

Decrease debt service obligations: decrease in one-time capital outlays; offset by increases due to 
union contract 

Increase in welfare obligations of the Town: changes in department staffing approved in 2024 

Page 6 of 6 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Board 

~ 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

2025 Default 
2025SB Budget vs. 

Budget vs. 2025SB 2025SB 
2024 Budget Budget vs. Budget$ 

2023 2024 2024 2025 BRC 2025 SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) 

~jiji!~lff:.»ijd-At,proprfatlans 
-· 

•, 
.. 

I ·.··· 1 
. . - ·-

I 
-h - , .. ~ .. -=-· _. 

I 
. - .. -· ... -'': ~-- I ... , ·. . .. ·--r -- - - - .. . .. 

I" - I -· .. ~-- ··--• .... 

o.,~,~t~P.!~rn.m.~!it . . , ,., . ! ~- . ·-· '..-~ • I 

. . ., '. .. ,- ... - ,' ... ·. . . ,. 
Select Board 50,080 22,468 18,089 22,462 22,462 (6) -0.03% 22,462 -
Town Manager 271,116 314,675 266,658 451,632 459,152 144,477 45.91% 325,089 (134,063) 
Human Resources 168,174 206,664 171,4~9 206,880 216,602 9,938 4.81% 241,448 24,846 
Transportation - 1 - 1 1 - 0.00% 1 -
Legal 75,168 100,000 93,815 100,000 100,000 - 0.00% 100,000 -
Information Technology 322,559 345,583 247,663 423,959 430,044 84,461 24.44% 355,606 (74,438) 
Media Communications - 65,691 50,944 72,137 73,526 7,835 11.93% 71,237 (2,289) 
Trustees of Trust Funds 891 891 891 891 891 (0) -0.04% 891 -
Town Moderator 861 1,351 1,077 673 673 (678) -50.19% 673 -
Town Clerk 382,622 459,705 284,272 419,063 421,841 (37,864} -8.24% 415,701 (6,140) 
Elections/Registration 11,440 24,771 21,233 21,234 21,682 {3,089) -12.47% 201233 {1,449) 

:rc,,'t!i!~~~~tJ;qve~ment 1,282,912 1,541 '800 ·. · 1158~089 1,718,932 1,746,874 2os·o1,· . 1~~~0~% · 1.~.~, ... m13_;~> 
I 

.. . . · 1 ··---_':. I ... ,.. . --.. ; -I . -· .. T 
. ' ·:.:· · 1 

- . , .. · .. - ·1 
I I 

Finan@· .:. . ._. ~ _ .... ·- _ ·.·: ►• : ,·. .. ·'. 

.. .. 
~ - -· ~ - -·••- . ···-' - . ·--·- -- . - :_ - .... -- .: . ,'. 

Finance/Accounting 321,498 370,133 315,923 400,708 407,803 37,670 10.18% 405,174 (2,629) 
Treasurer 9,542 9,692 7,952 9,545 9,545 (147) -1.52% 9,693 148 
Tax Collection 100,626 120,611 96,877 133,460 135,214 14,603 12.11% 130,264 (4,950) 
Assessing 245,192 270,562 229,623 272,030 275,818 5,256 1.94% 271,194 {4,624) 

Tolijl!'~lhince 87tr,$59 . 770;998 · .·eso·:ar4. 'IJ16;1~. ·: ·828'\;s&Q·· · Sl-"382:· . ·lA4% ;818;325· . (~:~fl!') •· -·· :.~ '_ ....... '•-- -· --•·. - ... .. 
1 · 

. -- _···· --I -· . ". . .. · 1 , ... - . j ___ ., ____ I .. ----·· ..... · 1 .. - , __ . ,_ ,, _a·. ·'·r •·•:·•L ... r . ..... ~ -- I . --- ..... ·_: · r . 
. f!raiJ.'!11!9:~~Develop~erit .. . ' 

.. ', 

... .. -•- --•--· ..... ·--·· . - - ·-..,. --- ..... :.._ .. . ----------··- ._ ·- - ..... ~ ------·--- ·- -- ,,,._ __ -----·· - .-- ----·-··· ·-· - .. - .... •' . - --· -• 

Planning- 270,522 301,174 239,073 318,493 325,186 24,012 7.97% 320,030 (5,156) 
Economic Development 159,555 167,860 138,654 178,992 180,902 13,042 7.77% 179,186 (1,716) 
Inspections/Code Enforcement 249,815 279,825 221,565 287,562 268,728 (11,097) -3.97% 275,272 6,544 
Conservation Commission 6,301 9,555 8,141 9,794 9,796 241 2.52% 9,669 (127) 
Renewable Energy Expense - 1 - 1 1 - 0.00% 1 -
Zoning Board of Adjustment 4,635 4,376 2,567 4,262 4,271 (105) -2.41% 4,262 (9) 
Historic District Commission 308 1,923 311 1,557 1,557 (366) -19.02% 1,557 -
Heritage Commission 893 1,109 1,163 1,496 1,544 435 39.23% 1,496 {48) 

[~1?Plillrilii'-:rlfl)etelcf 'merit .892~029'. · · 1as~a23 · e11:~475 : : _ ao2~~'s1· ; ___ .·_?91J9-_~s~: ·.· · · 00':~$!182.•· X '- .. :. · ·3~~2% · ·.791,~473: . ·_ ._\/J$1~J . ·· ,._.,. ----- " -· 9 .. -••- ....... -.. p ......... -·- .. -- . ... -1· •---•- -.. . - -r . ... ----· . - ·-r ·- ....... --- -· - --- r I . - ---- I .-···---··--·--·----r---·--- -----· ·r-- ____ .. ____ .... ··r· ·-
. Ruliff~lafffi·L.: 

.. - . .. ·,,, , .. '' . . - .. 
•·-· ,. . -·. 

Page 1 of 4 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

DEPARTMENT 
Police 
Fire 
Dispatch 
Health 

Ta~t~t~_llc Safety· 

P~bU~::'fq~ • GeneraU~und 
Administration & Engineering 
Highways & Streets 
Snow Removal 
Solid Waste Disposal 
Street Lights 
Stormwater 

T~,~~i!JiOCiWorks -General Fund 

Mil~~nctnce 
General 
Town Buildings 
Maintenance Projects 
Mechanics/Garage r~•~11i1~1ijf•n~nce 

W,.,~,..~~~- .H~iilan:Servlces . 
Welfare 
Human Services 

mo•l~Wel~re a·Human Services:: 

P.~~,,&~ecreatlon 
Recreation 
Parks 

I~~fJ'~~-& Recreation 

t>tttatC~~~~c~atl~~ 
Other Culture/Recreation 

.. 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
--r. 

2023 2024 
Actual Budget 

3,733, 162 3,952, 128 
4,080,978 4,235,231 

391,762 478,265 

106,395 573,740 
1,952,058 2,001,196 

377,671 314,696 
1,432,155 1,488,354 

142,251 169,000 
51,317 92,360 

2024 
Actual 

3,140,695 
3,300,393 

344,083 
106,438 

8·891:·609 . , ··-- , .. -. r 

320,350 
1,601,543 

252,459 
1,063,948 

98,738 
8,301 

4,0tii',846 4.639}948 -3,345,338 ... I ·•· I . . . I 

--· 

504,775 537,894 
292,985 303,611 
81,792 100,000 

196,915 301,736 
1,076f167 . · 1,2~.a, 

I I 

sa.s10 I 
. . ,288~1'88 

- - . ' . ,. 

389,327 I 
229,310 I 

.618;696. ., . . . ' f -

. 1i,sss I 

144,094 I 
98,325 

. 242,419' . . I 

.. 431:24s I 
2s1.s81 I 
888~829 ... I 

·1·s:soo I 

·-
368,512 
250,204 
38,773 

173,789 
831i278' . - . I 

..1.49,496 I 
98,325 I 

.·247;821'' . . . . I 

367,137 ·1 

203,063 I 
· .·570200 - • ... I . 

10:sc>2 I 

2025 SB 
Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 
2025 BRC 2025 SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 
Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference 

4,197,809 4,191,320 239,192 6.05% 
4,339,763 4,283,434 48,203 1.14% 

503,218 508,637 30,372 6.35% 

602,564 
2,189,710 

289,511 
1,650,458 

147,000 
92,360 

4;971;603 - -- I 

593,608 
320,632 
100,000 
316,765 

1,331~005 . . I 

100,000 I 
278~!(03' · -- - . I 

614,292 
2,118,484 

289,511 
1,652,139 

147,000 
92,360 

4;913i188. --· ., . r 
•· 

572,007 
320,632 
100,000 
316,713 

1·,309~352. --- - I 

214,114 I 246,o4s I 
779;08&:. 757/11.4 , ..... ~ ... - . I .. 

1·a.soo r" 1s,soo I . 

40,552 
117,288 
(25,185) 
163,785 
(22,000) 

-· -----
34, 113 
17,021 

14,977 

168.11'1 
.. ·1 

5.86% 
-8.00% 
11.00% 

-13.02% 
0.00% 

'·5~92% . . I 

6.34% 
5.61% 
0.00% 
4.96% 
:5.32% 

I 

14~4a1 r ... · 11.03o/~I 

cs.536>1 -2.20% I 
ea,,s 10~01% 

-·-•---, I 
' -_··· ·1 

2025 Default 
Budget 

4,197,359 
4,323,990 

508,637 

2025 Default 
Budget vs. 

2025 SB 
Budget$ 
lncrease/
(Decrease) 

6,039 
40,556 

135,251 (7,641) 

· '9i1~~~~!. 
1 

:·_ __ . · lf.lll,~~: 

--•--•- ·~- ,_. - .. ' - . -~ .. ·- ;._ .. -
610,220 (4,072) 

2,064,956 (53,528) 
314,510 24,999 

1,488,976 (163,163) 
169,000 22,000 
92,360 -

4,740,022 .. , 
. ' .. 1· (173/l64) 

.. ·~···· ~-
540,596 (31,411) 
303,611 (17,021) 
100,000 -
317,013 300 

1,261,220 - r ._(~j~~2) 

s8,325 I c1.s1s> 
27S.979' . · _ ·-~ ,_·(~_;7:-11) ... I-··· -

24s,145 I c300> 
. 735,419 .·, ;( •. ~,55) . .. . .. r· 

1a.soo I 

Page 2 of 4 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

2025 Default 
2025 SB Budget vs. 

Budget vs. 2025 SB 2025 SB 
2024 Budget Budget vs. Budget$ 

2023 2024 2024 2025 BRC 2025 SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) 

Special Events 16,170 16,000 15,693 18,000 18,000 2,000 12.50% 16,000 (2,000) --
Total Other Culture/Recreation 33,735 34,500 26,294 36,500 36,500 2,000 5.80% 34,500 (2,000) 

I I I I I I I I I 
Public Library 

Library I 1.099.877 I 1,185,689 1 1.039.558 I 1.262.381 I 1,281,634 1 95,945 1 8.09%1 1,252,284 1 (29,350) 

Total Library 1,099,877 1,185,689 1,039,558 1,262,381 1,281,634 95,945 8.09% 1,252,284 (29,350) 
I I I I I I I I I 

Debt Service & Capital 
Debt Service 1,497,586 2,069,272 2,059,658 1,948,573 1,948,573 (120,699' -5.83% 1,948,573 -
Vehicle ReplacemenULease 203,683 248,495 242,266 296,317 230,317 (18,178' -7.32% 164,317 (66,000) 
Misc. Expense (4,685) 100,004 82,589 150,004 130,004 30,000 30.00% 100,004 (30,000) 
Cemeteries - 1 - 1 1 - 0.00% 1 -
Capital Outlay - Other 7,509 6,488 6,120 13,017 13,017 6,529 100.63% -- 6,488 (6,529) 

Total Debt Service & Capital 1,704,093 2,424,260 2,390,634 2,407,912 2,321,912 (102,348) -4.22% 2,219,383 (102,529) 
I I I I I I I I I 

Benefits & Taxes 
·-

Health Insurance BuyouUSick Leave/Flex 
Spendinq 247,849 192,152 193,884 207,801 239,389 47,236 24.58% 239,389 -
Insurance Reserves - - - - - - #DIV/0! - -
Unemployment 2,320 2,341 2,341 2,446 2,446 105 4.49% 2,446 -
Worker's Compensation 232,159 246,089 246,089 260,854 260,854 14,765 6.00% 260,854 -
Insurance 177,323 82,852 92,363 88,441 88,441 5,589 6.75% 88,441 -
Employee Wellness - 5,000 - - - (5,000' -100.00% 5,000 5,000 
Wage Reclassifications - - - 20,000 - - #DIV/0! - -

Total Benefits & Taxes 659,651 528,434 534,678 579,542 591,130 62,695 11 .86% 596,130 5,000 
I I I I I I I I I 

Total GF Operating Budget 20,531,985 22,860,862 18,295,327 24,164,024 23,983,368 1,122,506 4.91% 23,441 ,313 (542,055) 

I I I I I I I I I 
Water Fund -

Administration 427,020 537,491 326,908 592,689 599,274 61,782 11.49% 579,812 (19,462) 
Billing and Collection 172,778 211 ,744 158,173 221,058 222,970 11 ,226 5.30% 226,250 3,280 
Distribution 771 ,061 954,024 616,944 946,733 930,425 (23,599) -2.47% 952,485 22,060 
Treatment 902,565 1,028,751 764,148 1,144,746 1,148,821 120,070 11 .67% 1,134,422 (14,399) 

Page 3 of 4 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Bo~ 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

2025 Default 
2025 SB Budget vs. 

Budget vs. 2025 SB 2025 SB 
2024 Budget Budget vs. Budget$ 

2023 2024 2024 2025 BRC 2025 SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) 

Debt Service 1,431,038 1,640,513 1,613,896 1,427,932 1,427,932 (212,581 ) -12.96% 1,427,932 -
Capital Outlay 476,589 590,250 44,026 271 ,935 271 ,935 (318,315) -53.93% 292,500 20,565 

Appropriations from Reserves 20,000 - - - - - #DIV/0! - -
Total WF Operating Budget 4,201 ,051 4,962,773 3,524,096 4,605,092 4,601,357 (361,417) -7.28% 4,613,401 12,044 

I I I T T I I I I 
Sewer Fund 

~ 

Administration 454,683 566,755 357,692 624,324 630,909 64,153 11.32% 611 ,247 (19,662) 
Billing and Collection 168,478 208,169 152,827 217,483 219,395 11,226 5.39% 222,675 3,280 
Collection 522,772 717,012 370,689 745,781 729,473 12,461 1.74% 715,473 (14,000) 
Treatment 1,282,092 1,635,020 1,081,528 1,700,504 1,703,886 68,866 4 .21 % 1,725,049 21,163 
Debt Service 4,209,659 4,192,568 776,077 4,675,128 4,675,128 482,560 11 .51 % 4,675,128 -
Capital Outlay 48,949 170,906 112,519 188,936 188,936 18,030 10.55% 124,502 (64,434) 
Appropriations from Reserves 67,134 - 468,938 - - - #DIV/0! - -

Total SF Operating Budget 6,753,767 7,490,430 3,320,270 8,152,155 8,147,727 657,296 8.78% 8,074,074 (73,653) 

Page 4 of 4 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/• 

Orn ObJect Descrl1>Uon Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
GENERAL FUND 
General Government 
~AIAr.t Btu11 i 

$3K each 4-Select Person, $4K for 1-
01413010 51000 SB- Sal/Wages Elected 16,250 16,000 13,333 16,000 16,000 - 0.0% 16,000 - Chair Person 

Salaries Total 16,250 16,000 13,333 16,000 16,000 - 0.0% 16,000 -
01413010 52120 SB- Life Insurance 42 42 31 36 36 (6) -14.3% 36 -
01413010 52200 SB-FICA 1,008 992 827 992 992 - 0.0% 992 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01413010 52210 SB- Medicare 236 232 194 232 232 - 0.0% 232 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 1,285 1,266 1,051 1,260 1,260 (6] -0.5% 1,260 -

01413010 55055 SB- Consulting Services 28,999 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 - Expenses related to tax deeded properties, 
01413010 55050 SB- Conf/Room/Meals - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 - NHMA seminars, mileage reimbursement 
01413010 55106 SB- Eauipment Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Placeholder for equipment needs 
01413010 55267 SB-Signs - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Proclamations, recognitions, special 
events for committees, E911 Committee 

01413010 55273 SB- Soecial Exnense 3,545 5,000 3,705 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - activities, memberships 
General Expenses Total 32,544 5,202 3,705 5,202 5,202 - 0.0% 5,202 -

Select Board Total 50,080 22,468 18,089 22,462 22,462 (6) 0.0% 22,462 - A 

Tnwn Mana11er 
3 FT: Town Mgr, Assistant TM and 
Executive Assistant plus reclassification of 
ATM salary for increased management 

01413011 51110 TM- Sal/Wages FT 196,448 229,369 195,648 378,721 386,936 157,567 68.7% 248,214 (138,722) responsibilities 
2 PT: Recording secretaries@$19.44 per 
hour (SB/BRC/Advlsory meetings), 

01413011 51200 TM- Sal/Wages PT 4,454 12,500 3,912 6,122 6,214 (6,286) -50.3% 6,122 (92) Vacation repl for Ex Asst 
Salaries Total 200,902 241,869 199,559 384,843 393,150 151,281 62.5% 254,336 (138,814) 

01413011 52100 TM- Health Insurance 48,883 57,606 46,138 59,539 59,539 1,933 3.4% 59,539 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01413011 52110 TM- Dental Insurance 3,554 3,978 3,093 5,331 5,331 1,353 34.0% 3,243 (2,088) 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01413011 52120 TM- Life Insurance 201 184 160 288 288 104 56.5% 192 (96) No Increase 
01413011 52130 TM- LTD Insurance 1,128 959 814 1,842 1,842 883 92.1% 960 (882) No increase 
01413011 52200 TM-FICA 11,963 14,996 11,907 23,860 24,375 9,379 62.5% 15,769 _____ J~.60~ Based on wages: 6.2% 
01413011 52210 TM- Medicare 2,798 3,507 2,785 5,580 5,701 2,194 62.5% 3,688 (2,013) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01413011 52300 TM- Retirement Town 27,078 31,034 26,471 49,727 50,n8 19,744 63.6% 32,579 (18,199] Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 95,605 112,264 91,368 146,167 147,854 35,590 31.7% 115,970 (31,884] 

ICMA/MMANH/Primex conference, 
01413011 55050 TM- Conf/Room/Meals 3,287 3,000 1,000 6,500 6,500 3,500 116.7% 3,000 (3,500) seminars; increased hotel costs: add ATM 
01413011 55058 TM- Contract Services 1 1,750 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - FY24 is appraisal by Primex 

NHMA (townwide), ICMA (TM/ATM), 
01413011 55088 TM-Dues 15,853 17,500 17,359 18,600 18,600 1,100 6.3% 17,500 (1,100) MMANH (TM.IATM) annual dues 

ICMA/MMANH/Primex conference, 
01413011 55091 TM- Education/Training - 300 - 2,300 2,300 2,000 666.7% 300 (2,000) seminars 
01413011 55106 TM- Eauicment Purchase 194 300 - 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - Small eQuipment 

Page 1 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/• 

Ora Oblect Descrlotlon Actual Budget October Budaet Budaet {Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Budget/bond notices, public hearings, 

01413011 55171 TM- Legal/Public Notices 2,800 700 595 700 700 - 0.0% 700 - CDBG hearings 
Cell phone for Sr. Exec Assistant, Town 

01413011 55190 TM - Mobile Communications 570 1,000 1,000 1,000 (1,000) Manager, Asst Town Manager 
Pitney Bowes Postage & Folding 
Machines; Canon printer $253.87/mo; 
Great America Brother printers 

01413011 55198 TM - Office Equipment Leases 14,983 13,000 9,984 13,000 13,000 . 0.0% 13,000 - $111.90/mo (TM only) 
01413011 55200 TM-Supplies 3,232 4,500 3,001 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - Supplies for town offices coaoer, etc.) 

Phone reimbursement (TM, EA) -
01413011 55212 TM - Phone Reimbursement 1,410 1,560 115 - - (1,560) -100.0% 1,560 1,560 discontinued 2024 

TM office postage; postage rates have 
01413011 55224 TM- Postage 276 300 53 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - increased to 69 centsnetter 
01413011 55246 TM- Reference Material - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 - NHMA, ICMA publications 
01413011 55291 TM- Subscriotions 232 250 286 325 325 75 30.0% 250 (751 Exeter News-Letter, Gooale Storage 

Printing of annual Town Report (Select 
01413011 55302 TM- Town Report ExDense 3,176 3,500 3,526 3,600 3,600 100 2.9% 3,500 (100) Print Solutions) 
01413011 55308 TM- Travel Reimbursement 576 700 1,368 500 500 (200 -28.6% 700 200 Mileage reimbursement for TM/ATM/EA 

General Expenses Total 46,019 45,711 39,608 51,726 51,726 6,015 13.2% 45,711 (6,015] 

01413011 55998 TM- Due from Water Fund (35,7051 (42,585) (31,938' (65,552) (66,789) (24,205 56.8% (45,464) 21,325 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01413011 55999 TM- Due from Sewer Fund (35,705) (42,585) (31,938' (65,552) (66,789) (24,205 56.8% (45,464) 21,325 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (71,409) (85,169) (63,8TT' (131,104) (133,578) (48,409 56.8% (90,928) 42,650 
-

Town Manager Total 271,116 314,675 266,658 451,632 459,152 144,4n 45.9% 325,089 (134,063] A 

w ......... ResoureeR 
01415515 51110 HR- Sal/Wages FT 153,653 174,534 147,807 142,981 147,840 (26,694' -15.3% 200,815 52,975 2 FT: HR Director (9 mos); HR Generalist 
01415515 51200 HR- Sal/Wages PT - 23,992 12,537 27,333 25,322 1,330 5.5% 25,322 - PT position 

Salaries Total 153,653 198,526 160,344 170,314 173,162 {25,364] -12.8% 226,137 52,975 

01415515 52100 HR- Health Insurance 18,288 19,346 16,122 49,492 57,836 38,490 199.0% 32,184 (25,652) 18. 7% Increase in the premium rate 
01415515 52110 HR- Dental Insurance 3,177 3,088 2,574 2,721 3,655 567 18.4% 4,177 522 5.0% increase In the premium rate 
01415515 52120 HR- Life Insurance 225 184 160 168 168 (16 -8.7% 192 24 No increase 
01415515 52130 HR- LTD Insurance 860 903 815 540 540 (363 -40.2% 882 342 No Increase 
01415515 52200 HR-FICA 9,442 12,309 9,934 10,559 10,736 (1,573 -12.8% 14,020 3,284 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415515 52210 HR- Medicare 2,208 2,879 2,323 2,470 2,511 (368 -12.8% 3,279 768 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01415515 52300 HR- Retirement Town 21,170 23,614 19,998 18,666 19,286 (4,328) -18.3% 26,358 7,072 Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 55,369 62,323 51,926 84,616 94,732 32,409 52.0% 81,092 (13,640) 

01415515 55050 HR- Conf Rooms/Meals 3,252 1,320 2,531 1,350 1,350 30 2.3% 1,320 (301 Director - IPMA-HR 
01415515 55055 HR- Consulting Services 2,950 - . 
01415515 55088 HR-Dues 700 1,334 981 930 930 (404] -30.3% 1,334 404 SHRM, IPMA·HR, ANHPEHRA 

IPMA-HR Conference Registration, NHMA 
Conference Registration, Training for new 
director and generalist 

01415515 55091 HR- Education/Training 1,118 2,800 - 6,000 6,000 3,200 114.3% 2,800 (3,200) Annual Labor Employment Conference 
Employee Service and Recognition, annual 

01415515 55097 HR- Employee Relations 566 1,500 908 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - laatherlngs 
01415515 55099 HR- Employee Notices 553 1,500 - 1,000 1,000 (500] -33.3% 1,500 500 
01415515 55106 HR- Office Equipment Purchase - 350 - 1,000 1,000 650 185.7% 350 (650) Office Set up fior new HR Director 
01415515 55190 HR-Mobile Communications 810 613 265 462 462 (1511 -24.6% 613 151 HR Director Mobile Phone - 38.53/mo 

Page2of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

-·----

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
;;i:u;;i:5 Default 

20255B 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025$8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/• o/o· Default Increase/• 

Orn Object Description Actual Budget October Budaet Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
01415515 55200 HR- Office Supplies 1,114 400 879 1,000 1,000 600 150.0% 400 (6001 To set up a new staff 
01415515 55224 HR-Postage 199 230 88 240 240 10 4.3% 230 (101 

Currently, PD is conducting screening but 
01415515 55226 HR- Pre-Emolovment Screenina 3,276 600 885 2,000 2,000 1,400 233.3% 600 (1,400) not sustainable 
01415515 55246 HR- Reference Materials . 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 . 
01415515 55270 HR Software A11reement/Contract - 180 - - - (1801 -100.0% 180 180 
01415515 55308 HR- Travel Reimbursement 39 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 -

General Expenses Total 14,577 11,027 6,537 15,682 15,682 4,655 42.2% 11,027 (4,6551 

01415515 55998 HR- Due from Water Fund (27,713) (32,606) (23,6891 (31,866) (33,487) (8811 2.7% (38,404' (4,9171 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01415515 55999 HR- Due from Sewer Fund (27,713) (32,606) (23,6891 (31,866) (33,487) (8811 2.7% (38,4041 (4,9171 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (55,426) (65,212) (47,3791 (63,732) (66,974) (1,7621 2.7% (76,808) (9,834] 

Human Resources Total 168,174 206,664 171,429 206,880 216,602 9,938 4.8% 241,448 24,846 A . 
TranRnnrta Inn -

Request from COAST bus service to come 
01419919 55040 GG - Transoortation - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - from Transportation Fund 05 

Transportation Total . 1 - 1 1 . 0.0% 1 - A 

Leaal 
Professlonal legal services for Mitchell 

01415320 55170 GG- Legal Exoense 75,168 100,000 93,815 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% 100,000 - Municipal Group and other leaal advisors 
Legal Total 75,168 100,000 93,815 100,000 100,000 . 0.0% 100,000 - A 

lnformAtl011 Technolo iv 

2 FT: IT Coordinator; Network 
01415025 51110 IT- Sal/Wages FT 192,215 199,751 166,214 189,367 196,107 (3,644' -1.8% 193,103 (3,004] Administrator 

Salaries Total 192,215 199,751 166,214 189,367 196,107 (3,644] -1.8% 193,103 (3,0041 

01415025 52100 IT- Health Insurance 17,484 13,229 - 34,203 34,203 20,974 158.5% 34,203 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01415025 52110 IT- Dental Insurance 959 2,984 474 4,177 4,177 1,193 40.0% 4,177 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01415025 52120 IT- Life Insurance 228 138 160 192 192 54 39.1% 192 - No increase 
01415025 52130 IT - LTD Insurance 876 920 781 898 898 (22] -2.4% 898 - No increase 
01415025 52200 IT-FICA 11,649 12,385 10,251 11,741 12,159 (2261 -1.8% 11,972 (1861 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415025 52210 IT- Medicare 2,724 2,896 2,397 2,746 2,844 (531 -1.8% 2,800 (441 Based on wages: 1 .45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01415025 52300 IT- Retirement Town 26,497 27,026 22,489 24,870 25,729 (1 297) -4.8% 25,346 (383] Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 60,418 59,578 36,551 78,827 80,202 20,624 34.6% ·--~.588 (6141 

01415025 55048 IT- Computer Software 21,060 16,800 9,819 26,520 26,520 9,720 57.9% 16,800 (9,720] See Narrative 
01415025 55058 IT- Contract Services 8,000 8,000 1,350 59,039 59,039 51,039 638.0% 8,000 (51,039] See Narrative 
01415025 55088 IT-Dues 424 424 435 450 450 26 6.1% 424 (26] See Narrative 
01415025 55091 IT- Education/TraininA 2,626 3,000 48 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - See Narrative 
01415025 55106 IT- EQuipment Purchase 139 600 - 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - See Narrative 
01415025 55136 IT· GIS Software 2,860 7,100 - 2,900 2,900 (4,2001 -59.2% 7,100 4,200 See Narrative 

12.5% allocated to Water/Sewer Funds 
01415025 55159 IT- Internet Services 26,277 27,878 15,948 33,675 33,675 5,798 20.8% 27,878 (5,797) each; See Narrative 
01415025 55190 IT- Mobile Communications - 960 308 960 960 - 0.0% 960 - See Narrative 
01415025 55195 IT- Network Supplies 9,309 6,200 2,280 17,515 17,515 11,315 182.5% 6,200 (11,3151 See Narrative 
01415025 55200 IT- Office Supplies 1,581 1,500 1,559 1,000 1,000 (5001 -33.3% -- -·-

1_,5()0 500 See Narrative 
12.5% allocated to Water/Sewer Funds 

01415025 55213 IT- Phone Utilization 32.470 41 250 32030 32.400 32400 (8 850) -21.5% 41250 8.850 each; See Narrative 

Page3 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 301 2024 Verslon#4 
.tu"::, Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
12.5% allocated to Water/Sewer Funds 

01415025 55383 IT- Email Archiving 7,336 7,425 2,819 1,575 1,575 (5,850) -78.8% 7,425 5,850 each; See Narrative 
01415025 55270 IT- Software Agreement 2,265 6,280 2,508 9,479 9,479 3,199 50.9% 6,280 (3,199) See Narrative 
01415025 55308 IT- Travel Reimbursement 44 250 373 500 500 250 100.0% 250 (250) 

General Exoenses Total 114,391 127,667 69,477 189,613 189,613 61,947 48.5% 127,667 (61,946) 

01415025 57003 IT- CO- Computers 10,790 19,400 20,254 31,300 31,300 11,900 61.3% 19,400 (11,900) See Narrative 
01415025 57006 IT- CO- Eauipment 248 4,020 3,791 1,900 1,900 (2,120) -52.7% 4,020 2,120 See Narrative 

Capital Outlav Total 11,037 23,420 24,044 33,200 33,200 9,780 41.8% 23,420 (9,780] 

01415025 55998 IT- Due from Water Fund (27,7511 (32,416) (24,312] (33,524] (34,539] (2,122) 6.5% (34,0861 452 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01415025 55999 IT- Due from Sewer Fund (27,7511 (32,4161 (24,312' (33,524] (34,5391 (2,122) 6.5% (34,0861 452 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (55,5021 (64,8321 (48,624' (67,0481 (69,0781 (4,246) 6.5% (68,172' 906 

Information Technology Total 322,559 345,583 247,663 423,959 430,044 84,461 24.4% 355,606 (74,438] A 

Media Com nunlcatlons 
01419902 51110 COM- Sal/Wages FT - 38,387 32,263 40,330 41,483 3,096 8.1% 40,847 (6361 Split 50/50 with CATV Fund 

Salaries Total - 38,387 32,263 40,330 41,483 3,096 8.1% 40,847 (636' 

01419902 52100 COM- Health Insurance 14,402 9,512 17,102 17,102 2,701 18.8% 17,102 - 18.7% Increase in the premium rate 
01419902 52110 COM- Dental Insurance 550 458 577 577 2B 5.0% 577 - 5.0% Increase In the premium rate 
01419902 52120 COM- Life Insurance 46 40 48 48 2 4.3% 48 - No Increase 
01419902 52200 COM-FICA 2,380 1,904 2,500 2,572 192 8.1% 2,533 (391 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419902 52210 COM- Medicare 557 445 585 602 45 8.1% 592 (9' Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01419902 52300 COM- Retirement Town 5,194 4,365 5,295 5,442 248 4.8% 5,361 (81) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total - 23,127 16,725 26,107 26,343 3,216 13.9% 26,213 (130] 

01419902 55002 COM- Advertising 1,000 500 500 (500) -50.0% 1,000 500 Facebook Ads, Phvsical Posters, Flyers, et 
Onl!ne software (Ma!IChlmp, Canva, etc.) 

01419902 55048 COM- Computer Software 1,740 1,080 1,800 1,800 60 3.4% 1,740 (60) see narrative for details 
Membership to the National Association of 
Government Communicators, slight 

01419902 55088 COM-Dues 160 168 180 180 20 12.5% 160 (20) increase in price 
UNH Digital Marketing Classes, costs per 
class have gone up over last year with 
anticipated increase for FY25 by $10-15 

01419902 55091 COM- Education/Training 887 628 900 900 13 1.5% 887 (13) per class 
01419902 55106 COM- Equipment Purchase 1,800 1,800 1,800 (1,800) Podcastlng equipment 

50% CATV, 50% Media communications-
used for communicating with Town 
Manager's office and other departments 
during the day and out of normal office 
hours- used for managing Town Social 

01419902 55190 COM- Mobile Communications 390 80 400 400 10 2.6% 390 (10) Media Accounts 
01419902 55291 COM- Subscriptions 120 120 120 - (120) Podbean yearty subscription 

General Exoenses Total - 4,177 1,956 5,700 5,700 1,523 36.5% 4,177 (1,5231 

Media Communications Total . 65,691 50,944 72,137 73,526 7,835 11.9% 71,237 (2,2891 A 

Trustee of rust Funds 
01413030 51000 TT- Sal/Waaes Elected 828 828 828 828 828 - 0.0% 828 - Wages for Trustee of Trust funds 

Page4 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version #14 
2025 Defautt 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budnet IDecreasel Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Salaries Total 828 828 828 828 828 - 0.0% 828 -

-
01413030 52200 TT-FICA 51 51 51 51 51 - 0.0% 51 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01413030 52210 TT- Medicare 12 12 12 12 12 - 0.0% 12 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 63 63 63 63 63 (Ol -0.5% 63 -

Trustee of Trust Funds Total 891 891 891 891 891 10) 0.0% 891 . A 

Town Moderator 

01414040 51000 MO- Sal/Wages Elected 800 1,255 1,000 625 625 (630) -50.2% 625 - 2 deliberative, 1 election, 1 special election 
Salaries Total 800 1,255 1,000 625 625 (630) -50.2% 625 -

-
01414040 52200 MO-FICA 50 78 62 39 39 (39) -50.2% 39 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01414040 52210 MO- Medicare 12 18 15 9 9 (9) -50.2% 9 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 61 96 n 48 48 (48) -50.0% 48 -

Town Moderator Total 861 1,351 1,on 673 673 (678) -50.2% 673 . A 

Town Clerk 
Includes 1 FT Town Clerk 1 FT Deputy TC 

01414051 51110 TC- Sal/Wages FT 229,525 252,988 170,618 248,785 251,129 (1,859} -0.7% 248,601 (2,528} + 2 FT Asst Clerks 
01414051 51300 TC• Sal/Wages OT 708 1,000 1,688 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - OT for Deputy TC and Assistant Clerks 
01414051 51400 TC- Longevity Pay 1,050 - - - - . . 

Salaries Total 231,283 253,988 172,305 249,785 252,129 (1,859) -0.7% 249,601 (2,528) 

01414051 52100 TC- Health Insurance 64,712 107,075 47,054 72,060 72,060 (35,015) -32.7% 72,060 . 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
01414051 52110 TC- Dental Insurance 5,900 7,066 3,221 4,437 4,437 (2,629) -37.2% 4,437 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01414051 52120 TC- Life Insurance 263 230 157 240 240 10 4.3% 240 - No increase 
01414051 52130 TC- LTD Insurance 818 761 640 744 744 (17} -2.2% 744 - No increase 
01414051 52200 TC-FICA 13,464 15,747 10,041 15,487 15,632 (115} -0.7% 15,475 (157} Based on wages: 6.2% 
01414051 52210 TC- Medicare 3,149 3,683 2,348 3,622 3,656 (27} -0.7% 3,619 (37} Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01414051 52300 TC- Retirement Town 31,892 34,365 22,618 32,802 33,057 (1,308) -3.8% 32,735 (322) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 120,198 168,927 86,079 129,392 129,826 (39,101) -23.1% 129,310 (516) 

01414051 55017 TC- Bank Fees 600 600 600 - (600) $SO/month for check scanner 
toner cartridges, validator ribbons, 

01414051 55049 TC- Computer Supplies 98 1,200 259 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - calculator ribbons, paper 
Mandatory Fall conf, spring Reg, 1 1., 

Certification Training, NECTCA 
Conference, NEMCl&A Certification, 
Clerkworks Training, Election Training, 
IIMC Conference, Cost of Rooms/Meals 

01414051 55050 TC- Conf/Room/Meals 2,466 3,000 991 4,000 4,000 1,000 33.3% 3,000 (1,000) have Increased 
Dog tags, Cost of tags & Shipping have 

01414051 55084 TC- Dog Tags 760 800 864 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - increased 
IIMC-$310; NHCTCA-$100; NEACTC-

01414051 55088 TC-Dues 55 360 327 500 500 140 38.9% 360 (140} $85.00 

Page5of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
.t:U.t::> Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Descrlotion Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet {Decrease) Exolanation 

Registration Fees for Mandatory Fall Conf, 
Spring Regional, TC Certification Training, 
NECTCA Conf, NEMCl&A Certification, 
Elections, IIMC Conference Registration 
fees have increased plus adding 2 clerks 
to Associations (Increasing the certification 

01414051 55091 TC- Educatlonffraining 852 3,000 1,321 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - levels of clerks) 
Computers, printers, copiers, office 

01414051 55106 TC- Equipment Purchase 1,406 2,000 487 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - furniture 
01414051 55190 TC- Mobile Communications 462 1,000 1,000 1,000 (1,000 $78.18 p/mth x 12 mths $940.00 

Great America Financial Serv.- 3 printers; 
01414051 55198 TC- Office Equipment Lease 4,761 4,000 2,696 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - Leaf - 1 Sharp printer 

Validators, Mobile printers used for 
01414051 55199 TC- Office Equip Maintenance 559 480 157 480 480 - 0.0% 480 - elections, 

copy paper, general office supplies, 
envelopes All supplies & shipping has 

01414051 55200 TC- Office Supplies 2,511 2,500 2,450 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - increased 
idog civil forfeiture letters, letters & fonns, 
weekly State work, monthly Vital work, 
weekly MV registrations Certified postage 
has increased to $9.64, law allows $7 for 
cert mail. Postage In general has 

01414051 55224 TC- Postage 5,946 6,000 6,531 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - increased. 
01414051 55241 TC- Record Retention 2,572 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - Book Restoration 

lnterware Development Contract for MV, 
Boats, Vitals, Transfer Station Pennits, 
Credit Cards, Reports, Support, Dogs On-
line prgm, CC machines Cost of contract 

01414051 55270 TC- Software AgreemenVContract 9,002 9,650 9,342 10,006 10,006 356 3.7% 9,650 (356) and support Increased 
Mandatory Fall Conf, .spring Reg, Tc; 
Certification Training, NECTCA 
Conference, NEMCl&A Certification, 
Clerkworks Training, Election Training, 
IIMC Conference Cost of gas has 

01414051 55308 TC- Travel Reimbursement 153 1,300 - 1,300 1,300 - 0.0% 1,300 - increased 
General Expenses Total 31,141 36,790 2§__.887 __ 39,886 39,886 3,096 8.4% 36,790 (3,096) 

Town Clerk Total 382,622 459,705 284,272 419,063 421,841 (37,864) -8.2% 415,701 (6,140) A 

Elections 
Supervisors of the Checklist - 1 mandated 
election, 2 deliberative, 1 special election, 

01414052 51000 EL- Sal/Wages Eleded 353 3,040 4,113 3,520 3,520 480 15.8% 3,520 - 3 mandatory sessions p/electlon 
Ballot Clerks for 1 mandated election, 1 

01414052 51210 EL- Sal/Wages Temp 2,508 7,384 3,128 2,688 2,688 (4,696) -63.6% 2,688 - special election 
Salaries Total 2,861 10,424 7,241 6,208 6,208 (4,216) -40.4% 6,208 -

01414052 52200 EL-FICA 177 646 449 385 385 (261] -40.4% 385 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01414052 52210 EL- Medicare 42 151 105 90 90 (61) -40.4% 90 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 219 797 554 475 475 (322, -40.4% 475 -
01414052 55002 EL- Advertlslna - 150 - 150 150 - 0.0% 150 - Leaal Notices 

Page6of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
2u<lll::t Default 

20255B 20255B Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 20255B 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 20255B Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
01414052 55198 EL- Office Eciuipment Lease 448 448 - (448) New contract - $37.30/mo 

Copy paper, envelopes, general office 
supplies, and all supplies needed for 

01414052 55200 EL- Office Suoolies 505 1,500 4,320 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - election, poll pad receipt paper 
Mandated by SOS, sending absentee 
ballots and any other letters required to be 

01414052 55224 EL- Postage 244 5,000 1,524 2,500 2,500 (2,500) -50.0% 5,000 2,500 sent by the Checklist Sups 
Mandated by SOS to pay for coding, 
printing, collating, shipping costs and any 
other Special Town Elections held by the 
Town Cost of printing coding & shipping 

01414052 55322 EL- Votina Expenses 6,637 3,000 6,544 6,500 6,500 3,500 116_.7% 3,000 (3,500) has increased. 
Mandated by the State of NH for servicing 
and maintaining of the Accuvote Machines, 
$3,000 software maintenance on new 

01414052 55323 EL- Voting Machines Maint. 975 3,900 1,050 3,900 3,900 - 0.0% 3,900 - polling pads 
General Expenses Total 8,361 13,550 13,438 14,550 14,998 1,448 10.7% 13,550 (1,448) 

01414052 57006 EL- CO- Equipment - 1 1 1 - (1) 

Capital Outlay Total - - - 1 1 1 - (1) 

Elections Total 11,440 24,771 21,233 21,234 21,682 (3,089) -12.5% 20,233 (1,449) A 

Total General Government 1,282,912 1,541,800 1,156,069 1,718,932 1,746,874 205,074 13.30% 1,553,341 (193,533) 

Finance Department 

Flnance/Accountlna 
3 Fl: Finance Dir, sr Accountant, 
HR/Payroll Accountant - 5% annual 
increase over 2024, plus reclassification of 
Director's salary for increased 
management responsibilities with AS, TX 

01415001 51110 Fl- Sal/Wages FT 247,596 268,034 228,590 296,501 304,978 36,944 13.8% 300,307 (4,671) and IT. 
Salaries Total 247,596 268,034 228,590 296,501 304,978 36,944 13.8% 300,307 (4,671) 

01415001 52100 Fl- Health Insurance 45,581 50,139 41,782 59,539 58,791 8,652 17.3% 58,791 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01415001 52110 Fl- Dental Insurance 3,493 3,657 3,048 3,840 3,840 183 5.0% 3,840 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01415001 52120 Fl- Life Insurance 325 275 240 288 288 13 4.7% 288 - No increase 
01415001 52130 Fl- LTD Insurance 914 903 755 882 882 (21) -2.3% 882 - No increase 
01415001 52200 Fl-FICA 14,866 16,618 13,738 18,383 18,909 2,291 13.8% 18,619 (290) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415001 52210 Fl- Medicare 3,477 3,886 3,213 4,299 4,422 536 13.8% 4,354 (68) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01415001 52300 Fl- Retirement Town 34,129 36,265 30,928 38,932 40,013 3,748 10.3% 39,417 (596) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 102,784 111,744 93,704 126,163 127,145 15,401 13.8% 126,191 (954) 

Annual and Single Audits Fees - Year 2 of 
3-Year fee schedule. Allocated 50/25/25% 

01415001 55014 Fl- Audit Fees 12,562 28,995 17,110 27,000 27,000 {1,995) -6.9% 28,995 1,995 between GF, Water & Sewer - Total $54K 
480/mo based on 2024 average thru July -
plus small increase for move to ACH 

01415001 55017 Fl- Bank Fees 5514 5.000 6428 6000 6,000 1000 20.0% 5000 (1,000) vendor payment method 

Page 7 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version tl4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025 SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/• 

Orn Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
01415001 Fl- Bond RatinA - - - - - - Moved to contracted services 

Conferences/Meals for Finance Staff -
01415001 55050 Fl- Conf/Room/Meals 64 500 260 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - Maintaining same budget as 2024 

GASB 74/75 valuation disclosure for 
annual financial audit. 50% GF; 25% 
Water; 25% Sewer (only need statement 
disclosure in 2025); NEW - Cost to obtain 
an Issuer Level (Indicative) bond rating -

01415001 55058 Fl- Contract Services 1,090 6,600 4,150 4,925 4,925 (1,675) -25.4% 6,600 1,675 number confirmed with Moody's 
Covers audit/accounting, government 
finance, and payroll memberships: 

01415001 55068 Fl- Dues 366 925 225 625 625 (300) -32.4% 925 300 AICPA: 350; NHGFOA: 85; GFOA: 195 
Training and Education for 3 Finance staff -
Maintaining same budget as 2024 plus 

01415001 55091 Fl- EducationffraininA 745 4,000 794 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - absorb any Treasurer costs 
01415001 55190 Fl- Mobile Communications 269 960 960 960 (960) Town cell phone implemented in 2024 
01415001 55198 Fl- Office Equipment leases 1,078 1,130 379 450 450 (680) -60.2% 1,130 680 New contract - $37.30/mo 

Maintain PY budget level - folders, check 
stock, envelopes, paper, tax forms, deposit 

01415001 55200 Fl-Supplies 4,326 4,000 2,121 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - tickets, kitchen/office supplies 
Based on average monthly spend thru July 

01415001 55224 Fl-Postage 2,134 2,350 2,051 2,500 2,500 150 6.4% 2,350 (150) '24 

Munis Software Agreement @ 5% increase 
over 2024 actual - LESS one Munis 

01415001 55270 Fl- Software Agreement 29,447 31,050 31,050 32,000 32,000 950 3.1% 31,050 (950) service no longer needed as of Fall 2024 
Travel for 3 Finance staff - Maintaining 
same budget as 2024 plus absorb any 

01415001 55306 Fl- Travel Reimbursement 336 750 - 750 750 - 0.0% 750 - Treasurer costs 
General Expenses Total 57,663 85,300 64,837 83,710 83,710 (1,590 -1.9% 85,300 1,590 

01415001 55998 Fl- Due from Water Fund (43,273) (47,472) (35,604) (52,833) (54,015) (6,543) 13.8% (53,312) 703 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01415001 55999 Fl- Due from Sewer Fund (43,273) (47,472) (35,604) (52,833) (54,015] (6,543) 13.8% (53,312) 703 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (86,546) (94,944] (71,208) (105,666) (108,030) (13,086) 13.8% (106,624) 1,406 

Finance/Accounting Total 321,498 370,133 315,923 400,708 407,803 37,670 10.2% 405,174 (2,629) A 

TrAASUrer -
01415002 51000 TR- Sal/Wages Elected 8,864 8,864 7,387 8,864 8,864 - 0.0% 8,864 - Wages PT Treasurer 

Salaries Total 8,864 8,864 7,387 8,864 8,864 - 0.0% 8,864 -
01415002 52200 TR-FICA 550 550 458 550 550 - 0.0% 550 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415002 52210 TR- Medicare 129 129 107 129 129 - 0.0% 129 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 678 678 565 679 679 1 0.1% 679 -
01415002 55088 TR- Dues - 50 - 1 1 (49) -98.0% 50 49 Moved to Finance Dues line 
01415002 55091 TR- Educationffraining - 100 - 1 1 (99) -99.0% 100 99 Absorbed into Finance budget 

General EXOenses Total - 150 - 2 2 (148) -98.7% 150 148 

Treasurer Total 9,542 9,692 7,952 9,545 9,545 (147) -1.5% 9,693 148 A 

Tax Collection 

Page 8 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Orn Object Descrlotlon Actual Budaet October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet IDecreasel ExDlanaUon 
2 FT: Deputy Tax Collector, Collections 

01415003 51110 TX- SaVWaaes FT 105,589 121,515 99,156 130,196 133,120 11,605 9.6% 133,120 . Specialist 
01415003 51300 TX- SaVWaaes OT 179 300 142 100 100 (2001 -66.7% 100 . 

Salaries Total 105,767 121,815 99,298 130,296 133,220 11,405 9.4% 133,220 . 

01415003 52100 TX- Health Insurance 31,096 30,118 25,092 36,064 36,064 5,946 19.7% 36,064 . 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
01415003 52110 TX- Dental Insurance 1,719 1,668 1,390 1,751 1,751 83 5.0% 1,751 . 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01415003 52120 TX- Life Insurance 169 138 120 144 144 6 4.3% 144 . No increase 
01415003 52200 TX-FICA 6,154 7,553 5,819 8,078 8,260 707 9.4% 8,260 . Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415003 52210 TX- Medicare 1,439 1,766 1,361 1,889 1,932 165 9.4% 1,932 . Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01415003 52300 TX- Retirement Town 14,573 16.482 13,430 17,117 17,476 994 6.0% 17,476 . Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 55,150 57,724 47,213 65,043 65,627 7,903 13.7% 65,627 -
Tax Online ACH $15/monthly + Check 

01415003 55017 TX- Bank Fees . 200 15 780 780 580 290.0% 200 (580) scanner 
TOT~ \l''ln I UA--c;onecmJ 

01415003 55050 TX- Conf/Room/Meals 160 200 . 200 200 . 0.0% 200 . Association) 

01415003 55058 TX- Contract Services - 1 . 1 1 . 0.0% 1 - Coveraae for Collections Clerk 
Expenses related to Tax deeded properties 

01415003 55073 TX• Deeded Property - 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 . 0.0% 2,000 - -4th qtr 
01415003 55088 TX-Dues 40 40 - 40 40 - 0.0% 40 . NHTC Dues - no Increase 

Training and workshops• new Deputy Tax 
01415003 55091 TX- Education/Trainina 120 1,000 470 2,000 2,000 1,000 100.0% 1,000 (1,000) Collector in Q4 2024 

Legal services for liens.deeds and 
01415003 55170 TX-LeaalExoenses - 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 . bankruptcies, if any 

Great American lease - $75/mo. + New 
01415003 55198 TX- Office Eciuipment Leases 2,155 2,200 1.417 1,900 1,900 1300) -13.6% 2,200 300 check scanner (1x fee in '25) 

Paper, Ink, Envelopes, Storage Boxes, 
01415003 55200 TX- Supplies 1,438 1,900 1,085 1,900 1,900 . 0.0% 1,900 . printer 

Mailing delinquency, lien, and deed 
notices, tax bills. Increase due to postage 

01415003 55224 TX- Postaae 9,488 11,500 8,792 13,000 13,000 1,500 13.0% 11,500 ,1,5om increases 
Liens & deeds recordings at Registry of 

01415003 55247 TX- Registry of Deeds 721 1,000 573 1,000 1,000 . 0.0% 1,000 . Deeds - postage increase 
Processing fees and materials for tax bills. 

01415003 55297 TX- Tax Billina Services 3,208 3,300 1,680 5,470 5,470 2,170 65.8% 3,300 (2,170} New Resident Access software 
Maintain prior year budget level for certified 

01415003 55298 TX- Tax Lien/Deeded Searches 4,150 5,500 3,661 5,500 5,500 . 0.0% 5,500 - mail and notice fees 
General Expenses Total 21,480 30,841 17,693 35,791 35,791 4,950 16.1% 30,841 (4,950'. 

01415003 55998 TX- Due from Water Fund (40,8861 (44,885'. (33,664'. (48,835] (49,712; (4,827; 10.8% (49,712: . 25% Water Fund Offset 
01415003 55999 TX- Due from Sewer Fund (40,8861 (44,8851 (33,6641 (48,835) (49,7121 (4,8271 10.8% (49,7121 - 25% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds Total (81,7711 .(89,7701 (67,3271 (97,670] (99,4241 (9,654' 10.8% (99,4241 -
Tax Collection Total 100 626 120,611 96,877 133,460 135,214 14,603 12.1% 130,264 (4,950] A 

AAAAASlna 

01415005 51110 AS· Sal/Waaes FT 83,729 89,821 75,491 94,366 97,064 7,243 8.1% 95,578 (1,4861 1 FT: Assessor 
01415005 51210 AS- SaVWaaes Temo - 1 . 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Salaries Total 83,729 89,822 75,491 94,367 97,065 7,243 8.1% 95,579 (1,4861 -

01415005 52100 AS- Health Insurance 19396 21336 17780 25336 25336 4000 18.7% 25336 . 18.7% increase In the premium rate 

Page9of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 301 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

20255B 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 20255B Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
01415005 52110 AS- Dental Insurance 1,050 1,099 916 1,154 1,154 55 5.0% 1,154 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01415005 52120 AS- Life Insurance 108 92 80 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01415005 52130 AS- LTD Insurance 757 718 609 701 701 (17) -2.4% 701 - No increase 
01415005 52200 AS-FICA 5,451 5,569 4,422 5,851 6,018 449 8.1% 5,926 (92) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415005 52210 AS- Medicare 1,275 1,302 1,034 1,368 1.407 105 8.1% 1,386 (22) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01415005 52300 AS- Retirement Town 11,543 12,153 10,214 12,391 12,735 582 4.8% 12,545 (190) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 39,580 42,269 35,054 46,897 47,447 5,178 12.2% 47,144 (303) 

01415005 55050 AS- Conf/Room/Meals - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - Meetings rooms & meals 
Assessor contract with MRI - contractual 

01415005 55058 AS- Contract Services 97,387 96,200 83,908 100,500 100,500 4,300 4.5% 96,200 (4,300) increase 
01415005 55088 AS-Dues 290 290 50 290 290 - 0.0% 290 - IMO & NHAAO dues 
01415005 55091 AS- Education/Traininn 25 650 675 675 675 25 3.8% 650 (25) Course or seminar 
01415005 55106 AS- Equipment Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Small eQu!pment 
01415005 55128 AS- Fuel - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Assessor position 
01415005 55171 AS- Legal/Public Notices - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - Public Notices in news media 

Yrly updates $4,000 & Building placement 
01415005 55180 AS-Mapping 4,930 5,300 4,800 5,300 5,300 - 0.0% 5,300 - $20.00 per bdlg 
01415005 55190 AS- Mobile Communications 540 540 - (540} Town cell phone implemented in 2024 
01415005 55198 AS- Office Equipment Lease 1,078 1,078 379 1,078 1,078 - 0.0% 1,078 - Printer Lease, $89.80/mo 
01415005 55200 AS- Supplies 23 300 319 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - Toner, envelopes, general supplies 
01415005 55224 AS- Postage 1,079 5,300 692 1,000 1,000 (4,300) -81.1% 5,300 4,300 Sales questionnaires and cvclical letters 
01415005 55247 AS- Registry of Deeds - 50 85 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - Plans, deeds and recording fees 

-

Independent Appraiser for Riverwoods in 
01415005 55250 AS- Revaluation - 10,000 9,000 - - (10,000) -100.0% - - 2024 
01415005 55270 AS- Software Agreement 17,071 19,200 19,169 21,470 21,470 2,270 11.8% 19,200 (2,270) Vision contract $9,916 web fee $4,458 clou 
01415005 55308 AS- Travel Reimbursement - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Use of personal car - 1 employee 

General Expenses Total 121,884 138,471 119,on 130,766 131,306 (7,165} -5.2% 128,471 (2,835) 

Assesslnn Total 245,192 270,562 229,623 272,030 275,818 5,256 1.9% 271,194 (4,624) A 

Total Finance 676,859 770,998 650,374 815,743 828,380 57,382 7.4% 816,325 (12,055) 

Planning & Development 

Plannlna 
2 FT: Town Planner; 1 FT 
ConservaUon/Sustainabiltiy Planner plus 
reclassification of Director salary for 

01419101 51110 PL- Sal/Wages FT 176,270 188,707 158,875 201,918 207,691 18,984 10.1% 204,510 (3,181) Increased management responsibilities 
1 Admln Asst @ 20 hr/wk; Recording Sec 

01419101 51200 PL- Sal/Wages PT 23,023 28,601 20,946 29,625 29,385 784 2.7% 28,923 (462) @$19.44 per hr 
Salaries Total 199,293 217,308 179,822 231,543 237,076 19,768 9.1% 233,433 (3,643) 

01419101 52100 PL- Health Insurance - - - -
01419101 52110 PL- Dental Insurance 1,900 3,978 1,658 4,177 4,177 199 5.0% 4,177 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01419101 52120 PL· Life Insurance 216 184 160 192 192 8 4.3% 192 - No increase 
01419101 52130 PL- LTD Insurance 991 928 784 907 907 (21) -2.3% 907 - No increase 
01419101 52200 PL- FICA 12,356 13,473 11,149 14,356 14,699 1,226 9.1% 14,473 (226} Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419101 52210 PL- Medicare 2,890 3,151 2,607 3,357 3,438 287 9.1% 3,385 (53) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01419101 52300 PL- Retirement Town 24.286 25532 21,496 26,513 27249 1 717 6.7% 26,843 (406} Jul-Dec 

Page 10 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
~025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '1#4 
2025 Default 

2025S8 2025S8 Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora ObJect Description Actual Budaet October Budnet Budnet (Decrease} Difference Budnet (Decrease} Exolanatlon 
Benefits Total 42,639 47,246 37,854 49,502 50,662 3,416 7.2% 49,977 (685) 

APA Conference, Seminars/training. 
01419101 55050 PL- Conf/Room/Meals 209 800 400 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - Covers 2 FT employees, 1 PT 
01419101 55058 PL- Contract Services - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Rockingham Planning Commission annual 
01419101 55088 PL- Dues 13,127 13,442 13,494 13,650 13,650 208 1.5% 13,442 (208) dues and APA dues. 

Seminars/Training for planning staff, board 
01419101 55091 PL- Education/Trainina so 500 - 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - members 

Annual suppport and maintenance for 
building permiUzoning software. Paid 

01419101 55136 PL- GIS Software 3,300 3,500 - 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - annually in the fall. 
No grants targeted at this time but to be 
ready if one comes along. The HDC Grant 
Matching line was reduced to $1 so that 
any needed grant matching funds could 

01419101 55138 PL- Grant Matchina 2,458 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - come from this line item. 
Placeholder for third party inspection as 

01419101 55155 PL- lnsoection Services - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - needed 
Primarily for Planning Board cases but also 

01419101 55171 PL- Legal/Public Notices 1,860 2,000 1,889 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - covers Plannlng dept. 
01419101 55180 PL-Mapping - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Hasn't been spent in prior vears due to in-h 
01419101 55190 PL- Mobile Communications 609 605 605 605 (6051 New cell phone for Plannina Director 

Misc office supplies. Covers Planning & 
01419101 55200 PL- Office Supplies 711 2,000 990 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - Building depts. 

Provide source or rund1ng for Clean Energy 
NH membership, annual Local Energy 
Solutions conference, & attendance at 
New England Municipal Sustainbility 

01419101 55384 PL- Sustainability Expense 1,150 1,250 620 1,250 1,250 - 0.0% 1,250 - meetings 
Covers Planning and Building departments 
as well as Planning Board packages and 

01419101 55224 PL-Postaae 5,154 4,000 2,079 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - administration of cases. 
Used for large printing jobs such as Zoning 

01419101 55227 PL-Printing - 400 477 400 400 - 0.0% 400 - Ordinance 
Includes Exeter Newspaper and Registry 
Review, RSA books and other reference 

01419101 55246 PL- Reference Material 439 425 442 440 440 15 3.5% 425 (15) material 
May be used for follow up on the 
recommendations of the downtown 
parking, traffic, and pedestrian study, the 
bike and pedestrian master plan, or other 

01419101 55289 PL-Studies - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - needs as they arise. 
To cover mileage for staff to attend 

01419101 55308 PL- Travel Reimbursement 93 800 398 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - training, workshops, meetings, etc. 
General Expenses Total 28,590 36,620 21,397 37,448 37,448 828 2.3% 36,620 (828) 

Plannlnn Total 270,522 301,174 239,073 318,493 325,186 24,012 8.0% 320,030 (5,156) A 

Economic Develonment 
01465207 51110 ED- Sal/Wages FT 101,702 108,602 91,276 114,097 117,360 8,758 8.1% 115,562 {1,7981 1 FT: ED Director 

Salaries Total 101,702 108,602 91,276 114,097 117,360 8,758 8.1% 115,562 {1,798) 

Page 11 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 
01465207 52100 ED- Health Insurance 26,279 28,907 24,089 34,203 32,184 3,277 11.3% 32,184 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01465207 52110 ED- Dental Insurance 1,900 1,989 1,658 2,088 2,088 99 5.0% 2,088 - 5.0% increase in the Premium rate 
01465207 52120 ED- Life Insurance 108 92 80 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01465207 52130 ED- L TO Insurance 926 868 725 847 847 (21) -2.4% 847 - No increase 
01465207 52200 ED-FICA 5,872 6,733 5,262 7,074 7,276 543 8.1% 7,165 (111' Based on wages: 6.2% 
01465207 52210 ED- Medicare 1,373 1,575 1,231 1,654 1,702 127 8.1% 1,676 (261 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01465207 52300 ED- Retirement Town 14,021 14,694 12,350 14,981 15,397 703 4.8% 15,168 (229) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 50,480 54,858 45,394 60,943 59,590 4,732 8.6% 59,224 (366) 

01465207 55050 ED- Conf/Room/Meals - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Classes complete 
Consulting (property appraisals, marketing, 

01465207 55055 ED- Consulting Services 2,105 2,500 1,620 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - etc.) 
01465207 55091 ED- Education/Training 3,053 - 1 1 1 - (1] Classes complete 
01465207 55190 ED- Mobile Communications 598 600 364 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - Cell Phone for ED Director 

Limited need - printer, paper, pens, ink, 
01465207 55200 ED- Office Supplies - 500 - 1 1 (499) -99.8% 500 499 etc. 
01465207 55308 ED -Travel Reimbursement 1,616 600 - 650 650 50 8.3% 600 (501 

General Expenses Total 7,373 4,400 1,984 3,952 3,952 (4481 -10.2% 4,400 448 

Total Economic Development 159,555 167,860 138,654 178,992 180,902 13,042 7.8% 179,186 (1,7161 A 

I & r.,ufn E nfo,.,,..ment 
01424002 51110 Bl- Sal/W_agE3S FT 169,110 178,410 149,975 187,185 192,586 14,176 7.9% 189,716 (2,870) 2 FT: Building Inspector, Deputy CEO 

Unfilled position pulled in 2024, was: 1 PT: 
01424002 51200 Bl- Sal/Wages PT - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Electrical lnsp. (24 Hrs/Wk) 

Salaries Total 169,110 178,411 149,975 187,186 192,587 14,176 7.9% 189,717 (2,870} 

01424002 52100 Bl- Health Insurance 38,932 42,825 35,688 50,672 25,336 (17,489} -40.8% 25,336 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01424002 52110 Bl- Dental Insurance 2,016 2,199 1,832 2,309 2,309 110 5.0% 2,309 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01424002 52120 Bl- Life Insurance 182 184 80 96 96 (88) -47.8% 96 - No increase 
01424002 52130 Bl- LTD Insurance 880 818 686 799 799 (19) -2.3% 799 - No increase 
01424002 52200 Bl-FICA 10,562 11,061 9,374 11,606 11,940 879 7.9% 11,762 (178) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01424002 52210 Bl- Medicare 2,470 2,587 2,192 2,714 2,793 206 7.9% 2,751 (42) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01424002 52300 Bl- Retirement Town 23,319 24,139 20,292 24,579 25,267 1,128 4.7% 24,901 (366' Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 78,361 83,813 70,145 92,775 68,540 (15,2731 -18.2% 67,954 (586' 

NE Building Officials Association 
01424002 55091 Bl- Education/Training - 250 - 250 250 - 0.0% 250 - Conference 
01424002 55058 Bl- Contracted Services 15,000 - 5,000 5,000 (10,0001 -66.7% 15,000 10,000 Inspection services 
01424002 55088 Bl- Dues 105 300 30 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - RNI and NHBOA Dues 
01424002 55128 Bl-Fuel 1,110 950 903 950 950 - 0.0% 950 - Fuel for Bl 
01424002 55190 Bl- Mobile Communications 598 600 361 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - Cell Phone for Bl 
01424002 55308 Bl- Travel Reimbursement 300 500 - 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - MIieage for Electrical inspector 
01424002 55319 Bl- Vehicle Maintenance 230 1 152 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

General Exoenses Total 2,344 17,601 1,445 7,601 7,601 (10,000) -56.8% 17,601 10,000 

Inspections & Code Enf Total 249,815 279,825 221,565 287,562 268,728 (11,097) -4.0% 275,272 6,544 A 

Conservation Commission 
01461105 51200 CC- Sal/Wages PT 578 504 540 600 602 98 19.4% 600 (2] Recording secretaries@ $19.44/hr 
01461105 51210 CC- Sal/Wages Temp - 2 520 - 2 530 2530 10 0.4% 2530 - Interns 2@12/hr, 15 hrs/wk for 7 wks 

Page 12 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025 SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect DescrfDtion Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
Salaries Total 578 3,024 540 3,130 3,132 108 3.6% 3,130 (2) 

01461105 52200 CC-FICA 36 187 33 194 194 7 3.6% 194 (0) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01461105 52210 CC- Medicare 8 44 8 45 45 2 3.6% 45 (0) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 44 231 41 239 239 8 3.3% 239 -

Covers costs for outreach activities (Spring 
Tree program, pollinator projects, star 
gazing event, etc), trail maintenance 
(bridge, signs, paint, etc) and conservation 
land administration work such as property 
monitoring and maintenance needs like 
invasive brush removal, and supplies such 

01461105 55051 CC- Conservation land Administration 1,502 2,050 1,690 2,050 2,050 - 0.0% 2,050 - as tools, gloves and equipment. 
01461105 55058 CC- Contract Services 975 1,000 3,108 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - Small contracts for Raynes repairs 

For board to join related organizations: 
ESRLAC ($150), NHACC ($900), SELT 

01461105 55088 CC-Dues 1,200 1,200 875 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - ($150) 
Training for board members and/or 
Cons/Susi planner (NHACC-3 members 

01461105 55091 CC- Education/Training 178 250 60 250 250 - 0.0% 250 - and other workshops) 
Covers approx 1 legal notice typ In 

01461105 55171 CC- Legal/Public Notices - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - newspaper 
Mailings to ConCom members (mostly 

01461105 55224 CC-Postage - 20 - 20 20 - 0.0% 20 - elect distr) 
01461105 55247 CC- Registrv of Deeds - 30 1 30 30 - 0.0% 30 - Fee for registry of deeds (typically printing ~ 

Mowing White, Perry, Irvine and 1/2 of 
01461105 55254 CC- Roadside Mowing 1,825 1,700 1,825 1,825 1,825 125 7.4% 1,700 (125) Morrissette. This is paid out Oct-Dec 

General Expenses Total 5,680 6,300 7,560 6,425 6,425 125 2.0% 6,300 (125) 

Conservation Commission Total 6,301 9,555 8,141 9,794 9,796 241 2.5% 9,669 (127) A 

Renewable Enernv ExDBnse 
01419118 55547 ENR- Renewable Enerav Expense - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Potential Grant Matching 

General Expenses Total - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
Renewable Enernv Expense - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 . A 

Zonlna Board of Adlustment 
01419103 51200 ZO- Sal/Wages PT 666 907 326 800 809 (98) -10.8% 800 (9l Recording secretaries@ $19.44 per hour 

Salaries Total 666 907 326 800 809 (98) -10.8% 800 (9) 

01419103 52200 ZO-FICA 41 56 20 50 50 (6) -10.8% 50 (1 l 
01419103 52210 zo- Medicare 10 13 5 12 12 (1) -10.8% 12 (0) 

Benefits Total 51 69 25 62 62 (7) -10.6% 62 -
01419103 55091 ZO- Education/Trainina - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Min. training allotment for board members 
01419103 55171 ZO- Legal/Public Notices 2,837 1,200 586 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 -

Expenses are estimated for ZBA case 
administration (majority of costs paid by 

01419103 55224 ZO-Postage 1,081 2,000 1,630 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - applicant) 
General Exoenses Total 3918 3400 2,217 3400 3400 - 0.0% 3400 -

Page 13 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 301 2024 Verslon#4 
2u25 Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora ObJect Descrl1>tlon Actual Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 

Zoning Total 4,635 4,376 2 567 4,262 4,271 (105) -2.4% 4,262 (91 A 

Historic District Cnmmlsslon 
01419104 51200 HD- SaVWages PT 210 740 243 400 400 (340) -45.9% 400 - Recording secretaries @ $19.44 per hour 

Salaries Total 210 740 243 400 400 (340) -45.9% 400 -
01419104 52200 HD-FICA 13 46 15 25 25 (21) -45.9% 25 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419104 52210 HD- Medicare 3 11 4 6 6 (5) -45.9% 6 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 16 57 19 31 31 (26) -45.2% 31 -

01419104 55050 HD-Cont Rooms/Meals - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 -
Min. amt for dues associated with various 

01419104 55088 HO-Dues - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - organizations work with HDCs 
01419104 55091 HD- Education/Training - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - min. training allotment for board members 

CLG (Certified Local Government) Grant 
match. We intend to apply for a CLG but 

01419104 55138 HD- Grant Matchlna - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - will utilize in-kind match. 
01419104 55171 HD- Legal/Public Notices - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 -

Expenses are estimated for HOC case 
01419104 55224 HD-Postage 82 350 49 350 350 - 0.0% 350 - administration 
01419104 55227 HD-Printing - 125 - 125 125 - 0.0% 125 - Printing needs for HOC as they arise 
01419104 55246 HD- Reference Material - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 -

General Expenses Total 82 1,126 49 1,126 1,126 - 0.0% 1.126 -

Historic District Commission Total 308 1,923 311 1,557 1,557 (366) -19.0% 1,557 - A 

Herltaae CommlARinn 
01419106 51200 HC- SaVWages PT 777 740 1,081 1,100 1,144 404 54.5% 1,100 (44' Recording secretaries @ $19.44 per hour 

Salaries Total 777 740 1,081 1,100 1,144 404 54.5% 1,100 (44' 

01419106 52200 HC-FICA 48 46 67 68 71 25 54.5% 68 C3l Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419106 52210 HC- Medicare 11 11 16 16 17 6 54.5% 16 (1 l Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 59 57 83 84 88 31 55.4% 84 (4) 

01419106 55058 HC- Contract Services - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01419106 55088 HC-Dues - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 -
01419106 55091 HC- Education/Training - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Min. training allotment for board members 
01419106 55138 HC- Grant Matching - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Expenses are estimated for Heritage 
01419106 55224 HC-Postage - 25 - 25 25 - 0.0% 25 - Commission case administration 
01419106 55227 HC-Printing - 35 - 35 35 - 0.0% 35 -

General Expenses Total - 312 - 312 312 - 0.0% 312 -
01419106 55347 Transfer Out 57 - -

57 - - - - - - - Year End Balance Transfer 

Heritage Commission Total 893 1,109 1,163 1,496 1,544 435 39.2% 1,496 (48) A 

Total Planning & Development 692,029 765,823 611,475 802,157 791,985 26,162 3.4% 791473 (512) 

Police Department 

Page 14 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund B~dg~t:_ Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025S8 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budaet Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Police 

29 FT (Chief, Deputy, Sergeants, 
51110 Sal/Wages FT 1,863,250 1,966,070 1,563,099 2,036,094 2,048,979 82,909 4.2% 2,040,789 (8,190) Lieutenant, Officers, Admln) 
51111 Sal/Wages Shift Differential 13,831 13,520 12,868 17,300 17,300 3,780 28.0% 17,300 - Per Police CBA 
51121 Sal/Wages Incentive 12,094 3,000 900 2,500 2,500 (500] -16.7% 2,500 - Per Police CBA 

2023f24 retention bonus program - funded 
51123 Sal/Wages Bonus 13,913 - - - - - - - by ARPA 

Overtime for Personal Leave Replace and 
51130 Personal Reolacement OT 1,590 18,825 12,984 19,749 19,749 924 4.9% 19,749 - Fitness day 

Cost to cover the replacement of officers 
51150 Vacation Replacement OT 51,945 48,837 31,619 50,043 50,043 1,206 2.5% 50,043 - on vacation 

1 Auxiliary Officer who teaches DARE 
spring/fall, part time officer who is the 

51200 Sal/Wages PT 48,357 95,022 81,123 96,633 97,190 2,168 2.3% 97,190 - I prosecutor 
Encompasses multiple types of overtime 
such as SERT, training, added shift 
coverage, staying late for reports, etc. 
State has Increased mandated training by 

51300 Sal/Waoes OT 123,343 91,927 110,698 102,345 102,345 10,418 11.3% 102,345 - 8 hours to 24 hours for each officer. 
51400 Longevity Pay 1,800 1,200 - 1,250 1,250 50 4.2% 1,250 - For hires before 1/1/2010 only 

Cost to cover the replacement of officers 
51410 Sick Replacement OT 26,084 23,857 18,091 22,020 22,020 (1,837) -7.7% 22,020 - on sick leave 
51420 Holiday Pay 70,671 66,924 12,666 68,544 68,409 1,485 2.2% 68,409 - Contract item 

Contract item - $1000 stipend for being an 
51425 Firearm Incentive - 3,000 500 2,500 2,500 (500) -16.7% 2,500 - instructor (4 instructors) 

Contract item - Field Training Officer 
Incentive. 1 hr of OT per shift while training 
a new officer - 2 open positions to train at 

51430 Field Training Incentive OT - 7,997 - 5,125 5,125 (2,872) -35.9% 5,125 - approx. 12 week period 
Comfort Dog @ 2.5 hrs a week overtime, 
plus Case law@ 3 hrs a week OT for new 
Police canine, the rest is supported 100% 

51435 Canine OT 5,418 5,600 5,078 12,415 12,436 6,836 122.1% 12,436 - by a grant ($32,000) 
Per Police CBA - stipends for having a 

51450 Education Incentive 14,042 16,500 15,500 16,000 17,500 1,000 6.1% 17,500 - college degree 
To cover periods when officers are al 
training. State increased mandated 

51440 Training Coverage - OT 17,454 10,230 7,802 16,441 16,441 6,211 60.7% 16,441 - training to 24 hours for each officer. 
Salaries Total 2,263,793 2,372,509 1,872,926 2,468,959 2,483,787 111,278 4.7% 2,475,597 (8,190) 

52100 Health Insurance 441,532 520,619 436,763 654,636 630,778 110,159 21.2% 630,778 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
52110 Dental Insurance 35,078 40,584 33,183 46,569 45,078 4,494 11.1% 45,078 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
52120 Life Insurance 1,669 1,515 1,288 1,584 1,584 69 4.6% 1,584 - No increase 
52130 LTD Insurance 1,092 959 808 960 960 1 0.1% 960 - No Increase 
52200 FICA 9,110 10,248 8,047 10,590 10,706 458 4.5% 10,642 (641 Based on wages: 6.2% 
52210 Medicare 31,737 34,401 26,653 35,800 36,015 1,614 4.7% 35,896 (1191 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
52300 Retirement Town 21,308 22,363 18,701 22,436 22,642 279 1.2% 22,511 (131 l Jul-Dec 

Based on wages: 31.28% Jan-Jun; 30.95% 
52310 Retirement Police 656,554 660,681 516,283 684,786 688,281 27,600 4.2% 686,064 (2,217) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 1,198,080 1,291,370 1,041,725 1,457,361 1,436,044 144,674 11.2% 1,433,513 (2,531) 

Page 15of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

20255B 20255B Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Obiect Description Actual Budget October Budnet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Guardian Tracking increase to $2,049 and 
PowerOMS document management 
software yearly account renews in August 
increased to $5,200 - is necessary to 

55001 Accreditation 6,483 6,483 6,482 7,249 7,249 766 11.8% 6,483 (766) continue towards CALEA accreditation. 
Covers empl. awards, retirements. dept 

55035 Chiefs Expenses 1,149 1,200 1,194 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - meetings, hosting meals 
Plaques, dare, crime prevention items 
includes NNO yearly, Halloween safety, 

55043 Community Relations 6,875 7,500 6,210 4,500 4,500 (3,000) -40.0% 7,500 3,000 Child badges, safety seats. 
cruiser laptop account to replace as 
needed includes installs and 

55045 Vehicle Computer EQulpment 5,805 5,805 5,638 5,805 5,805 - 0.0% 5,805 - mounts/antenna 
Certified Computer Solutions contract 
expires 3/2025. $1,495 a month for three 
months. The new IT services will be 

55047 Computer Maintenance/Service Contract 17,940 21,318 15,808 4,485 4,485 (16,833) -79.0% 21,318 16,833 budgetted by Town IT. 
Professional Development training 
conferences for the Chief and Deputy Chief 

55050 Conf/Room/Meals - 3,000 3,685 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - IACP convention, courses, etc. 
55057 Prosecutor Service 499 - - - - - - - Moved to PT Wage line in 2024 
55087 Orv Cleaning 10,800 10,800 10,800 12,400 12,400 1,600 14.8% 10,800 (1,600] Contractual item cost 

Yearly dues for SERT, NENA 911, 
NESPIN, Child Advocacy Center, and 
professional association memberships, 

55088 Dues 9,005 8,993 5,780 8,993 8,993 - 0.0% 8,993 - NNEPAC 
Training course costs/meal reimbursement 
for the entire department (Including 
civilians). Increase in mandated training 

55091 Education/Training 19,942 17,000 15,092 20,000 20,000 3.000 17.6% 17,000 (3,000) hours per officer 
Any equipment not covered under another 
line item. Mountain bike parts, stop stick 
replacement, flashlights, fumlture/boards, 
laser cartridges. less lethal tools. Also 
includes TASER 5-year annual 
installments of $22, 129 and cruiser 

55106 EQuipment Purchase 43,220 44,537 29,570 42,370 42.370 (2,167) -4.9% 44,537 2,167 cameras contract of $4,654 yearly. 
·-~ -·· 

Fuel for patrol vehicles using monthly 
average at the rate of $2.84 ESTIMATE 

55128 Fuel 35,620 43,420 35,486 39,908 39,908 (3,512) -8.1% 43,420 3,512 14,052 gallons a year 

Towing charges.patrol enforcement 
supplies radar replacements, speed signs, 
promotlonal testing materials, hiring costs 
includes polygraph, medical, and 

55133 General ExPenses 5,131 7,500 2,804 7,500 7,500 - 0.0% 7,500 - psychological testing, Livescan fee, etc. 
Match needed for state grant on a portable 
radar sign and a stealth traffic 
counter/radar for neighborhood roads State 

55138 Grant Matching - - - 2,168 2,168 2,168 - (2,168) paying $6,504 
~~-------

Covers drug investigation costs and 
55160 lnvestiaation 564 5.000 1890 5.000 5.000 - 0.0% 5,000 - eauiPment 

Page 16 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version #14 
.ie:u.ie:5 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect DescriDtlon Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
AT&T FirstNet department cell and laptop 
modem plan- n-all mobile comms expense 
lines (Staff, Detectives, and Patrol) into this 

55190 Mobile Communications 4,170 3,904 3,802 3,904 3,904 0 0.0% 3,904 - one single line Item. 
This line item also includes firearms items 
and ammo for training and equipment for 
bean bag shotguns and simulated shooting 
drills protective gear, and includes the cost 
of both lethal and less lethal ammunition, 
gun accessories and cleaning, targets, 

55193 Munitions 15,446 15,700 14,407 15,700 15,700 - 0.0% 15,700 - range fees, etc. 
Maintenance contract of 6 machines 
including: copier printers and all service, 

55199 Office Equipment Maintenance 5,724 5,725 3,906 5,725 5,725 - 0.0% 5,725 - parts, and labor 
55200 Office Supplies 12,569 11,800 7,627 11,800 11,800 - 0.0% 11,800 - Department wide office supplies 
55224 Postage 1,073 1,000 1,015 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - Postage costs for mailings 

Central Square IMC (Tritech) $19,912, 
DTS scheduling software $4,640, and 

55270 Software Agreement 21,208 27,314 25,664 26,002 26,002 (1,312) -4.8% 27,314 1,312 Frontline FTO management $1,450. 
Cost for uniforms and uniform related 
equipment for 40 employees - includes 
bullet proof vest replacements @ 4 per 
year and cost increase to $834 each, 
addition of outer carriers at $344 each 
(plus replacement of vests due to attrition) 
and contractual clothing allowance for staff 

55314 Uniforms 17,024 16,200 12,191 18,730 18,730 2,530 15.6% 16,200 (2,530) division of $400 ea./vear. 
55319 Vehicle Maintenance 22,008 21,000 12,570 21,000 21,000 - 0.0% 21,000 - Covers repair costs for 19 vehicles 

Dog food, vet bills, equipment - this is 
55390 Comfort Dog Expenses 8,658 2,000 4,003 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - OFFSET TO $0 with UFO fundraising UFO 

Contract with SPCA ($750), unforseen 
55321 Veterinarian Service 75 750 120 750 750 - 0.0% 750 - animal vet charges, rabies testing 

ACO equipment, splitting the cost of online 
dog Licensing Lookup software managed 

55104 Veterinarian Equipment 300 300 300 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - by Town Clerk 
General E,cpenses Total 271,289 288,249 226,045 271,489 271,489 (16,760' -5.8% 288,249 16,760 

Total Police Department 3,733,162 3,952,128 3,140,695 4,197,809 4,191,320 239,192 6.1% 4,197,359 6,039 A 

Fire Department 
51110 Sal/Wages FT 2,112,614 2,218,998 1,855,157 2,255,765 2,262,012 43,014 1.9% 2,253,756 (8,256) 33FT 
51121 Sal/Wages Incentive 16,550 18,585 - 19,170 19,270 685 3.7% 19,270 - Negotiated in CBA 

2023'24 retention bonus program - funded 
51123 Sal/Wages Bonus 38,000 - - - - - - - by ARPA 
51150 Vacation Replacement OT 18,407 11,669 13,783 19,038 19,038 7,369 63.2% 19,038 - Overtime for Vacation Leave Replacement 

1 PT: Emergency Management Director -
51200 SalJWaaes PT - 9,939 7,176 15,132 15,206 5,267 53.0% 14,982 (224) 24 hrs. Monthly - 8 months in FY24 

Overtime for emergency recall and other 
51300 Sal/Wages Call Back OT 81,189 93,876 60,822 84,244 84,244 (9,632) -10.3% 84,244 - off-duty details 
51130 Personal Replacement OT 12,572 8,569 7,972 13,919 13,919 5350 62.4% 13,919 - Overtime for Personal Leave Replacement 
51400 Longevity Pay 1,850 1,950 - 1,950 1,950 - 0.0% 1,950 - For employees hired prior to 1/1/2006 
51410 Sick Reolacement OT 28.166 15291 13 018 24,943 24943 9652 63.1% 24943 - Overtime for Sick Replacement 

Page 17of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora ObJect Description Actual Budget October Budaet Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
51420 HolidavPav 109,908 113,074 5,250 115,367 114,846 1,772 1.6% 114,846 - Holiday pay (12 holidays @ 12hrs) 
51600 Sal/Waaes On Call 56 2,500 56 500 500 (2,000) -80.0% 500 - PT On-Call salaries 

Salaries Total 2,419,312 2,494,451 1,963,235 2,550,028 2,555,928 61,477 2.5% 2,547,448 (8,480) 

52100 Health Insurance 532,500 579,394 452,728 673,453 613,439 34,045 5.9% 613,439 - 18.7% increase In the premium rate 
52110 Dental Insurance 41,428 43,957 36,064 49,515 46,532 2,575 5.9% 46,532 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
52120 Life Insurance 3,440 3,029 2,576 3,120 3,120 91 3.0% 3,120 - No increase 
52130 LTD Insurance 1,065 959 803 960 960 1 0.1% 960 - No increase 
52200 FICA 3,079 4,301 3,322 4,678 4,789 488 11.3% 4,717 (72] Based on wages: 6.2% 
52210 Medicare 33,531 36,170 27,874 36,975 37,061 892 2.5% 36,938 (123] Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
52300 Retirement Town 7,061 7,704 6,475 7,855 8,073 369 4.8% 7,953 (120) Jul-Dec 

Based on wages: 30.35% Jan-Jun; 29.15% 
52320 Retirement Fire 730,884 736,009 589,356 735,405 735,758 (251) 0.0% 733,626 (2,132] Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 1,352,988 1,411,523 1,119,199 1,511,961 1,449,732 38,209 2.7% 1,447,285 (2,447] 

Breathing apparatus testing and repairs & 
55019 Breathina Apparatus 5,922 5,450 5,236 5,615 5,615 165 3.0% 5,450 (165) air compressor certification and repairs 
55035 Chiefs Exoenses 793 750 624 750 750 - 0.0% 750 - e,cpenses for meetings, dinners 
55038 Cistern Maintenance 899 900 - - (900) -100.0% 900 900 Cistem & dry hydrant maintenance 

Emergency Operations Center supplies 
during drills, exercise and incidents, 
Including food, office supplies, & training 

55041 Command Supplies 3,415 5,000 2,313 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - material 
2 way radio (mobile and portable); RAVE 
Mobile Safety - Emergency Community 

55042 Communications EQuipment 10,959 11,154 4,007 11,512 11,512 358 3.2% 11,154 (358) Notification (Reverse 911) 
Annual cost for Social Media Consultant 

55043 Community Relations 4,992 5,000 3,744 1,000 1,000 (4,000) -80.0% 5.000 4,000 and Community Relations Specialist. 
Postage for General FD, Fire Prevention, 

55224 Postage 86 250 92 200 200 (50) -20.0% 250 50 new candidate hiring, etc. 
50% of annual contracted Computer & IT 
support for the Public Safety Complex. 
Shared cost with Police Department. 3 

55058 Contract Services 17,190 21,318 18,078 4,298 4,298 (17,020) -79.8% 21,318 17,020 months In 2025. 
Dry cleaning of chief officer uniforms & 
Class •A• dress uniforms. Discontinuing 

55087 Dry Cleaning 226 250 182 - - (250) -100.0% 250 250 this line. 
Annual Association Dues with multiple 

55088 Dues 7,975 9,227 8,928 9,227 9,227 - 0.0% 9,227 - organizations 
Tuition for college classes, fire 

55091 Education/TraininQ 8,867 16,913 16,042 17,650 17,650 737 4.4% 16,913 {737) certifications and education supplies. 
Necessary firefighting equipment 

55106 General Equipment Purchase 45,027 45,000 19,282 45,000 45,000 - 0.0% 45,000 - purchases & replacement 
NFPA annual membership & Fire 

55123 Fire Prevention Supplies 5,193 6,722 4,529 6,822 6,822 100 1.5% 6,722 (100) Prevention & Investigation Supplies 
Gas and diesel fuel for all fire department 
vehicles, Plus 800 gallon tank at fire 

55128 Fuel 18,638 21,214 15,241 19,950 19,950 (1,264) -6.0% 21,214 1,264 station 
55132 General EQuipment Repair 3,678 3,450 3,471 4,100 4,100 650 18.8% 3,450 (650} Small tool & equipment repair 

~- ----------

Background investigations, Water, 
55133 General Exnenses 3,642 3,620 1,993 3,600 3600 {20) -0.6% 3620 20 Emergencv scene rehab. supplies. etc. 

Page 18 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
;,;u;,;::, Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Hazardous materials monitoring 

55144 Hazmal Supplies 1,695 2,686 1,672 2,686 2,686 - 0.0% 2,686 - equipment, clean up and control supplies. 
55149 Hose Replacement 5,660 5,812 2,670 5,800 5,800 (121 -0.2% 5,812 12 Fire hose replacement and repair. 

Hydrant Maintenance Fee to Water Dept. 
55151 Hydrant Maintenance Fee 20,280 - - - - - - - I (moved to GG) 

Cell phone plan and data usage for staff 
55190 Mobile Communications 4,918 6,095 5,141 6,095 6,095 - 0.0% 6,095 - cars, engines, and fire prevention 
55199 Office Equipment Maintenance 2,738 2,660 1,726 2,450 2,450 (2101 -7.9% 2,660 210 Lease Anreements/Servlce Contacts (coPIE 
55200 Office Supplies 2,424 2,500 1,255 2,300 2,300 (2001 -8.0% 2,500 200 Office Supplies for entire Fire Deoartment ( 
55214 Phvsicals 1,526 1,700 1,022 1,700 1,700 - 0.0% 1,700 - Pre-employment phvsicals for new hires 

Examples include - New England Chiefs, 
FDIC conference, IAFC - FRI International, 

55050 Conf/Room/Meals 1,179 4,500 2,067 4,000 4,000 (500) -11.1% 4,500 500 IMT Annual Conference. 
1 urnout gear replacement (4 sets m 'i:>), 
inspection & repairs. 1-YEAR 

55230 Protective Equipment 42,362 54,082 43,194 21,000 21,000 (33,082) -61.2% 54,082 33,082 REDUCTION 
Malnt. & programming FD Portable & 
Mobile Radios, Annual service contract 

55237 Radio Repairs/Maintenance 4,757 5,740 3,649 5,700 5,700 (40) -0.7% 5,740 40 with 2-Way Communications 

All annual software agreements for IMC 
data collection & dispatching, GeoTeamz 
mobile data terminals, eDispatch firefighter 
notification, and Knox Box Cloud Service + 

55270 Software Agreement 10,489 11.149 10,363 13,959 13,959 2,810 25.2% 11,149 (2,810) $2,200 GeoTeamz price increase for 2025 
55282 Building Supplies 3,156 3,500 2,276 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - Laundry & misc bldg. cleaning supplies 

Travel reimbursement for use of personal 
vehicle to attend meetings, briefings and 

55308 Travel Reimbursement 1,195 78 1,195 1,195 - 0.0% 1,195 - training. 
Uniforms for 32 FT employees, 2 Call 

55314 Uniforms 26,440 26,661 15,282 26,661 26,661 - 0.0% 26,661 - members 
Vehicle Maintenance, Inspections, Tires, 
Annual Pump and Aerial Testing and 
Certifications, Plymo-Vent Exhaust 

55319 Vehicle Maintenance 41,604 42,255 23,803 43,500 43,500 1,245 2.9% 42,255 (1,245) Capture System 
Agreement with SAU16 to provide shelter 

55264 Shelter Equipment - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - food/supplies 

Upgrades to EOC Audio-Visual equipment, 
and on scene materials (replacement 

55095 Emergency Management Equipment 1,950 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - cones, barricades, signage, barriers) 
55119 FEMA Relmb -Force Labor - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - FEMA line if needed 
55118 FEMA Reimb - Force Equip - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - FEMA line if needed 

General Expenses Total 308,678 329,256 217,959 277,773 277,773 (51,4831 -15.6% 329,256 51,483 

$1 place holder if grant funds become 
57006 Capital Outlay - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - available 

Capital Outlay Total - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
Total Fire Department 4,080,978 4,235,231 3,300,393 4,339,763 4,283,434 48,203 1.1% 4,323,990 40,556 A 

Public Safe tY Shared Services 

Page 19 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

20255B 20255B Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 20255B 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 20255B Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Dlsnatch 

5 FT Staff in General Fund budget. 1 FT in 
01429905 51110 POD• Sal/Wages FT 193,292 233,513 162,026 242,059 242,456 8,943 3.8% 242,456 - EMS Fund budget 
01429905 51111 POD- Sal/Wages Shift Differential 3,704 4,160 3,053 3,755 3,755 (405) -9.7% 3,755 - Per Police CBA 
01429905 51121 POD- Sal/Wages Incentive Reg 4,059 500 1.414 500 500 . 0.0% 500 - Per Police CBA 

2023f24 retention bonus program - funded 
01429905 51123 POD- Sal/Wages Retention Bonus 2,087 . - - - - - - by ARPA 
01429905 51130 POD- Personal Replacement OT 4,505 4,636 4,259 4,259 (246) -5.5% 4,259 . Overtime for Personal Leave Replacement 
01429905 51150 POD- Vacation Replacement OT 13,820 7,544 10,276 10,561 10,561 3,017 40.0% 10,561 - Overtime for Vacation Leave Replacement 

Reduced budget for one at several shifts a 
01429905 51200 POD- Sal/Wages PT 543 2,500 - 2,500 2,596 96 3.8% 2,596 - month 

Covers cost in emergencies and regular 
01429905 51300 POD-Sal/Wages OT 17,063 4,836 16,333 10,008 10,008 5,172 106.9% 10,008 - coverage added $3,000 
01429905 51410 POD-Sick Replacemenl OT 1,794 1,739 4,593 2,218 2,218 479 27.5% 2,218 - Covers OT for Dispatchers out sick 
01429905 51420 POD-Holiday Pay 10,188 10,791 3,358 11,267 11,267 476 4.4% 11,267 - contrad item 
01429905 51430 POD-Sal/Wages FTO Incentive - 3,390 1,499 3,489 3,489 99 2.9% 3,489 - contract Item 
01429905 51450 POD-Education Incentive 2,208 2,000 2,000 3,250 3,250 1,250 62.5% 3,250 - contract Item 

Salaries Total 248,760 275,478 209,187 293,866 294,359 18,881 6.9% 294,359 -
01429905 52100 POD-Health Insurance 66,359 105,239 63,248 109,246 114,156 8,917 8.5% 114,156 . 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
01429905 52110 POD-Dental Insurance 4,908 7,635 4,854 7,459 7,459 (176) -2.3% 7,459 - 5.0% Increase in the premium rate 
01429905 52120 POD-Life Insurance 231 230 160 240 240 10 4.3% 240 - No increase 
01429905 52200 POD-FICA 15,460 17,080 13,044 18,220 18,250 1,171 6.9% 18,250 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01429905 52210 POD-Medicare 3,609 3,994 3,051 4,261 4,268 274 6.9% 4,268 . Based on wages: 1.45% 

-
Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 

01429905 52300 POD-Retirement Town 33,645 36,934 28,227 38,251 38,230 1,296 3.5% 38,230 - Jul-Dec 
Benefits Total 124,213 171,112 112,585 177,677 182,603 11,491 6.7% 182,603 . 

2-way comma maintenance/service 
contracts, Acom VS logger. Contracts paid 
at the end of the year. Dispatch 4G 

01429905 55105 POD-Equipment Maintenance 16,479 25,325 21,860 25,325 25,325 . 0.0% 25,325 . failovers 
Uncovered replacemenUrepair costs for 
dispatch items and radio equipment and 

01429905 55108 POD-Equipment Repair 1,815 5,800 - 5,800 5,800 - 0.0% 5,800 - I oortable radios, cross agency 
Dispatch center phone repairs, Firstnet 
emergency phone service. updates, 

01429905 55256 POD-Phone Repairs/Service 495 550 451 550 550 - 0.0% 550 - sonicwall fee. 
General Expenses Total 18,789 31,675 22,311 31,675 31,675 - 0.0% 31,675 -
Dispatch Total 391,762 478,265 344,083 503,218 508,637 30,372 6.4% 508,637 . A 

Heahh 
01441105 51110 FH- Sal/Wages FT 56,822 72,509 60,275 76,178 78,356 5,847 8.1% 77,156 (1,200) 1 FT: Health Officer 

Salaries Total 56,822 72,509 60,275 76,178 78,356 5,847 8.1% 77,156 (1,200} 

01441105 52100 FH- Health Insurance 19,639 - - - . - . -
01441105 52110 FH- Dental Insurance 1,425 569 - 597 597 28 4.9% 597 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01441105 52120 FH- Life Insurance 90 92 80 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01441105 52200 FH-FICA 3,325 4,496 3,737 4,723 4,858 363 8.1% 4,784 (741 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01441105 52210 FH- Medicare 778 1,051 874 1,105 1,136 85 8.1% 1,119 (17) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01441105 52300 FH-Town Retirement 7672 9 810 8155 10,002 10280 470 4.8% 10 127 {153} Jul-Dec 

Page20of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
;.i:u;.i:5 Deraun 

2025S8 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 20258B Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Description Actual Budnet October Budaet Budget (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 
Benefits Total 32,927 16,018 12,846 16,523 16,967 949 5.9% 16,723 (244) 

01441105 55293 FH- Supplies 291 600 313 600 600 - 0.0% 600 . Health Inspection and office supplies 
01441105 55224 FH- Postage 31 50 56 96 96 46 92.0% 50 (46) Health Dept. mailings 
01441105 55055 FH- Consulting - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Phone plan & mobile data tenninal usage 
01441105 55190 FH- Mobile Communications 996 996 581 996 996 - 0.0% 996 - for Health Officer 

Mosquito control maintenance contract 
01441105 55191 FH- Mosquito Control 37,000 34,500 27,600 34,500 34,500 - 0.0% 34,500 - costs 

Relevant FoodCode Pro fonns and 
01441105 55270 FH- Software Agreement 2,600 2,640 2,640 2,640 2,640 - 0.0% 2,640 - reporting 
01441105 55308 FH- Travel Reimbursement 117 200 220 480 480 280 140.0% 200 (280) Mileage reimbursement for Health Officer 

Training, Meeting and Seminars for Health 
01441105 55050 FH- Cont/Room/Meals 874 795 270 1,225 1,225 430 54.1% 795 (430) Officer 
01441105 55088 FH- Dues 90 90 90 90 90 - 0.0% 90 - Health Dept. dues & memberships 

Approved college classes for the new 
01441105 55091 FH- Education/Traininq - 1,500 1,545 6,941 6,941 5,441 362.7% 1,500 (5,441) Health Officer 

General Exoenses Total 42,000 41,372 33,316 47,569 47,569 6,197 15.0% 41,372 (6,1971 

Health Total 131,750 129,899 106,438 140,270 142,892 12,993 10.0% 135,251 (7,641) A 

Total Public Safety Shared Services 523,511 608,164 450,520 643,488 651,529 43,365 7.1% 643,888 (7,641) 

Public Works • General Fund 

AdmlniS'"" on&i-nn 1neertnt1 
7 FT: Director, Town Eng, Eng Tech, 
Office Mgr, Office Clerk, Asst Engineer, 
GIS Coord. Currently there are 2 open 

01431101 51110 PWA- Sal/Wages FT 285,265 632,441 361,045 671,940 689,865 57,424 9.1% 683,839 (6,026) positions. 
1- PT-recording secretary for River 

01431101 51200 PWA-Sal/Wages PT 9,377 222 300 300 300 78 35.1% 300 - Commlttee@$19.44/hr 
01431101 51300 PWA- Sal/Wages OT 635 700 577 700 700 - 0.0% 700 -

Salaries Total 295,278 633,363 361,922 672,940 690,865 57,502 9.1% 684,839 (6,026' 

01431101 52100 PWA- Health Insurance 51,564 136,300 43,354 140,320 138,300 2,000 1.5% 138,300 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01431101 52110 PWA- Dental Insurance 3,971 11,613 4,634 10,702 10,702 (911) -7.8% 10,702 - 5.0% Increase in the premium rate 
01431101 52120 PWA- Life Insurance 291 551 288 624 624 73 13.2% 624 - No increase -
01431101 52130 PWA- LTD Insurance 94 959 752 960 960 1 0.1% 960 - No increase 
01431101 52200 PWA-FICA 17,578 39,269 21,887 41,722 42,834 3,565 9.1% 42,460 (374) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01431101 52210 PWA- Medicare 4,111 9,184 5,119 9,758 10,018 834 9.1% 9,930 (87) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12. 75% 
01431101 52300 PWA- Retirement Town 38,412 85,664 48,251 88,327 90,598 4,934 5.8% 89,830 (768) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 116,021 283,539 124,284 292,413 294,036 10,497 3.7% 292,806 (1,230) 

Contract w/Access: required (per USOOT) 
random testing for all COL holders & 

01431101 55003 PWA- Drug/Alcohol Testing 779 1,200 480 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - screening new hires 
National or regional conf 60% Dir, Town 
Eng: 100% Maint Supt, Hwy Supt@ 

01431101 55050 PWA- Conf/Room/Meals 2,435 3,000 1,055 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - $1,200 ea. 
01431101 55058 PWA- Contracted Services 810 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - MovedtoCIP 

Page21 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
:lu;,t;:, Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budget October Budaet Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 

Dues: APWA $995, NHPWA S100, Mutual 
01431101 55088 PWA-Dues 748 700 1,124 1,270 1,270 570 81.4% 700 (570) Aid $25; Licenses: PE 2@150/2 yr 

Education and training for staff (NHMA, 
01431101 55091 PWA- EducationfTralning - 2,000 1,345 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - NHDES, NEPW Association) 
01431101 55128 PWA-Fuel 368 1,500 2,168 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - Dir & Eng vehicles $2.84/gal 

Meal reimbursement during extended 
operations per Director's detenninatlon 

01431101 55133 PWA- General ExPenses 878 1,200 797 1,000 1,000 (200) -16.7% 1,200 200 increased from S8 to $12 
01431101 55158 PWA- Insurance Deductible 4,966 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Damage repairs on insurance claims 

Bulk fuel delivery charges less dept 
01431101 55181 PWA- Master Fuel Account (11,367) 1 (4,965) 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - allocations; for 109 vehicles 

60% Director, Town Engineer & Asst 
Engineer; 100% Highway, MiFi 

01431101 55190 PWA- Mobile Communications 1,038 1,200 1,164 1,300 1,300 100 8.3% 1,200 (100) !(Engineering) 
Gen office supplies $6500; Eng supplies 
$3500: plotter paper & ink, field books, 
Town Standards, scanning plans: 60% of 

01431101 55200 PWA- Office Supplies 7,440 10,000 6,252 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 - copier billing 
01431101 55224 PWA- Postage 306 500 269 550 550 50 10.0% 500 (50] General day to day mailings 
01431101 55237 PW A- Radio Repairs - 600 - 300 300 (300) -50.0% 600 300 4 Desk sets, 6 portables, 42 vehicle units 

Digital repeater to communicate with Fire & 
01431101 55238 PWA- Radio Replacement - 1,000 - 500 500 (500) -50.0% 1,000 500 Police 
01431101 55319 PWA- Vehicle Maintenance 18 600 230 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - Dir & Eng vehicles 

General Expenses Total 8,420 23,503 9,920 23,223 23,223 (280' -1.2% 23,503 280 

01431101 55998 PWA- Due from Water Fund (156,662) (183,333) (87,888) (193,006) (196,916) (13,583) 7.4% (195,464) 1,451 20% Water Fund offset 
01431101 55999 PWA-Due from Sewer Fund (156,662) (183,333) (87,888) (193.006) (196,916) (13,583' 7.4% (195,4641 1,451 20% Sewer Fund offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds Total (313,324) (366,665) (175,776) (386,012) (393,832) (27,1671 7.4% (390,9281 2,904 

Administration & Engineering Total 106,395 573,740 320,350 602,564 614,292 40,552 7.1•/4 610,220 (4,072) A 

Hlahwavs and Streets 
12 FT - Highway Supt., General Foreman, 
2 Foreman, 5 HEO, 1 Truck Driver, 2 

01431202 51110 HWY- Sal/Wages FT 693,885 751,574 596,858 758,049 761,348 9,774 1.3% 759,551 (1,797) Laborers 
01431202 51210 HWY- Sal/Waaes Temo 284 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Intern, Summer/Fall laborer 
01431202 51121 HWY- Sal/Wages Incentive Reg 2,750 2,750 - 2,750 2,750 - 0.0% 2,750 - PerSEIUCBA 
01431202 51300 HWY- Sal/Wages OT 22,482 20,000 16,847 20,000 20,000 - 0.0% 20,000 - Emergency ops, callouts, flood watch, votln 
01431202 51310 HWY- Sal/Wages Stand-By 7,280 7,280 6,160 10,920 10,920 3,640 50.0% 10,920 - After hours on-call status, $210/wk 
01431202 51400 HWY- Longevity Pay 6,850 7,050 - 7,150 7,150 100 1.4% 7,150 - 6 FT per union contract 

Salaries Total 733,532 788,655 619,865 798,870 802,169 13,514 1.7% 800,372 (1,797) 

01431202 52100 HWY- Health Insurance 177,378 180,623 159,084 234,598 234,598 53,975 29.9% 234,598 - 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
01431202 52110 HWY- Dental Insurance 11,578 16,048 10,739 14,983 14,983 (1,065) -6.6% 14,983 - 5.0% increase In the premium rate 
01431202 52120 HWY- Life Insurance 657 597 497 624 624 27 4.5% 624 - No increase 
01431202 52200 HWY-FICA 43.548 48,897 36,664 49,530 49,734 838 1.7% 49,623 (1111 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01431202 52210 HWY- Medicare 10,185 11,435 8,575 11,584 11,631 196 1.7% 11,605 (261 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01431202 52300 HWY- Retirement Town 102,226 106,705 83,868 104,920 105,144 (1,561) -1.5% 104.915 (2291 Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 345,572 364,305 299,427 416,239 416,714 52,409 14.4% 416,348 (3661 

Page 22 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 20255B Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object DescrlDtlcn Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 
1x reduction of-$5K in 2024 - Grinding & 
screening to recycle asphalt and concrete 
into reusable product Screening compost 

01431202 55013 HWY- Asphalt Reclamation - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 . 0.0% 5,000 - and sand 
Maintenance and repair of 7 Town-owned 

01431202 55020 HWY• Bridae Repairs 5,000 5,500 - 5,500 5,500 - 0.0% 5,500 - bridaes 
1x reduction of $1K in 2024 - Minor repairs, 
replace & clearing culverts (pipes & 

01431202 55066 HWY• Culvert Repairs/Reolacement - 3,000 - 3,000 3.000 - 0.0% 3.000 - headers) 
Dam & abutment concrete & mechanical 
repairs at Pickpocket, Colcord, Sloans 

01431202 55071 HWY- Dam Maintenance 570 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - Brook -- -
Annual NHDES fees (due December) 

01431202 55072 HWY - Dam R8Qlstration 1,900 400 - 400 400 - 0.0% 400 - Sloans Brook 
Classes, licensing (CDL, UNH Tech 

01431202 55091 HWY- Educationffrainina 2,210 1,500 1,643 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - Transfer classes) 
Uniformed officer in high traffic, 

01431202 55096 HWY- EmemencvTraffic Control 146 500 - 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - emergencies 
Rental of equipment not owned by Town: 

01431202 55107 HWY- Eaulpment Rentals 4,361 4,500 706 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - bulldozer, excavator, grader, screener 
Fuel for highway dept vehicles & 
equipment; contract price projected to be 

01431202 55128 HWY-Fuel 27,898 25,000 26,317 25,500 25,500 500 2.0% 25,000 (500) unleaded $2.84/gal & diesel $3.16/gal 
Repl/repair hand tools: compacter, hand-

01431202 55134 HWY-General Hand Tools 4,086 4,000 3,511 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - saw, chainsaws, small power tools 
01431202 55190 HWY- Mobile Communications - 1 - 1 1 - 0:0% 1 - moved to phone reimbursement 

Cell Phone stipend for Supt + 3 Foremen 
01431202 55212 HWY- Phone Reimbursement 2,410 2,400 1,191 2,800 2,800 400 16.7% 2,400 (400) ($40/mo), On-Call Cell Phone ($72/mo) 

Hardhats, vests, eye protection, Technu, 
01431202 55257 HWY- Safetv Eauioment 7,471 5,000 4,350 6,000 6,000 1,000 20.0% 5,000 (1,000' steel-toed boot repl $185/yr per emolovee 

Sign replacement for retro reflectivity, 
01431202 55267 HWY-Stans 6,908 8,000 7,603 8,000 8,000 - 0.0% 8,000 - damages. 
01431202 55285 HWY• Storm Drain Repair 2,802 6,000 1,853 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - Repair drain castings. 1,305 catch basins 

Fog lines, center lines, parking spaces 
(butyl rubber by contractor); crosswalks 2x 

01431202 55286 HWY- Street Marking 33,744 35,000 33,714 35,000 35,000 - 0.0% 35,000 - lvr 
Patching town roads & shoulder repair 
materials; includes asphalt, concrete, 

01431202 55287 HWY- Street Repairs/Maint 14,767 18,000 9,508 18,000 18,000 - 0.0% 18,000 - gravel 
All treesln Town ROW-& parks incl 
pruning, fertilizing & removal w/ licensed 
arborist; Increasing demands for tree 
removal & pruning; additional street trees 
at Lincoln & presence of Emerald Ash 
Borer (EAB) - $35K added In 2024 to 

01431202 55310 HWY-Tree Maintenance 10,748 55,535 12,362 25,000 25,000 (30,535) -55.0% 55,535 30,535 establish Tree Committee budget. 
12 employees (Laundering, repair and 

01431202 55314 HWY- Uniforms 9,495 7,400 4,793 7,400 7,400 - 0.0% 7,400 . replacement) 

01431202 55319 HWY- Vehicle Maintenance 55,233 50,000 61,340 60,000 60,000 10,000 20.0% 50,000 (10,000} Maintenance of all dept vehicles and equip 
Along medians & curbing; contract 
w/licensed herbicide applicator, $1K switch 

01431202 55337 HWY- Weed Control 8000 9,000 9000 9,000 9000 - 0.0% 9000 - from Rounduo to DnH!mement. 

Page23 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Orn Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
General Expenses Total 197,749 248,236 177,891 229,601 229,601 (18,635' -7.5% 248,236 18,635 

01431202 55251 HWY-Road Paving/Maintenance 645,964 550,000 503,571 700,000 625,000 75,000 13.6% 550,000 (75,000' Incl crack sealing, reconstruction, etc. 
1x reduction of $SK in 2024 will be held for 
2025 as well. Replace culverts and repair 

01431202 55067 HWY- Culvert Replacement . 5,000 . 5,000 5,000 . 0.0% 5,000 . headers & outlets in Town roads. 
Sidewalks and curbing, minor repair & 

01431202 55266 HWY· Sidewalks/Curbing 2,526 15,000 789 10,000 10,000 (5,000) -33.3% 15,000 5,000 replacements 
Annual clean 50% catch basins, material 

01431202 55284 HWY- Storm Drain Cleaning 26,715 30,000 . 30,000 30,000 . 0.0% 30,000 . testing, MS4 permit compliance 
01431202 57006 HWY- Cspital Outlav-Eauipment - . . . . . . 

Capital Outlay Total 675,205 600,000 504,360 745,000 670,000 70,000 11.7% 600,000 (70,000] 

Hlghwavs & Streets Total 1,952,058 2,001,196 1,601,543 2,189 710 2,118,484 117,288 5.9% 2,064,956 (53,528) A 

~nnw RAm, ,vnl 

01431903 51300 PS- Sal/Wages - OT Snow 59,778 70,000 42,696 70,000 70,000 . 0.0% 70,000 . Includes Mechanic 
01431903 51200 PS- Salaries/Wages PT 65 1,733 1,890 1,815 1,815 82 4.7% 1,815 . Snow cleanup 

01431903 51350 PS- Sal/Wages • FEMA Storm Related 01 - 1 . - - (1) -100.0% - . Expenses related to declared emergencies 
Salaries Total 59,843 71,734 44,586 71,815 71,815 81 0.1% 71,815 . 

01431903 52200 PS-FICA 3,710 4,448 2,760 4,453 4,453 5 0.1% 4,453 . Based on wages: 6.2% 
01431903 52210 PS- Medicare 868 1,040 645 1,041 1,041 1 0.1% 1,041 . Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01431903 52300 PS- Retirement Town 9,184 9.471 5,768 9,198 9,198 (273' -2.9% 9,198 . Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 13,761 14,959 9,173 14,692 14,692 (267' -1.8% 14,692 . 

01431903 55026 PS- Calcium Chloride . 1 - 1 1 . 0.0% 1 . Salt additive used during harsh temperatun: 
INCLUDE IN REQUEST FOR SNOW/ICE 
CAP. RES. IN 2025 • Hire contractors w/10 
wheelers to remove snow for safety 

01431903 55061 PS• Contracted Snow Removal . 25,000 . 1 1 (24,999) -100.0% 25,000 24,999 downtown, Lincoln St, Portsmouth Ave. 
01431903 55118 PS• FEMA Reimb Force Equip . 1 . 1 1 - 0.0% 1 . Expenses declared winter emergencies 
01431903 55119 PS- FEMA Reimb Force Labor . 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 . ExDenses declared winter emergencies 

Fuel for snow removal vehicles; contract 
price projected to be unleaded $2.84/gal & 

01431903 55128 PS· Fuel 15,874 17,000 11,580 17,000 17,000 . 0.0% 17,000 . diesel $3.16/gal 
Private property damage caused by snow 

01431903 55216 PS- Plow Damages 4,644 3,500 359 3,500 3,500 . 0.0% 3,500 . plows 
01431903 55217 PS- Plow/Spreader Repair . . . Moved to vehicle maintenance 

Hired contractors to supplement Town staff 
01431903 55218 PS- Plowing 152,021 80,000 106,990 80,000 80,000 . 0.0% 80,000 . to plow, salt & sand 

Deicer for Town roads, sidewalks, parking 
01431903 55258 PS-Salt 105,304 80,000 66,928 80,000 80,000 . 0.0% 80,000 . lots 

Purchase sand during winter months to 
spread along the town roads, sidewalks & 

01431903 55259 PS-Sand 309 2,000 876 2,000 2,000 . 0.0% 2,000 . parking lots 
Repair snow plows and snow removal 

01431903 55319 PS- Vehicle Maintenance 25,915 20,500 11,967 20,500 20,500 . 0.0% 20,500 - equipment 
General Expenses Total 304,066 228,003 198,700 203,004 203,004 (24,999) -11.0% 228,003 24,999 

Snow Removal Total 3ns11 314696 252459 289 511 289 511 (251851 -8.0'/o 314 510 24999 A 

Page 24 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Solid Waste Dlsnosal 
1 PT @ 16 hrs/wk including transfer station 
winter schedule and weekend trash 

01432304 51200 SW- Sal/Wages PT 21,202 23,962 19,622 25,175 24,951 989 4.1% 24,554 (397) removal 
OT for Highway employees assigned to 

01432304 51300 SW- Sal/Wages OT 1,223 4,000 316 4,000 5,785 1.785 44.6% 4,000 (1,7851 Transfer Station 
Salaries Total 22,425 27,962 19,938 29,175 30,736 2,774 9.9% 28,554 (2,182] 

01432304 52200 SW-FICA 1,390 1,734 1,236 1,809 1,906 172 9.9% 1,770 (135] Based on wages: 6.2% 
01432304 52210 SW- Medicare 325 405 289 423 446 40 9.9% 414 (32] Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun: 12.75% 
01432304 52300 SW-Retirement 76 541 - 526 526 (15) -2.8% 526 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 1,792 2,680 1,525 2,758 2,878 198 7.4% 2,710 (1681 

Includes vendor delivery to store: offset by 
revenue; projected production cost 

01432304 55018 SW- Blue Bags 40,133 78,000 92,473 120,000 120,000 42,000 53.8% 78,000 (42,000) Increase and spending trend adjustment 
01432304 55023 SW- Bulky Waste Sticker 555 - -

Construction debris container at Transfer 
01432304 55054 SW- Construction Debris 10,076 14,500 8,877 16,000 16,000 1,500 10.3% 14,500 (1,500) Station (WM contract) 

5-year contract extension with WM runs 
June 2022 - May 2027, reflects 6.5% 
annual rates increase and anticipated fuel 
surcharges; recycled materials value highly 

01432304 55082 SW- Dlsposal/Re~ling Contract 1,185,719 1,198,500 867,213 1,310,680 1,310,680 112,180 9.4% 1,198,500 (112,180) variable (WM contract) 

1x reduction of $SK in 2024 will be held for 
2025 as well. Brush grinding & removal by 
contractor 2 to 3x per yr as space needs 

01432304 55086 SW- Brush Grindin!l 10,000 15,000 - 15,000 15,000 - 0.0% 15,000 - require (contracted Dirt Doctor thru 2025) 
01432304 55091 SW- Educatlon!Tralnlna 240 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Solid waste training 
01432304 55092 SW- Electricity 1,608 2,000 1,061 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - Transfer station building 

Removal of electronic waste collected at 
01432304 55093 SW- Electronic Waste ExDense 7,858 10,000 4,766 10,000 10,000 . 0.0% 10,000 - Transfer Station, offset by sticker revenue 
01432304 55127 SW- Freon Waste Exoense 550 300 - -

Cost of annual Oct event: Exeter share 
$11,300 the rest offset by regional 

01432304 55150 SW- Household Haz Waste Removal 48,605 30,000 - 35,000 35,000 5,000 16.7% 30,000 (5,000) collection revenue & State grant 
Gas and water quality testing, including 
PFAS & 1,4-dioxane at Cross Road landfill, 
(GZA = $32,175, CEC = $10,750, EA= 

01432304 55163 SW• Landfill Monitoring 50,047 52,706 22,729 51,500 51,500 (1,206) -2.3% 52,706 1,206 $9,781) 
01432304 55173 SW- Licenses 61 - -

Hauling charge to remove metals & white 
01432304 55186 SW- Metal Removal 1,075 1,500 681 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - goods 

Mowing, materials and supplies at the 
Transfer Station (Security cameras and 

01432304 55201 SW- Operations Maintenance 3,531 6,000 4,438 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - equipment) 
65 gal carts unit price $75; offset by 

01432304 55244 SW- Recvcle Containers 25,985 26,000 26,289 26,000 26,000 - 0.0% 26,000 - revenue 
Stickers and garbage litter bags for Town 

01432304 55293 SW-Supplies 2,739 1.500 1.983 2500 2500 1000 66.7% 1 500 (1000) & Public Works Offices to sell 

Page25of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '1#4 
"'u"'S oeraun 

20255B 20255B Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 20255B 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 20255B Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
01432304 55300 SW-Tire Dispcsal 228 2,000 320 1,000 1,000 (1,000) -50.0% 2,000 1,000 Disposal of Town tires 

Twice per year curbside collection- leaf 
01432304 55366 SW- Yard Waste 16,532 16,856 8,428 17,193 17,193 337 2.0% 16,856 (337) and yard waste (WM contract) 

Weekly collection at Transfer Station (Mr. 
01432304 55551 SW- Food Waste Compost Program 2,951 2,950 2,371 3,952 3,952 1,002 34.0% 2,950 (1,002) Fox) 

General Expenses Total 1,407,939 1,457,712 1,042,484 1,618,525 1,618,525 160,813 11.0% 1,457,712 (160,813) 

Solid Waste Disposal Total 1,432,155 1,488,354 1,063,948 1,650,458 1,652,139 163,785 11.0% 1,488,976 (163,163) A 

Street Llahts 
All street lights in Town rights-of-way 

01431605 55092 PW- Electricity- Street Lights 135,760 160,000 95,692 140,000 140,000 (20,000) -12.5% 160,000 20,000 (Reduce for end of fixed fee commitment) 
High St, Green St, Alum Dr, Holland Way, 
Continental Or signals; controllers, loop 
detectors, bulbs, audibles & emergency 

01431605 55303 PW-Traffic Light Maintenance 6,491 9,000 3,046 7,000 7,000 (2,000) -22.2% 9,000 2,000 vehicle pre-emption controllers 
General Expenses Total 142,251 169,000 98,738 147,000 147,000 (22,000} -13.0% 169,000 22,000 

Street Lights Total 142,251 169,000 98,738 147,000 147,000 (22,000) -13.0% 169,000 22,000 A 

Stormwater 
Pet waste bags (Town Clerk & Highway}, 

01431118 55293 STW- Supplies 2,700 2,937 2,700 2,700 - 0.0% 2,700 - plotter supplies (ink, printheads, paper) 

Wet weather sample 134 outfalls/6 years -
22 outfalls/yr x $700/outfall = $15,400; 
outfall catchment investigations & 
remediation $10,700; quarterly SWPPP 
inspections $6k; AMP project TN changes 
$6k; MS4 annual rpt $6K; public outreach 

01431118 55058 STW- Contracted Services 51,317 57,100 5,364 57,100 57,100 - 0.0% 57,100 - $4K, staff training (IDDE, PTAP) $SK 
01431118 55190 STW- Mobile Communications - 480 - 480 480 - 0.0% 480 - Tablet/mlfi 12 months @ $40/mo. 

01431118 55291 STW-Subscriptions - 4,080 - 4,080 4,080 - 0.0% 4,080 - GPS, SmartNet, PeopleForms subcriptions 
Replace 7 Catch basins @ $4k each (MS4 

01431118 55386 STW- Catch Basin Replacement - 28,000 - 28,000 28,000 - 0.0% 28,000 - Permit requirement) 
General ~enses Total 51,317 92,360 8,301 92,360 92,360 - 0.0% 92,360 -

Stormwater Total 51,317 92,360 8,301 92,360 92,360 . 0.0% 92,360 . A 

Subtotal before Maintenance 4,061,846 4,639,346 3,345,338 4,971,603 4,913,786 274,440 5.9% 4,740,022 (173,764) 

Public Works - Maintenance 

General 

01419406 51110 PM- Sal/Waaes FT 227,512 249,063 169,432 257,956 260,792 11,729 4.7% 259,286 (1,506) 4 FT Maint Supt, Custodian, 2 Maint Tech 
01419406 51121 PM- Sal/Waaes Incentive Rea 500 - - - - -
01419406 51200 PM- Sal/Wages PT 36,436 39,155 30,705 41,136 40,769 1,614 4.1% 40,121 (648) 1 PT Custodian @ 34hr per week 
01419406 51300 PM- Sal/Waaes OT 6,300 7,000 3,475 7,000 7,000 - 0.0% 7,000 - Emergencies, callouts 

Pay for after hours on-call status, 
01419406 51310 PM- Sal/Wages Stand-By 5,060 7,280 6,160 10,920 10,920 3,640 50.0% 10,920 - $210/week 
01419406 51400 PM- Lonaevitv Pav 1.450 1500 - 1.500 1,500 - 0.0% 1.500 - 1 FT per union contract 

Page26 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
;;:u;;::, Default 

2025S8 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Orn ObJect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 
01419406 51450 PM- Sal/Wages Education Incentive - 750 - - - (750] -100.0% - -

Salaries Total 277,258 304,748 209,772 318,512 320,981 16,233 5.3% 318,827 (2,154, 

01419406 52100 PM- Health Insurance 36,594 60,262 26,495 71,515 48,437 (11,825] -19.6% 48,437 - 18.7% increase in the oremium rate 
01419406 52110 PM- Dental Insurance 3,147 4,756 2,306 4,994 3,503 (1,253] -26.3% 3,503 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01419406 52120 PM- Life Insurance 255 230 164 240 240 10 4.3% 240 - No increase 
01419406 52200 PM-FICA 16,749 18,894 12,554 19,748 19,901 1,006 5.3% 19,767 (1341 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419406 52210 PM- Medicare 3,917 4,419 2,936 4,618 4,654 235 5.3% 4,623 (31) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun: 12.75% 
01419406 52300 PM- Retirement Town 32,843 35,935 23,981 36,431 36,741 806 2.2% 36,549 (192) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 93,505 124.496 68.437 137,546 113,476 (11,020] -8.9% 113,119 (357) 

People GIS work order system 
01419406 55048 PM- Comouter Software 3,955 5,000 42 5.000 5,000 - 0.0% S.000 - I (CompleteFleet module) 

Town building roofs snow removal $4K; 
contracted cleaning Town Offices $34K; 
Rec Ctr 2x week $14K; TH Offices (as 
required) & Public Restrooms $SK: Sr. 

01419406 55058 PM- Contract Services 83,005 46,500 48,620 70,000 70,000 23,500 50.5% 46,500 (23,500) Center $12K 
All Town buildings' paper & cleaning 

01419406 55069 PM- Custodial Supplies 17,290 22,000 12,275 20,000 20,000 (2,000) -9.1% 22,000 2,000 !products 
Continuing education requirements for 
License renewals Master Elect, 
Journeyman Plumber/Gas fitter. Education 

01419406 55091 PM- Education/Training 620 800 - 200 200 (600) -75.0% 800 600 seminars Caroenter. 
Maintenance Dept vehicles (5): includes 
loaner vehicles to Town Departments; 
unleaded contract price projected to be 

01419406 55128 PM-Fuel 4,111 6,200 2,780 5,500 5,500 (700) -11.3% 6,200 700 $2.84/gal 
Licenses for Electrician and HVAC 

01419406 55173 PM- licenses 85 300 146 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - Plumber Tech 
01419406 55176 PM- Maintenance Bid Materials 1,073 1,200 733 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - Stock paint, putty, nails, screws 

HVAC Tech, plumber, elec. tools, 
01419406 55178 PM- Maintenance Tools 1,618 3,000 296 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - replenish drill bits, small power tools 
01419406 55190 PM- Mobile Communications 240 600 179 300 300 {300) -50.0% 600 300 Maint. Superintendent cell phone 

Fall protection, eye protection, steel-toed 
01419406 55257 PM- Safety Equipment 1,624 2,000 706 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - boot replacement $185/yr 
01419406 55314 PM- Uniforms 

-
5,548 6,050 2,269 6,050 6,050 - 0.0% 6,050 

·- - Uniforms and cleaning for 5 Staff 
lnsp. & Malnt. of fire alarm systems, 

01419406 55392 PM- Fire Safety 14,844 15,000 22,258 24,000 24,000 9,000 60.0% 15,000 (9,000) emergency lighting & fire extinguishers 
General Expenses Total 134,012 108,650 90,303 137,550 137,550 28,900 26.6% 108,650 (28,900) 

General Maintenance Total 504,nS 537,894 368,512 593,608 572,007 34,113 6.3% 540,596 (31,411) A 
Town Bulldlnas 

Swasey Parkway- Sal/Wages PT - - 165 - - - - - Recording Secretary for Swasey Parkway 
Swasey Parkway- FICA - - 10 - - - - - Recording Secretary for Swasey Parkway 
Swasey Parkway- Medicare - - 2 - - - - - Recording Secretary for Swasey Parkway 
Town Buildings-Water/Sewer Bills 23,331 17,835 16,809 18,835 18,835 1,000 5.6% 17,835 (1,000) Water/Sewer bills for Town Buildings 

Building Maintenance for Town Buildings, 
Town Buildings- Building Maintenance 82,608 79,500 71,945 94,000 94,000 14,500 18.2% 79,500 (14,500) Incl Swasey Parkway & Raynes Bam 
Town Buildings-Covid-19 Expenses - - - - - - - - Covid-19 for Town Buildings 
Town Buildinas- Natural Gas 66.814 75.850 50296 72.250 72,250 (3,600) -4.7% 75850 3600 Natural Gas for Town Buildings 

Page27 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version ##4 
:zu:z:, Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Electricity for Town Buildings, Incl. Swasey 

Town Buildinns- Electricity 96,516 98,950 79,533 100,450 100,450 1,500 1.5% 98,950 (1,500) Parkway & Raynes Barn 
Train Station- Supplies 980 3,800 153 3,000 3,000 (800) -21.1% 3,800 800 Light fixtures, electrical breakers, signage 

Platform Lease Uabiltiy Insurance for Train 
Train Station- Platform Lease Liability 19,200 23,600 27,636 28,021 28,021 4,421 18.7% 23,600 (4,421) Station 
Train Station- Platform Lease 3,537 4,076 3,655 4,076 4,076 0 0.0% 4,076 - Platform Lease for Train Station 
Town Buildings Total 292,985 303,611 250,204 320,632 320,632 17,021 5.6% 303,611 (17,021) A 

Maintenance Prolects 
Town owneo building projects: Histoncal 
Society masonry repainting, door 
rehabiliation, & window UV treatments 
$35K; Highway Garage Concrete 
Foundation Repair $10K; 32 Court Street 
Electrical Panel Upgrade $10K; Town Hall 
Roof Sealant $25K; Town Office Roof 

01419406 55177 PM- Maintenance Projects 81,792 100,000 38,773 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% 100,000 - Slate Inspection & Repair $20K 
Total Maintenance Projects 81,792 100,000 38,773 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% 100,000 - A 

Town Malntenance/Bulldlngs Total 879,553 941,505 657,489 1,014,240 992,639 51,134 5.4% 944,207 (48,432) 

Mechanlcs/Garaae: 
01419415 51110 PG- Sal/Wages FT 114,209 171,090 102,867 173,680 173,680 2,590 1.5% 173 680 - 3 FT: 1 Mech foreman; 2 Mechanics 
01419415 51300 PG- Sal/Wages OT 4,898 3,000 4,040 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - Mechanic OT - 76 hours per year 
01419415 51310 PG- Sal/Wages Standby Pay 2,220 - - - - -
01419415 51121 PG- Sal/Wages EducatlonfTraining 750 750 - 750 750 - 0.0% 750 -

Salaries Total 122,077 174,840 106,908 177,430 177,430 2,590 1.5% 177,430 -

01419415 52100 PG- Health Insurance 33,098 67,480 32,510 80,132 80,132 12,652 18.7% 80,132 - 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
01419415 52110 PG- Dental Insurance 2,357 4,547 2,131 4,774 4,774 227 5.0% 4,774 - 5.0% Increase in the premium rate 
01419415 52120 PG- Life Insurance 67 138 76 144 144 6 4.3% 144 - No Increase 
01419415 52200 PG-FICA 7,194 10,840 6,385 11,001 11,001 161 1.5% 11,001 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419415 52210 PG- Medicare 1,682 2,535 1,493 2,573 2,573 38 1.5% 2,573 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01419415 52300 PG- Retirement Town 16,827 23,656 14,711 23,311 23,259 (397) -1.7% 23,259 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 61,225 109,196 57,306 121,935 121,883 12,687 11.6% 121,883 -
01419415 55128 PG-Fuel 827 1,800 1,014 1,500 1,500 (300) -16.7% 1,800 300 Mechanics shop truck & forklift 

Fuel pumps, UST inspection, reporting 
equipment, 23 year old fuel island 

01419415 55129 PG- Fuel Dispensing System 2,982 4,000 4,027 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - maintenance 
Increase mechanics' allowance from $500 
to $800/ea (hasn't increased since 2000); 

01419415 55183 PG- Mechanics Tools 3,060 3,900 1,072 3,900 3,900 - 0.0% 3,900 - replace Town owned tools; rental 
01419415 55316 PG- Vehicle Equipment Stock 4,920 5,000 1,786 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - Fluids, filters, bulbs, nuts & bolts for all Tow 
01419415 55319 PG· Vehicle Maintenance 1,824 2,000 1,316 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - Maintenance Dept vehicles (5) + forklift 

3 mechanic lifts certified testing & repair, 2 
01419415 55338 PG- Weight Testing/Repair - 1,000 360 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - crane mounted electric hoists 

General Expenses Total 13,613 17,700 9,575 17,400 17,400 (300) -1.7% 17,700 300 

Mechanics/Garage Total 196,915 301,736 173,789 316,765 316,713 14,sn 5.0% 317,013 300 A 

Total Publlc Works 5,138,314 5.882,587 4176 616 6 302 608 6.223.138 340,551 5.8% 6.001.242 (221.896) A 

Page28 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 20255B 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 20255B Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object DescrlDtlon Actual Budnet October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Welfare & Human Services 

Welfare 
01444110 51110 WE- Sal/Wanes FT 9,394 . . . . . . 

New PT Welfare/ Human Services 
01444110 51200 WE- Sal/Wanes PT 39,651 14,131 46,840 46,519 6,868 17.3% 45,745 (774] Administrator (9 mos in 2024) 

Salaries Total 9,394 39,651 14,131 46,840 46,519 6,868 17.3% 45,745 (774} 

01444110 52200 WE-FICA 547 2,458 876 2,904 2,884 426 17.3% 2,836 (48} Based on wanes: 6.2% 
01444110 52210 WE- Medicare 128 575 205 679 675 100 17.3% 663 (11 l Based on wanes: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01444110 52300 WE- Retirement - Town 1,302 . . . . . . Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 5,723 3,033 1,081 3,583 3,559 526 17.3% 3,499 (60l 

01444110 55025 WE - Direct Relief- Burial Expense 5,605 6,000 8,050 6,000 6,000 . 0.0% 6,000 . Per RSA 165:27-a 
Above RCA utility asst. May advocate 

01444110 55075 WE - Direct Relief- Electricity 11,579 6,000 12,694 8,000 8,000 2,000 33.3% 8,000 - w/other aaencies 
Grocery store gift cards if St. V de P not 

01444110 55076 WE - Direct Relief-Food/Gas 27 250 - 250 250 - 0.0% 250 - available. 
01444110 55077 WE - Direct Relief - Heat 10,240 7,000 2,030 6,000 6,000 (1,000] -14.3% 7,000 1,000 Oil or gas/propane 
01444110 55078 WE - Direct Relief-Medical 5,182 5,000 1,132 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - May advocate with other aaencies. 
01444110 55079 WE - Direct Relief- Rent 124,216 45,000 87,348 70,000 70,000 25,000 55.6% 70,000 - May advocate with other agencies 

DR not included In other lines (car repairs, 
01444110 55133 WE - Direct Relief Miscellaneous 2,144 4,400 2,193 4,000 4,000 (400) -9.1% 4,400 400 davcare, etc.\ 

Shelters unavailable or 
01444110 55541 WE• Direct Relief- Hotel 14,703 27,000 20,227 27,000 27,000 - 0.0% 27,000 - children/elderly/handicapped. 

Direct Relief Exoenses Total 173,696 100,650 133,674 126,250 126,250 25,600 25.4% 127,650 1,400 

01444110 55050 WE- Conf/Room/Meals 365 200 201 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - NHLWAA Quarterly & Annual Mta 
01444110 55088 WE-Dues 40 40 40 40 40 - 0.0% 40 - NHLWAAS40 
01444110 55190 WE- Mobile Communications 150 180 54 400 400 220 122.2% 180 (2201 Town issued mobile phone 

New expense $37.30 per month lease 
01444110 55198 WE- Office Eauipment Leases 450 450 450 (450} copier/crinter/scanner 
01444110 55200 WE- Office Supclies 118 150 241 150 150 - 0.0% 150 - notebooks, folders and desk supplies. 
01444110 55224 WE-Postane 29 40 19 40 40 - 0.0% 40 - Client/state/agencies - postage 

Local mtgs, NHMA Conf., NHLWAA Mtgs, 
01444110 55308 WE- Travel Reimbursement 42 150 56 150 150 - 0.0% 150 - Seminars 

General Excenses Tc:itai - -- 744 760 611 1,430 1,430 670 88.2% 760 (670) 

Welfare Total 189,556 144,094 149,496 178,103 1n,15a 33,664 23.4% 1n,&54 (104] A 

Human Services 
See separate list (Human Services 

01444511 55360 HS- Human Services Funding 98,610 98,325 98,325 100,000 100,000 1,675 1.7% 98,325 (1,675) Funding Committee) 
Human Services Total 98,610 98,325 98,325 100,000 100,000 1,675 1.7% 98,325 (1,675) A 

Total Welfare & Human Services 288,166 242,419 247,821 278,103 277,758 35,339 14.6% 275,979 (1,779] 
-

Parks & Recreation -
Recreation 
01452001 51110 PR- Sal/Waaes FT 266943 300.458 251 771 315 873 324.904 24 446 8.1% 319 927 (4 9771 4 FT: Director Asst. Director Rec Coord C 

Page29 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
2025Defautt 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Senior Coordinator: $27.08 per hour, 29 
Hours a week, 30 weeks with Hospital 
contributing $5,200, 20% of the total salary 

01452001 51200 PR- Sal/Wages PT 14,921 14,921 14,921 - (14,921) from grant 
Salaries Total 266,943 300,458 251,771 330,794 339,825 39,367 13.1% 319,927 (19,898) 

01452001 52100 PR- Health Insurance 53,727 60,883 51,985 93,743 90,227 29,344 48.2% 90,227 - 18.7% Increase in the premium rate 
01452001 52110 PR- Dental Insurance 3,448 3,657 3,048 4,397 4,397 740 20.2% 4,397 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01452001 52120 PR- Life Insurance 417 321 320 384 384 63 19.6% 384 - No Increase 
01452001 52130 PR- LTD Insurance 902 842 709 823 823 (19) -2.3% 823 - No increase 
01452001 52200 PR-FICA 16,457 18,628 14,963 20,509 21,069 2,441 13.1% 19,835 (1,234) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01452001 52210 PR- Medicare 3,849 4,357 3,499 4,797 4,927 571 13.1% 4,639 (289) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01452001 52300 PR- Retirement Town 36,775 40,652 34,065 41,475 42,627 1,975 4.9% 41,992 (635) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 115,574 129,340 108,589 166,128 164,454 35,114 27.1% 162,297 (2,157) 

NHRP/NRPA/NEPA Dues for Department 
01452001 55088 PR-Dues 697 800 770 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - Staff. 
01452001 55224 PR-Postage - 150 - 150 150 - 0.0% 150 - Mailings 

Level Funded, Office supplies: pens, 
01452001 55293 PR-Supplies 1,261 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - paper, ink and other supplies 
01452001 55542 PR- Senior Services 4,851 5,000 4,506 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - Level Funded 

General EXDenses Total 6,810 7,450 6,776 7,450 7,450 - 0.0% 7,450 -
Recreation Total 389,327 437,248 367,137 504,372 511,729 74,481 17.0% 489,674 (22,055) A 

Parks 
01452002 51110 PK- Sal/Wages FT 90,201 102,511 78,475 91,291 96,341 (6,170) -6.0% 96,341 - 2 FT (Foreman and Laborer) 
01452002 51200 PK- Sal/Wages Temp - - - - -
01452002 51300 PK- Sal/Wages OT 4,502 4,500 2,613 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - OT for 2 FT Employees 

Salaries Total 94,703 107,011 81,088 95,791 100,841 (6,170' -5.8% 100,841 -
01452002 52100 PK- Health Insurance 7,217 10,544 8,787 46,326 12,521 1,977 18.8% 12,521 - 18.7% increase In the premium rate 
01452002 52110 PK- Dental Insurance 407 1,668 474 2,685 1,751 83 5.0% 1,751 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01452002 52120 PK- Life Insurance 68 92 72 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01452002 52200 PK-FICA - 5,795 6,635 4,931 5,939 6,252 (383] -5.8% 6,252 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01452002 52210 PK- Medicare 1,355 1,552 1,153 1,389 1,462 (891 -5.8% 1,462 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01452002 52300 PK- Retirement Town 13,044 14,479 10,724 12,587 13,221 (1,258) -8.7% 13,221 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 27,886 34,969 26,141 69,022 35,303 334 1.0% 35,303 -
01452002 55033 PK- Chem Toilet Rental 2,260 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 - 0.0% 2,300 - Leve1Fundedfor2025 
01452002 55058 PK- Contract Services 68,908 69,350 58,331 69,350 69,350 - 0.0% 69,350 - Mulching, Fertilziatlon and Irrigation 
01452002 55106 PK- Equipment Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01452002 55108 PK- Equipment Repairs 1,133 850 479 850 850 - 0.0% 850 - Leve1Fundedfor2025 
01452002 55109 PK- Equipment Supplies 7,780 7,800 6,441 7,800 7,800 - 0.0% 7,800 - Level Funded, Typical use is Flags, field pa 
01452002 55128 PK- Fuel 4,770 4,200 4,672 4,200 4,200 - 0.0% 4,200 - Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55164 PK- Landscaping Supplies 12,664 14,500 13,743 14,500 14,500 - 0.0% 14,500 - Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55239 PK- Park Maintenance 5,938 7,000 6,838 7,000 7,000 - 0.0% 7,000 - Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55267 PK-Sians 670 700 700 500 500 (200} -28.6% 700 200 Fewer Signs this year 
01452002 55314 PK- Uniforms 662 900 416 900 900 - 0.0% 900 - Level funded, Shoes, shirts, pants 

Page 30 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Versfon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025 SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/• 

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
We have some items on our two parks 
trucks that needs to be address as the 

01452002 55319 PK- Vehicle Maintenance 1,996 2,000 1,914 2,500 2,500 500 25.0% 2,000 (5001 parts have been on backorder. 
General EXDenses Total 106,781 109,601 95,834 109,901 109,901 300 0.3% 109,601 (3001 
Parks Total 229,370 251,581 203,063 274,714 246,045 (5,536) -2.2% 245,745 (300) A 

Total Parks & Recreation 618,696 688,829 570,200 779,086 757,774 68,945 10.0% 735,419 (22,355) 

Other Culture & Recreation 

Other Culture & Recreation 
01452004 55036 QC- Christmas Lights 5,065 5,000 476 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - Churchill's greenery, Unitil electric bill 

Parade costs including bands, Police 
01452004 55037 QC- Christmas Parade 4,500 4,500 2,025 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - detail, etc. 

Summer concerts In Swasey Parkway-
01452004 55292 OC- Summer Concerts 8,000 9,000 8,100 9,000 9,000 - 0.0% 9,000 - level funded 

Other Culture & Recreation Total 17,565 18,500 10,602 18,500 18,500 . 0.0% 18,500 . A 

Sceclal Events 
01452005 55112 SE- Exeter Brass Band 4,158 4,000 3,950 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - Payments to brass band performers 

01452005 55320 SE- Veteran's Activities 4,012 4,000 3,743 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - Memorial Day flags, Vets Day flags, Lunch 
Fireworks for AIM Festival, cost of 
fireworks have gone up and a need for 
police detail to keep residents from walking 

01452005 55006 SE- Fireworks 8,000 8,000 8,000 10,000 10,000 2,000 25.0% 8,000 (2,000} in shooting zone. 
SDeclal Events Total 16,170 16,000 15,693 18,000 18,000 2,000 12.5% 16,000 (2,000) A 

Total Other Culture & Recreation 33,735 34,500 26,294 36,500 36,500 2,000 5.8% 34,500 (2,000) 

Public Library 

Llbrarv 
01455001 51110 LB- SalJWac:ies FT 567,940 600,845 507,833 640,598 658,914 58,069 9.7% 648,821 (10.093) 9 FT Em0lovees 
01455001 51200 LB- Sal/Wages PT 96,257 130,000 123,316 138,000 135.400 5.400 4.2% 131,500 (3,900) PT Employees 

Salaries Total 664,197 730,845 631,148 778,598 794,314 63,469 8.7% 780,321 (13,993) 

01455001 52100 LB- Heahh Insurance 94,853 114,260 91,662 122,879 122,879 8,619 7.5% 122,879 - 18.7% increase in the 0remium rate 
01455001 52110 LB• Dental Insurance 5,746 6,538 5,258 6,267 6,267 (271) -4.1% 6,267 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01455001 52120 LB- Life Insurance 468 505 384 432 432 (73) -14.5% 432 - No Increase 
01455001 52130 LB- LTD Insurance 1,128 959 814 960 960 1 0.1% 960 - No increase 
01455001 52140 LB- Heahh Insurance Buvout 8,075 2,920 2,718 3,800 3,800 880 30.1% 3,800 -
01455001 52200 LB- FICA 40,334 45,312 38,043 48,273 49,247 3,935 8.7% 48,380 (868) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01455001 52210 LB- Medicare 9,433 10,597 8,897 11,290 11,518 920 8.7% 11,315 (203) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01455001 52300 LB- Retirement Town 83,117 81,294 68,177 84,113 86,448 5,154 6.3% 85,161 (1,287) Jul-Dec 
01455001 52500 LB- Unemployment Comp 175 176 176 184 184 8 4.5% 184 - Prlmex 
01455001 52600 LB- Workers ComD Insurance 3,067 3,251 3,250 3,446 3,446 195 6.0% 3,446 - Primex 
01455001 55172 LB• Liability Insurance 1.431 1,531 1,531 1,639 1,639 108 7.1% 1,639 - Primex 

Benefits Total 247,827 267,344 220,910 283,283 286,820 19,476 7.3% 284,463 (2,357) 

Appropriation for general Library expenses 
01455001 55233 LB- Public Services 187,854 187,500 187 500 200 500 200 500 13000 6.9% 187,500 ,13 oom I Daid directlv bv Librarv 

Page 31 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) ExolanatJon 
General EXDenses Total 187,854 187,500 187,500 200,500 200,500 13,000 6.9% 187,500 (13,000) A 

Total Library 1,099,8n 1,185,689 1,039,558 1,262,381 1,281,634 95,945 8.1% 1,252,284 (29,350) A 

Debt Service & Capital 

Debt Services 
01471121 58003 Epping Rd Water Tank 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 - 0.0% 105,000 - 2028 Final payment 
01471121 58004 Great Dam Removal 155,000 155,000 155,000 - - (155,000) -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01471121 58007 Sidewalk Program 55,000 55,000 55,000 54,700 54,700 (300 -0.5% 54,700 - 2025 Final payment 
01471121 58008 linden St. Bridae/Culvert 70,000 65,000 65,000 64,700 64,700 (300 -0.5% 64,700 - 2025 Final payment 
01471121 58026 Lincoln Street Ph#2 97,188 97,188 97,188 97,188 97,188 - 0.0% 97,188 - 2032 Final payment 
01471121 58029 Court Street Culvert 111,253 111,253 111,253 111,253 111,253 - 0.0% 111,253 - 2027 Final payment 
01471121 58031 String Bridge Rehabilitation 60,000 - - - - - - 2023 Final ayment 
01471121 58034 Rec Park Development 45,000 45,000 45,000 - - (45,000 -100.0% - - 2024 Final I ayment 
01471121 58035 Salem St. Utility Design & Enain 5,077 5,077 5,077 - - 5,077 -100.0% - - 2024 Final I ayment 
01471121 58037 Library Renovations/Addition 254,825 255,000 255,000 255,000 255,000 - 0.0% 255,000 - 2035 Final I ayment 
01471121 5B043 Salem St. Utility Improvements 56,441 56,441 56,441 55,451 55,451 (990 -1.8% 55,451 - 2036 Final payment 
01471121 58044 Recreation Center Bulldina 111,100 111,100 111,100 111,100 111,100 - 0.0% 111,100 - 2032 Final payment 
01471121 58045 Westside Drive Design & Engin 8,737 - 8,737 -100.0% - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
01471121 58049 Solar Array at Cross Road 239,164 239,164 239,164 239,164 - 0.0% 239,164 - 2043 Final pavment 
01471121 58050 Intersection lmprv Program 72,274 72,274 72,274 72,274 - 0.0% 72,274 - 2033 Final pavment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, excludes 
01471121 58051 Westside Drive Construction 55,482 55.482 55.482 55,482 0 0.0% 55.482 - SRF) 

GF Debt Service Principal Total 1,125,884 1,436,716 1.427,979 1,221,312 1,221,312 (215,404 -15.0% 1,221,312 -

01472122 58514 Eppina Rd Water Tank Interest 27,459 22,188 22,187 16,917 16,917 5,271 -23.8% 16,917 - 2028 Final payment 
01472122 58515 Great Dam Removal Interest 15,810 7,905 7,905 - - 7,905 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01472122 58518 Sidewalk Prooram Interest 4,693 3,401 3,401 1,696 1,696 1,705 -50.1% 1,696 - 2025 Final payment 
01472122 58519 Linden St. Bridae/Culvert 5,666 4,021 4,021 2,006 2,006 2,015 -50.1% 2,006 - 2025 Final payment 
01472122 58527 Lincoln Street Ph#2 45,678 40,722 40,722 35,765 35,765 4,957 -12.2% 35,765 - 2032 Final payment 
01472122 58528 Court Street Culvert 28,369 22,696 22,696 17,022 17,022 5,674 -25.0% 17,022 - 2027 Final payment 
01472122 58530 Strin11 Bridae Rehabilitation 3,060 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
01472122 58534 Rec Park Development 4,590 2,295 2,295 - - 2,295 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01472122 58535 Salem St. Utilitv Desian & Enain 518 259 259 - - (259 -100.0% - - 2024 Flnal avment 
01472122 58537 Library Renovations/Addition 138,351 125,355 125,355 112,350 112,350 (13,005 -10.4% 112,350 - 2035 Final I ayment 
01472122 58543 Salem St. Utilitv lmnrovements 35,811 32,933 32,933 30,054 30,054 2,879 -8.7% 30,054 - 2036 Final 1 ,avment 
01472122 58544 Recreation Center Buildina 61,698 50,995 50,995 45,329 45,329 5,666 -11.1% 45,329 - 2032 Final 1 avrnent 
01472122 58545 Westside Drive Desian & Enain 874 - (874 -100.0% - 2029 Final I aY1 1ent ESTIMATE 
01472122 58549 Solar Array at Cross Road 238,287 238,287 222,183 222,183 (16,104 -6.8% 222,183 - 2043 Final paYI ,ent 
01472122 58550 Intersection lmprv Program 37,474 37,474 33,174 33,174 4,300 -11.5% 33,174 - 2033 Final payi ,ent 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, excludes 
01472122 58551 Westside Drive Construction 43,151 43,151 39,614 39,614 (3,537) -8.2% 39,614 - SRF) 

GF Debt Service Interest Total 371,702 632,556 631,679 556,110 556,110 (76,446) -12.1% 556,110 -
01472323 58501 GF-TAN Interest - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Reserve for Tax Anticipation Note 

TAN Interest Total - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Estimated Interest on BAN (Police Station 
01472424 58500 GF- BAN Interest 171,150 171,150 171,150 171,150 - with Fire Substation) 

BAN Interest Total - - - 171,150 171,150 171,150 171,150 -

Debt Services Total 1497 586 2.069.272 2.059.658 1948573 1948573 (120 699) -5.8% 1948573 - A 

Page 32 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
2025Default 

2025S8 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora ObJect Description Actual Budaet October Budget Budget (Decrease} Difference Budaet (Decrease} ExDlanatlon 

Miscellaneous -
01419417 55081 GG- Disaster Reoairs - Insured - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01419417 55224 GG-Postaae {5,1561 1 6,895 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Town-wide postage reserve 

Town-wide cash over/short in-house 
01419417 55060 GG- Cash Over/Short 7 1 (31 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - collections 
01419417 55189 GG- Misc Expense 464 1 697 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Internal audit entry 

Fire Protection System Fee (moved from 
01419417 55151 GG- Fire Protection 100,000 75,000 150,000 130,000 30,000 30.0% 100,000 (30,0001 Fire Budget in 2024) 

General Exoenses Total (4,685) 100,004 82,589 150,004 130,004 30,000 30.0% 100,004 {30,000 A 

Vehicle Rei lacement -
01419416 57005 GG- CO - Leases 203,683 248,495 242,266 164,317 164,317 (84,178 -33.9% 164,317 - See separate list 
01419418 57012 GG- CO - Vehicles - - 132,000 66,000 66,000 - (66,000 See separate list 

Caoital Outlav Total 203,683 248.495 242,266 296,317 230,317 (18,178) -7.3% 164,317 (66,000 A 

Cemeteries 
01419500 57000 GG-CO-Cemeteries - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

- 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - A 

Canltal OuUav-Other 
01419900 55361 GG- CO- Land Acquistion/Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Vehicle Data Gathering (AA Tracking) -
includes 3% escalator and an increase in 

01419900 57006 GG- CO- Equipment 7,509 6,486 6,120 13,015 13,015 6,529 100.7% 6,486 {6,529} the number of DPW vehicles tracked. 
01419900 57014 GG-CO-Exeter Sportsman Club 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Caoital Outlay Total 7,509 6,488 6,120 13,017 13,017 6,529 100.6% 6,488 {6,529 A 

General Government Total 206,507 354,988 330,975 459,339 373,339 18,351 5.2% 270,810 (102,529 

Total Debt Service & Capital 1,704,093 2,424,260 2,390,634 2,407,912 2,321,912 (102,3481 -4.2% 2,219,383 (102,5291 

Benefits & Taxes 

Pavroll Taxes & Bene its -
10% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- Health Insurance Reserve - - - - - - Fund, Sewer Fund 
2% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- Dental Insurance Reserve - - - - - - Fund,Sewerfund 
2% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- Life Insurance Reserve - - - - - - Fund,SewerFund 
2% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- LTD Insurance Reserve - - - - - - Fund, Sewer Fund 
01415535 52140 GG- Insurance Buyout 154,402 177,360 143,415 192,296 221,638 44,278 25.0% 221,638 - Health Insurance Buyout 
01415535 52200 GG-FICA 4,786 10,996 4,351 11,922 13,742 2,745 25.0% 13,742 - Based on buvout: 6.2% 
01415535 52210 GG- Medicare 2,265 2,572 2,121 2,788 3,214 642 25.0% 3,214 - Based on buvout: 1.45% 
01415536 52150 GG-Retirement/ Sick leave Buvout 81,278 1 42,949 1 1 0 25.0% 1 - Use funds in Sick Leave CRF 
01415536 52200 GG-FICA 3,388 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Retirement/ Sick leave Buvout 
01415536 52210 GG- Medicare 1,179 1 623 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Retirement/ Sick leave Buvout 
01415531 55125 GG- Flexible Soendina Fees 553 1,221 426 792 792 {4291 -35.1% 792 - Fees for emolovees FSA account 

Page 33 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
;tU;t5 Detaun 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/• %· Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Description Actual Budnet October Budnet Budnet (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 
Employee wellness needs beyond those 
provided by the Town's health insurance 
carrier. Hold until program is further 

01415531 55098 GG- Emolovee Wellness 5,000 . . . (5,000) -100.0% 5,000 5,000 developed 
Wage adjustments/classifications during 

01415531 55371 GG- Wage Reclassifications - 20,000 - - - - the year 
Payroll Taxes & Benefits Total 247,849 197,152 193,884 227,801 239,389 42,237 21.4% 244,389 5,000 A 

Unemnlovn ent -
01415533 52500 GG- Unemployment Comp 2,320 2,341 2,341 2,446 2,446 105 4.5% 2,446 - Primex 

Unemplovment Total 2,320 2,341 2,341 2,446 2,446 105 4.5% 2,446 . A 

Worker's Comnensatlon 
01415537 52600 GG- Workers Comp Insurance 232,159 246,089 246,089 260,854 260,854 14,765 6.0% 260,854 - Primex 

Worker's Compensation Total 232,159 246,089 246,089 260,854 260,854 14,765 6.0% 260,854 . A 

Insurance 
01419614 55124 GG- Fleet Insurance 8,825 9,443 9,443 10,104 10,104 661 7.0% 10,104 - Primex 
01419614 55157 GG- Insurance Deductible 1,000 3,000 - 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - Town has $1 K deductible per occurrence 
01419614 55158 GG- Ins Reimbursed Repairs 20,961 1 12,512 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01419614 55172 GG- Liability Insurance 146,538 70,408 70,408 75,336 75,336 4,928 7.0% 75,336 - Primex estimate (7% increase YOY) 

Insurance Total 1n,323 82,852 92,363 88,441 88,441 5,589 6.7% 88,441 - A 

Total Benefits & Taxes 659,651 528,434 534,678 579,542 591,130 62,696 11.9% 596,130 5,000 

Total General Fund 20,531,985 22,860,862 18,295,327 24,164,024 23,983,368 1,122,507 4.91% 23,441,313 (542,055 A 

Warrant ArtlcleslOther 

CIP pg.6 - Continued investment in capital 
01500000 59090 Parks & Rec CRF 75,000 100,000 100,000 25,000 33.3% (100,000) reserve fund established in 2019 

Sick Leave Capital Reserve - (GF Fund 
01500000 59017 Sick Leave Expendable Trust Fund 100,000 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% (100,000) Balance) 

Snow/Ice Deficit Non-Capital CRF - (GF 
01500000 59049 Snow/Ice Deficit Fund 50,000 75,000 75,000 25,000 50.0% (75,000) Fund Balance) 

CIP pg.7 - Continued investment in ADA 
01500000 59074 ADA Improvements CRF 50,000 25,000 25,000 (25,000) -50.0% (25,000) improvements in Town 

CIP pg.16 - Replacement of drainage 
01500000 59122 Front/Pine Linden Street Drainage - 100,000 100,000 100,000 (100,000) infrastructure (from prior bond proceeds) 

CIP pg.4 • General improvements to site 
01500000 59121 Transfer Station Improvements - 50,000 50,000 50,000 (50,000) flow 

CIP pg.64 - Proposed as lease/purchase -
01500000 59020 Dump Truck #33 - Replacement - 40,000 40,000 40,000 (40,000) $160K with first yr. pmL of $40K 

CIP pg.68 - Proposed as lease/purchase -
01500000 59115 Sidewalk Tractor #58 - Replacement - 56,250 56,250 56,250 (56,250) $225K with first yr. pmt. of $56,250 

CIP pg.62 - Proposed as lease/purchase -
1/2 cost split with Rec. Rev. Fund - $120K 

01500000 59119 P&R ADA Accessible Van - New - 15,000 15,000 15,000 (15,000 with first yr. pmt. of $15,000 ($30K total). 
01500000 59118 Fire Utility 1 Truck - Reolacement - 71,355 71,355 71,355 (71,355 CIP pg.52 - (GF Fund Balance) 
01500000 59120 Public EV Charging Facility - 120,000 120,000 120,000 (120,000 CIP pg.8 - (GF Fund Balance) 
01500000 59123 Styrofoam Recvcling Unit - 80,000 80,000 80,000 (80,000 CIP pg.10 - (GF Fund Balance) 

Fire detection system for Raynes Bam -
01500000 59112 Raynes Barn lmorovements - - - - - (GF Fund Balance) - MOVED TO ARPA 

Page 34 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

OrR Object Description Actual Budaet October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
01500000 59125 Sp0rtsman's Club Clean-up . - - - - To address issues raised by NHDES 

To prepare for the sesquicentennial 
01500000 59124 sac Celebration Fund - 5,000 5,000 5,000 (5,000) celebration 

To fund the transition to new staff that 
replace retiring, long-term employees -

01500000 59117 Succession Plan Fund - - - - - FUND THROUGH OPERATIONS 
01500000 59013 Exeter Police Association Aareement - TBD TBD #VALUE! #VALUE! Exeter Police Association CBA 

Exeter Professional Firefighters' 
01500000 59011 Exeter Professional Firefighters' Assoc. - TBD TBD #VALUE! #VALUE! Association CBA 
01500000 59045 SEIU 1984 Collective BargaininQ - TBD TBD #VALUE! #VALUE! SEIU 1984 CBA 

Planet Pla~round Renovation 297,500 - - (297,500) -100.0% - Prior Year CIP Item 
Sidewalk Replacement Fund 50,000 - - (50,000) -100.0% - Prior Year CIP Item 
Water Street Reconstruction - Plannino 100,000 - - (100,0001 -100.0% - Prior Year CIP Item 

-
Total Warrant Articles . 722,500 . 837,605 837,605 115,105 15.9% - (837,605 

BorrowinaJ Other 
Pickp0cket Dam Removal - 2,100,000 2,100,000 (2,100,000 CIPoo.22 
Linden St. Bridae Suoolemental Fundina - 1,257,900 1,257,900 (1,257,900 CIP oa.21 
Fuel Island Replacement at DPW - 575,000 575,000 (575,000 CIPpg.2 
Street Sweeoer - Great Bav Nitroaen Pra. - 395,000 395,000 (395,000 CIP pg.18 
School Street Area Reconstruction 2,213,400 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 
Police Complex with Fire Substation 17,522,500 - - - - Prior Year CIP Item 

-
Total Borrowing/Other . 19,735,900 . 4,327,900 4,327,900 (15,408,0001 -78.1% . {4,327,9001 
Total GF Warrant Articles/Other . 20,458,400 . 5,165,505 5,165,505 (15,292,8951 -74.8% . (5,165,5051 

Total General Fund Budget & Warrant 
2015311985 4313191262 181295,327 29,3291529 29,1481873 114, 1701388) -32.7% 23,4411313 Articles l5z70715&o) 

Page35of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 

Om Object Description 
WATER FUND 
Adn11n15trsttlon 

02433021 51110 WA-Sal/Wages FT 
02433021 51200 WA- Sal/Waqes PT 

02433021 51210 WA- Sal/wages Temp 
Salaries Total 

02433021 52100 WA- Health Insurance 
02433021 52110 WA- Dental Insurance 
02433021 52120 WA-Life Insurance 
02433021 52130 WA-LTD Insurance 
02433021 52140 WA - Health Insurance Buvout 
02433021 52200 WA-FICA 
02433021 52210 WA- Medicare 

02433021 52300 WA- Retirement Town 
02433021 52600 WA- Workers Comp lnsuranCO -~ 

Benefits Total 

02433021 55293 WA- Suppties 

02433021 55055 WA- Consultim:i Services 
02433021 55124 WA- Fleet Insurance 
02433021 55228 WA- Property Insurance 
02433021 55157 WA- Insurance Deductible 
02433021 55158 WA- Insurance Reimbursed Repairs 

02433021 55170 WA-LegalExoense 

02433021 55190 WA-Mobile Communications 
02433021 55002 WA- Advertising 

02433021 55227 WA- Printing 

02433021 55171 WA- LegaVPublic Notices 

02433021 55050 WA- Conf Rooms/Meals 

02433021 55091 WA- Educalion/Trainin~ 

02433021 55098 WA- Employee Wellness 
General EXOenses Total 

Administration Total 

2023 
Actual 

228,172 

3.417 
231,589 

49,919 
4,150 

257 
589 
641 

14,160 
3,311 

32,039 
5,144 

110,211 

2,842 

3,407 
414 

56,482 
1,000 

12,424 

144 

2,843 

783 

4,881 

85,219 

427020 

2024 
Budget 

293,347 
3,043 

3,500 
299,890 

67,336 
5,568 

265 
540 

2,377 
18,593 
4,348 

39,690 
5,453 

144,170 

4,500 

10,000 
443 

60,435 

800 
250 

3,000 

3,000 

3,500 

5,000 

2,500 
93,431 

537.491 

2024 Actual: 
October 

166,355 
3,237 

169,592 

29,202 
2,684 

132 
405 

1,783 
10,386 
2.419 

22,305 
5.453 

74,768 

2.761 

12,000 
443 

60.435 

241 

3,000 

333 

3,335 

82,548 

326908 

2025BRC 
Budget 

324,505 
3,477 

3,500 
331,482 

80,172 
5,758 

302 
602 

2,813 
20,552 

4,806 

42,600 
5,780 

163,385 

4,500 

13,250 
474 

64,665 

800 
250 

3,000 

3,000 

2,880 

5,000 

97,822 

592 6B9 

2025SB 
Budget 

333,649 
3,225 

3,500 
340,374 

76,377 
5.407 

302 
602 

2.813 
21,103 
4,935 

43,759 
5,780 

161,078 

4,500 

13,250 
474 

64,665 

800 
250 

3,000 

3.000 

2,880 

5,000 

97,822 

599 274 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 
$ Increase/- 2024 Budget 
(Decrease) %- Difference 

40,302 13.7% 
182 6.0% 

0.0% 
40,484 13.5% 

9,041 13.4% 
(161) -2.9% 

37 14.0% 
62 11.5% 

436 18.3% 
2,510 13.5% 

587 13.5% 

4,069 10.3% 
327 6.0% 

16,907 11.7% 

0.0% 

3,250 32.5% 
31 7.0% 

4,230 7.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

(620) -17.7% 

0.0% 

(2,500) -100.0% 
4,391 4.7% 

61,782 11.5% 

2025 
Default 
Budget 

320,512 
3,216 

3,500 
327,228 

73,170 
5,212 

293 
535 

2,813 
20,288 
4,745 

42,056 
5,780 

154,892 

4,500 

10,000 
474 

64,665 

800 
250 

3,000 

3,000 

3,500 

5,000 

2,500 
97,692 

579,812 

2025 Default 
Budget vs. 2025 SB 
Budget $ lncrease/-

Version #4 

(Decreasel Explanation 

2 FT W/S Mgr & Asst Mgr Split 50/50, 
(13,137' and GF allocations 

(9] GF allocation 

PT Seasonal Employee 50/50 W&S Split 
(13,146 

(3,207 Allocations from GF 
(195 Allocations from GF 

(9 Allocations from GF 
(67 Allocations from GF 
- Allocations from GF 

(815 Based on wages: 6.2% 
(191 1 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
(1,703) 12.75% Jul-Dec 

- Primex 
(6,186) 

20% of general office supplies, copy 
costs, batteries; 50% of meter records 
maintenance; 50% Supplies/maint. multi-

- function plotter 
Lead service fine continued work 
(Federal requirement). Water System 

(3,250) Hydraulic Model updates. 
- Primex 
- Primex 
- Line item for insurance deductible 
- Damage repairs on insurance claims 

Legal expenses wellhead negotiations. 
- administrative orders 

620 

2,500 
(130 

20% Director, Town Engineer, Asst 
Engineer cellphones, 50% WIS Manager 
Bid packages, Requests for Proposals 
Annual Consumer Confidence Rpt 
(CCR) & postage 
Notice of main flushing, Public Hearings, 
violations, lead service inventory 
inquiries 
Annual national conference Dir, Eng 
20%, WS Mar & Asst. Mgr 50% 
Treatment, Distribution & Backflow 
required CEUs & dues 
Employee wellness needs beyond those 
provided by the Town's health insurance 
carrier. Hold until program is further 
developed 

(19462) A 

Page 1 of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Om Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %· Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Bllllnn 
1 FT Utilities Clerk (50/50 split W&S) & 

02433124 51110 WB- Sal/Wages FT 80.186 89,762 69,891 96,142 97,933 8,171 9.1% 97,349 (584) GF Allocations 
1 PT Utilities Clerk 24 hrs/wk (50/50 split 

02433124 51200 WB- Sal/Wa~f_T __ -•- .,, ____ 4,539 13,819 3,973 14,519 14,389 
- -

570 4.1% 14,160 (229) WSS) 
02433124 51300 WB- Sal/Waaes OT - 75 56 25 25 (50) -66.7% 25 - Allocations from GF 

Salaries Total 84,725 103,656 73,921 110,686 112,347 8,691 8.4% 111,534 (813] 

02433124 52100 WB- Health Insurance 28,438 28,031 22,209 33,361 33,268 5,237 18.7% 33,268 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52110 WB- Dental Insurance 1,919 1,869 1.484 1,962 1,962 93 5.0% 1,962 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52120 WB- Life Insurance 108 92 72 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52130 WB - L TO Insurance 119 113 85 110 110 (3) -2.7% 110 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52200 WB-FICA 5,115 6.427 4.453 6,863 6,966 539 8.4% 6,915 (501 Based on waQes: 6.2% 
02433124 52210 WB- Medicare 1,196 1,503 1,041 1,605 1,629 126 8.4% 1,617 (12] Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
02433124 52300 we- Retirement Town 11,049 12,155 9,464 12,632 12,849 694 5.7% 12,774 (75) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
02433124 52600 WB- Workers Comp Insurance 1,199 1,271 1,271 1,347 1,347 76 6.0% 1,347 - Primex 

Benefits Total 49,144 51,461 40,079 57,976 58,227 6,766 13.1% 58,089 (138) 

Water bill processing, ink cartridges. 
paper, letterhead, pens, etc - based on 

02433124 55200 WB-Supplles 2,844 3,250 1,641 3,000 3,000 (250) -7.7% 3,250 250 historical 
Certified shut-off notices - based on 

02433124 55224 we-Postage 5,701 6,325 7,253 6,325 6,325 - 0.0% 6,325 - review of historical spend 

Allocation of actuarial costs for GASB 
compliance. Split 50/25/25 GFIW/S (only 

02433124 55055 WB- Consultlna Services - 1,650 1,650 215 215 (1,435) -87.0o/o 1,650 1,435 need statement disclosure in 2025) 
Annual and Single Audits Fees - Year 2 
of 3-Year fee schedule. Allocated 
50/25/25% between GF, Waler & Sewer 

02433124 55014 WB- Audit Fees 6,250 14,500 8,555 13,500 13,500 (1,0001 -6.9% 14,500 1,000 Total $54K 
02433124 55213 WB- Phone Utilization 5,319 6,875 5,273 5,400 5,400 (1,475) -21.5% 6,875 1,475 12.5% allocation of IT cost 

12.5% allocation of IT internet services 
02433124 55159 WB- Internet Services 729 4,646 2,223 5,613 5,613 967 20.8% 4,646 (967) (website} 
02433124 55383 WB- Email Filtering/Archiving 1,113 1,238 - 263 263 (975) -78.8% 1,238 975 12.5% allocation of IT cost 

1/2 Munillnk UB Software Maintenance 
(3% incr for 8 mo.) & Munis Allocation @ 

02433124 55270 WB- Software Agreement 16,954 17,893 17,579 18,080 18,080 187 1.0% 17,893 (187) 5% Increase (projected) 
Previously was for munls PACE training 

02433124 55308 WB- Travel Reimbursement - 250 - - - (250] -100.0% 250 250 travel 
General Expenses Total 38,909 56,627 44,173 52,396 52,396 (4,231] -7.5% 56,627 4,231 

Water Blllln11 Total 172 778 211.744 158.173 221.058 222970 11226 5.3% 226.250 3280 A 

Page2 of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version #4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 202SSB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Orn Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budnet Budnet {Decrease) %· Difference Budget (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Distribution 
8 FT split 50/50 Water Distribution/Sewer 

02433222 51110 WO- Sal1Wa1:1es FT 157,370 236,716 137,385 239,221 238,729 2,013 0.9% 238,729 - Collection 
Avgs OT rate = $35/hr, 600 hours; for 
WD/SC/WWTP/PS (calls from dispatch 

02433222 51300 WO- Sal/Wages OT 18,649 21,000 14,372 21,000 21,000 - 0.0% 21,000 - or $CADA alarms) 
Pay for after hours on-call status, 1 
employee at $210/week split 50/50 

02433222 51310 WO- Sal/Wages Stand-By 844 7,280 3,090 5,460 5,460 {1,820) -25.0% 5,460 - WO/SC 
4 FT per union contract, sptit 50/50 

02433222 51400 WO• Lon1:1evitv Pay 181 2,150 - 2,200 2,200 50 2.3% 2,200 - WO/SC 
02433222 51121 WO-Sal/Wages Education/Training - 1,125 - 1,125 1,125 - 0.0% 1,125 -

Salaries Total 177,045 268,271 154.847 269,006 268,514 243 0.1% 268,514 -

02433222 52100 WO- Health Insurance 34,326 74,334 26,359 88,271 71,368 (2,966) -4.0% 71,368 - 18.7% increase in the oremium rate 
02433222 52110 WO- Dental Insurance 2.024 4,936 1,390 5,183 4,437 (499) -10.1% 4,437 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
02433222 52120 WO- Life Insurance 128 184 102 192 192 9 4.6% 192 - No increase 
02433222 52140 WO - Health Insurance Buyout 6,655 1,606 1,359 1,746 3,756 2,150 133.9% 3,756 - No increase 
02433222 52200 WO-FICA 11,030 16,633 9,392 16,678 16,648 15 0.1% 16,648 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
02433222 52210 WO- Medicare 2,579 3,890 2,196 3,901 3,893 4 0.1% 3,893 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 
02433222 52300 WO- Retirement Town 25,291 36,297 20,951 35,335 35,196 (1,101) -3.0% 35,196 - 12.75% Jul-Dec 
02433222 52600 WO- Workers Como Insurance 9,561 10,135 10,135 10,743 10,743 608 6.0% 10,743 - Primex 

Benefits Total 91.594 148.014 71,884 162,048 146,233 (1,781) -1.2% 146.233 -

9 water pumping stations/wells; PW 
02433222 55022 WO- Building Maintenance 5,845 7,000 17,512 7,000 7,000 - 0.0% 7,000 - campus analysis 

02433222 55105 WO- Eciuipment Maintenance 5,478 5,000 792 5,500 5,500 500 10.0% 5,000 (500) Pumps, generators, misc equipment 

Trench patch. materials, crushing; 
02433222 55252 WD- Road Repairs 8,789 25,000 5,145 15,000 15,000 (10,000) -40.0% 25,000 10,000 replacing deteriorating service saddles 

15 vehicles/equipment, 4 trailers spilt 
02433222 55319 WO- Vehicle Maintenance 9,943 10,000 10,952 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 - 50/SOWD/SC 

5 Hydrant assemblies, risers, service 
saddles, curbstops, pipe, valve boxes, 
other parts; 100 hydrant maintenance @ 
$220 ($22K); 100 valves turning @ 

02433222 55296 WO- Svstem Maintenance 53,476 60,000 42,343 60,000 60,000 - 0.0% 60,000 - $100/valve ($10K) 

Tank maintenance & rehab programs - 1 
MG Hampton Rd $37,300/yr; 1.5 MG 

02433222 55059 WO- Tank Maintenance 115,072 102,089 78,186 105,329 105,329 3,240 3.2% 102,089 (3,240) Epping Rd Tower $68,029/yr 
Distribution licenses exams/renewals 

02433222 55173 WO- Licenses 839 800 15 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - $50/ea 
02433222 55190 WO- Mobile Communication 1,390 1,600 816 1,600 1,600 - 0.0% 1,600 - 4 MiFrs (50%); tablet 

Pump station fire alarms ror Gilman, 
02433222 55545 WO- Fire Alarm Communication 4,180 3,500 2.450 2,100 2,100 (1,400) -40.0% 3,500 1,400 Lary, & Stadium - $175/qtr ea. 

02433222 55134 WD- General Hand Tools 932 1.800 1 003 1,800 1,800 - 0.0% 1800 - Drills, bits, taps, dies, ratchet wrenches 

Page 3ors 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025S8 
Budget vs. 2025S8 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 $ Increase/- 2024Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Org Object DescrlpUon Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %· Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 

Contract w/Fleet Screen & Convenient 
MD; USDOT required random testing for 

02433222 55003 WD• Orug/Ak:ohol Testing 245 900 126 500 500 (400) -44.4% 900 400 all COL holders & screening new hires 
02433222 55257 WO• Safetv Eauioment 1,344 4.000 1,153 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - PPE incl hardhats, gloves, Tyvek suits, re 

02433222 55314 WO-Uniforms 2,363 2,400 1,055 2,400 2,400 - 0.0% 2,400 - Per union contract, 8 split 50/50 WO/SC 
Neptune handheld and software 
agreement with Ti-Sales $6,000 (50% 
WIS); PeopleGIS asset managment 
modules $5,000, Upgrades & Support 

02433222 55136 WO- GIS Software 25,635 25,000 17,992 12,000 12,000 (13,000) -52.0% 25,000 13,000 $4,000 

Rebuild/replace meters to AWWA 
accuracy specifications, 400 meters >10 
yrs old S140k; brass meter parts $15k; 
testing, repair & replace backflow 

02433222 55188 WD- Metering & Back Flow 162,490 163,000 115,341 163,000 163,000 - 0.0% 163,000 - devices $Bk, brass fittings 
Pumps, UO cards, check valve rebuilds, 

02433222 55235 WD- Pump Station & Towers 5,303 24,450 12,808 24,450 24,450 - 0.0% 24,450 - fuses/breakers 
Heating/generator fuel; new generators 

02433222 55194 WD- Natural Gas 9,284 12,000 7,554 11,000 11,000 {1,000) -8.3% 12,000 1,000 at new well buildings 
02433222 55092 WO- Electricity 77,139 75,000 63,244 75,000 75,000 - 0.0% 75,000 - Water Pumoina Stations and towers; 3 w« 
02433222 55128 WO-Fuel 12,677 14,200 11,724 14,200 14,200 - 0.0% 14,200 - Vehicles & equipment fuel 

General Exoenses Total 502,423 537,739 390,214 515,679 515,679 (22,060) -4.1% 537,739 22,060 

Water Distribution Total 771.081 954024 616.944 946 733 930425 (23 5991 -2.5% 952 485 22060 A 

Page4 of 8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025 SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase{-

Org Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget {Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Treatment 

02433523 51110 WT- Sal/Waaes FT 267,541 306,231 235,053 337,310 340,008 33,777 11.0% 338,522 (1,486) 5 FT (First FY of Treatment Operator) 
02433523 51300 WT- Sal/Wages OT 55,734 19,075 48,735 45,000 45,000 25,925 135.9% 45,000 -

Pay for after hours on-call status, 1 
02433523 51310 WT- Sal/Waqes Stand-By 7,280 14,560 6,160 10,920 10,920 (3,640) -25.0% 10,920 - employee at $210/week 
02433523 51400 WT- Longevity Pay 1,800 1,900 - 2,000 2,000 100 5.3% 2,000 - 2 FT per union contract 
02433523 51121 WT-Sal/Wages EducationfTrainina 1,500 1,500 - 1,500 2,250 750 50.0% 2,250 -

Salaries Total 333,855 343,266 289,947 396,730 400,178 56,912 16.6% 398,692 (1,486) 

02433523 52100 WT- Health Insurance 92,722 113,671 82,864 151,794 151,794 38,123 33.5% 151,794 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
02433523 52110 WT- Dental Insurance 5,989 7,171 5,147 8,574 8,574 1,403 19.6% 8,574 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
02433523 52120 WT- Life Insurance 245 207 160 240 240 33 15.9% 240 - No increase 
02433523 52200 WT-FICA 20,261 21,282 17,485 24,597 24,811 3,529 16.6% 24,719 (92) Based on wages: 6.2% 
02433523 52210 WT- Medicare 4,738 4,977 4,089 5,753 5,803 825 16.6% 5,781 (221 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
02433523 52300 WT- Retirement Town 46,012 46,444 39,230 52,108 52,471 6,027 13.0% 52,282 (189) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
02433523 52600 WT- Workers Comp Insurance 9,559 10,132 10,132 10,740 10,740 608 6.0% 10,740 - Primex 

Benefits Total 179,527 203,885 159,108 253,806 254,433 50,548 24.8% 254,130 (303) 

02433523 55022 WT- Building Maintenance 10,952 12,000 9,537 15,000 15,000 3,000 25.0% 12,000 (3,000' 3 buildings@ SWTP & GWTP 
SWTP clearwell cleaning, GWTP basin 

02433523 55368 WT- Baslnflagoon Cleaning - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5.000 - cleanings 

Equipment repair & replacement: flow 
meter; valves; pumps; motors; blowers; 
chemical feed systems: valves; process 

02433523 55105 WT- Equipment Maintenance 45,913 45,000 22,684 45,000 45,000 - 0.0% 45,000 - instrumentation & analyzers 

Laboratory & field equipment reagents; 
02433523 55294 WT- Supplies Lab Equip 30,646 30,000 23,691 30,000 30,000 - 0.0% 30,000 - instrumentation calibration & verification 

Process-related engineering services 
(ex: nitrification); Part- Time Water 

02433523 55055 WT- Consulting 2,500 30,000 - 10,000 10,000 (20,000) -66.7% 30,000 20,000 Treatment Supervisor 

VT SCADAITelemetry, Hydrau6c Model 
02433523 55270 WT- Software Eauip/Contracted Srv 6,153 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 - H2O Map On-Call Support Services 

Required training for licensing; 
professional development; master 

02433523 55173 WT- Licenses 400 1,000 125 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - electrician 15 hr training 
02433523 55190 WT- Mobile Communication 1,093 2,600 694 2,600 2,600 - 0.0% 2,600 - WTP Ops. Supr. & On-call cellphones, 1 

02433523 55545 WT- Fire Alarm Communication - 1,500 - 1,400 1,400 (100) -6.7% 1,500 100 SWTP/GWTP fire alarms - $175/qtr ea. 
Boots, gloves, hard hats, eye & hearing 

02433523 55257 WT- Safety Equipment 1,130 1,500 719 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - protection 
02433523 55314 WT-Uniforms 2,223 2,600 1,140 2,600 2,600 - 0.0% 2,600 - Per union contract, 4 Operators 

VT SCADA, Mission $CADA, XL 
Reporter annual software maintenance 

02433523 55271 WT- Software Services 8,457 11,000 5,189 11,000 11,000 - 0.0% 11,000 - agreements 
Annual NHDES Dam registration fees: 
Reservoir & Pickpocket (high hazard) -

02433523 55072 WT- Dam Reaistrations 1,500 3,000 - 3000 3000 - 0.0% 3,000 - $1500 ea 

Page 5 of 8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Defautt 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Ora ObJect DescriDtlon Actual Budaet October Budnet Budaet {Decrease) %· Difference Budaet lDecreasel Exalanatlon 

Skinner Springs in Stratham, COX 
easement for Summer St, Pickpocket 

02433523 55229 WT .Property Taxes 466 400 308 750 750 350 87.5% 400 (350) Dam in Brentwood now tax exempt 

SOWA Compliance & Water Quality 
Analysis: bacteria, organic carbon, 
volatile & synthetic, quarterly 
PFOA/PFAS $4,500/qtr, 30 Lead & 

02433523 55161 WT-Lab testing 19,632 40,000 15,199 40,000 40,000 - 0.0% 40,000 - Copper samples, chloramines 

Water treatment chemicals: ammonium 
sulfate. sodium hypochlorite, ferric 
chloride, polyaluminum chloride, sodium 
hydroxide, carbon, sodium bi-carbonate, 
potassium permanganate. 

02433523 55034 WT- Chemicals 154,726 170,000 147,908 200,860 200,860 30,860 18.2% 170,000 (30,860) polvphosohate 
02433523 55194 WT- Natural Gas 18,955 27,500 16,854 25,000 25,000 {2,500] -9.1% 27,500 2,500 Heatina/oenerator fuel 
02433523 55092 WT- Electricitv 78,491 80,000 64,940 80,000 80,000 - 0.0% 80,000 - Pumps, lk:lhts, etc. 
02433523 55128 WT-Fuel 1,714 3,000 1,857 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - Water Treatment vehicles 

Alarm Lines: AT&T(SMS Text) 
$1500NR, Comcast $3200NR, 

02433523 55211 WT- Phone Lease Alarms 4,232 5,500 4,247 6,500 6,500 1,000 18.2% 5,500 (1,000) Consolidated $1800NR 
General ExPenses Total 389,183 481,600 315,093 494,210 494,210 12,610 2.6% 481,600 (12,610) 

Water Treatment Total 902.565 1 028.751 764148 1144.746 1.148 821 120.070 11.7% 1.134-422 114.3991 A 

Page 6 of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Orn Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 

Debt Service 
02471125 58024 Water Tank SRF 222,514 229,972 229.972 237,681 237,681 7,709 3.4% 237.681 - 2028 Final payment 
02471125 58010 Water Line- Main & Lincoln Sis 120,000 120,000 120.000 - - (120.000 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
02471125 58012 Portsmouth Ave Waterline 15,268 - - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
02471125 58023 Larv Lane GWTP SRF 237,479 242,133 242,133 246,879 246,879 4,746 2.0% 246,879 - 2036 Final payment 
02471125 58027 Lincoln Street Phase #2 9,593 9,593 9,593 9,593 9,593 - 0.0% 9,593 - 2032 Final payment 
02471125 58028 Court Street Culvert 3,747 3,747 3,747 3,747 3,747 - 0.0% 3,747 - 2027 Final payment 
02471125 58032 Washinmon Street 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 - 0.0% 55,000 - 2028 Final payment 
02471125 58035 Salem St. Uti6ty Design & Engin 25,385 25,385 25,385 - - (25,385 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
02471125 58036 Surface Water Plant TTHM Treatment 88,241 88,241 88,241 88,241 88,241 - 0.0% 88,241 - 2034 Final payment 
02471125 58038 Groundwater Sources 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 - 0.0% 105,000 - 2025 Final payment 
02471125 58042 Salem St. Utilitv Improvements 139,706 139,706 139,706 137,255 137,255 (2,451 -1.8% 137,255 - 2036 Final payment 
02471125 58047 Groundwater Exploration 88,900 88,900 88,900 88,900 88,900 - 0.0% 88,900 - 2036 Final payment 
02471125 58048 Westside Drive Deskin & Em:1in 24,197 - (24,197 -100.0% - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
02471125 58052 Groundwater Source Development 95,069 95.069 95,069 95,069 - 0.0% 95,069 - 2028 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
02471125 58051 Westside Drive Construction 63,063 63,063 63,063 63,063 0 0.0% 63,063 - excludes SRF) 

Water Debt Service Princioal Total 1,110,832 1,290,006 1,265,810 1,130,428 1,130,428 (159,578 -12.4% 1,130.428 -
02472126 58524 Water Tank SRF 48,233 40,774 40,774 33,065 33,065 7,709 -18.9% 33,065 - 2028 Final payment 
02472126 58502 Water Line- Main & Lincoln Sts 12,240 6,120 6,120 - - 6,120 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
02472126 58504 Portsmouth Ave Waterline 817 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
02472126 58522 Lary Lane GWTP SRF 74,153 69,499 69,499 64,753 64,753 4,746 -6.8% 64,753 - 2036 Final payment 
02472126 58525 Lincoln Street Phase #2 4,509 4,020 4,020 3,530 3,530 (490 -12.2% 3,530 - 2032 Flnal oavment 
02472126 58529 Court Street Culvert 956 764 764 573 573 (191 -25.0% 573 - 2027 Flnal payment 
02472126 58531 Washlni:iton Street 16,065 13,260 13,260 10.455 10.455 (2,805 -21.2% 10,455 - 2028 Final oavment 
02472126 58535 Salem St. UtiUty Design & Engin 2,589 1,295 1,295 - - (1,295 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
02472126 58536 Surface Water Plant TTHM Treatment 6,578 5,639 5,639 4,699 4,699 (940 -16.7% 4,699 - 2034 Final payment 
02472126 58538 Groundwater Sources 16,065 10,710 10,710 5,355 5,355 5,355 -50.0% 5,355 - 2025 Final payment 
02472126 58542 Salem St. Utility lmorovements 88,642 81,517 81,517 74,392 74,392 7,125 -8.7% 74,392 - 2036 Final payment 
02472126 58547 Groundwater Exploratlon 49,358 40,795 40,795 36,261 36,261 4,534 -11.1% 36,261 - 2036 Final payment 
02472126 58548 Westside Drive Deslan & Enain 2,420 - 2,420 -100.0% - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
02472126 58552 Groundwater Source Development 24,647 24,647 19,394 19,394 5,253 -21.3% 19,394 - 2028 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
02472126 58551 Westside Drive Construction 49,047 49,047 45,027 45,027 (4,020) -8.2% 45,027 - excludes SRF) 

Water Debt Service Interest Total 320,206 350,507 348,086 297,504 297,504 297,504 -

Debt Service Total 1 431 038 1 640 513 1613896 1427 932 1427932 (212 5811 -13.0% 1.427.932 - A 

Page 7of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025 SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Om ObJect Descrlotlon Actual Budaet October Budnet Budaet (Decreasel %· Difference Budaet (Decreasel Ex Dia nation 

CaDltal Outlav 
02490027 55318 CO- Caoital Outlay - Leases 15,329 - - - - - - - See seoarate lease schedule 

Allocation of Vehicle Data Gathering (M 

02490027 57006 CO- Capital Outlay - Eauioment - 22,500 15,951 1,935 1,935 (20,565' -91.4% 22,500 20,565 Tracking) svstem 
02490027 57009 CO- Caoital Outlay - Vehicle - 26,750 - - - (26,750' -100.0% - - See seoarate lease schedule 

CO- Capital Outlay • Land 
02490027 55361 Acquisition/Purchase - - - -

SWTP Filter/Clarifier Maintenance 
$29,463 (YR3 of contract); Gilman Well 
Rehabilitation $60,000; Cross Road 
Water Storage Tank Cleaning $40,000, • 
GWTP Filter Media Replenishment 
$30,000; Epping Road Storage Tank 

02490027 57015 CO- Water Svstem Caoital 461,260 541,000 23,075 270,000 270,000 (271,000} -50.1% 270,000 - Mixer Replacement $50,000 
02490027 57016 WF- Caoital Outlay - WTP 5,000 - -

Caoltal Outlav Total 476,589 590,250 44.026 271,935 271,935 (318,315) -53.9% 292,500 20,565 A 

Water .annronrlatlons from Reserves 
02490100 55010 WF- Approp frm Res Rate Study 20,000 - - - -

AnnroD. from Reserves Total 20000 . . . . . . . 

Water Fund Total 4,201,051 4,962,773 3,524,098 4,805,092 4,801,357 (361,417) -7.3% 4,813,401 12,044 A 

WF -Warrant Artlcles/Borrowlna -
Groundwater Source Develooment - 6,800,000 6,800,000 CIPpg.35 

02500000 59045 SEIU 1984 CoUective Bargaining - TBD TBD SEIU 1984 CBA 
School Street Area Reconstruction 1,692,800 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 
Surface Water Treatment Plant - Desian 500,000 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 

Total Warrant ArtlcleslBorrowlng . 2,192,800 . 6,800,000 6,800,000 . 0.0% - (6,800,000) 

Total Water Fund with WAR 412011051 7,155,573 3,524,096 11,4051092 111401,357 {3i736) 0.0% 4,613,401 {6,787,956) 

Page 8of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

... v ..... ue,ault 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Org Oblect Description Actual 2024 Budget October Budaet Budget (Decrease) %· Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
SEWER FUND 

Administration 
2 FT WIS Mgr & Asst Mgr Split 50/50. 

03432031 51110 SA- Sal/Wages FT 227,832 293,347 166,355 324,505 333,649 40,302 13.7% 320,512 (13,137) and GF allocations 
GF allocation (HR Assistant move to 

03432031 51200 SA- Sal/Wages PT - 3,043 3,237 3,477 3,225 182 6.0% 3,216 (9) FT) 
PT Seasonal Employee 50/50 W&S 

03432031 51210 SA- Sal/Wages Temp 3,417 3,500 - 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - Split 
Salaries Total 231,249 299,890 169,592 331,482 340,374 40,484 13.5% 327,228 (13,146 

03432031 52100 SA- Health Insurance 49,442 67,336 29,202 80,172 76,377 9,041 13.4% 73,170 (3,207 Allocations from GF 
03432031 52110 SA- Dental Insurance 4,150 5,568 2,684 5,758 5,407 (161) -2.9% 5,212 (195 Allocations from GF 
03432031 52120 SA- Life Insurance 253 265 132 302 302 37 14.0% 293 (9 Allocations from GF 
03432031 52130 SA-LTD Insurance 589 540 405 602 602 62 11.5% 535 (67 Allocations from GF 
03432031 52140 SA- Health Insurance Buyout 641 2,377 1,783 2,813 2,813 436 18.3% 2,813 - Allocations from GF 
03432031 52200 SA-FICA 14,146 18,593 10,386 20,552 21,103 2,510 13.5% 20,288 (815 Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432031 52210 SA- Medicare 3,308 4,348 2,419 4,806 4,935 587 13.5% 4,745 (191 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun: 
03432031 52300 SA- Retirement Town 31,993 39,690 22,305 42,600 43,759 4,069 10.3% 42,056 (1,703) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432031 52600 SA- Workers Comp Insurance 5,144 5,453 5,453 5,780 5,780 327 6.0% 5,780 - Primex 

Benefits Total 109,666 144,170 74,768 163,385 161,078 16,907 11.7% 154,892 (6,186 

20% or general office suppries, copy 
costs, batteries; 50% of meter records 
maintenance: 50% suppties/maint. 

03432031 55293 SA- Supplies 3,004 4,500 2,445 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - multi-function plotter 
Postage allocation, IPP notices and 

03432031 55224 SA-Postage 2,331 2,000 2,679 2,200 2,200 200 10.0% 2,000 (200) MOR reports 

03432031 55055 SA- Consulting Services 12,700 5,000 12,845 8,250 8,250 3,250 65.0% 5,000 (3,250) Process-related engineering services 
03432031 55124 SA- Fleet Insurance 818 876 876 937 937 61 7.0% 937 - Primex 
03432031 55228 SA- Property Insurance 85,065 91,018 91,017 97,389 97,389 6,371 7.0% 97,389 - Primex 

03432031 55158 SA-Insurance Reimbursed Repairs 1,548 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Damage repairs on insurance claims 
Legal expenses related to EPA permit 

03432031 55170 SA- Legal Exoonse 5,216 7,500 - 7,500 7,500 - 0.0% 7,500 - issues 
20% Director, Town Engineer, Asst 
Engineer cellphones, 50% WIS 

03432031 55190 SA- Mobile Communications 144 800 241 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - Manager 

03432031 55002 SA- Advertising 591 500 - 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - Bid packages, requests for proposals 

Annual national conference Dir, Eng 
03432031 55050 SA- Conf Rooms/Meals 583 3,500 333 2,880 2,880 (620) -17.7% 3,500 620 20%, WS Mgr & Asst. Mgr 50% 

Wastewater treatment and collections 
03432031 55091 SA- Education/Training 1,769 4,500 2,895 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - training 

Employee wellness needs beyond 
those provided by the Town's heahh 
insurance carrier. Hold until program 

03432031 55098 SA- Employee Wellness - 2,500 - - - (2,500) -100.0% 2,500 2,500 is further developed 
General Expenses Total 113,768 122,695 113,331 129,457 129,457 6,762 5.5% 129,127 (330) 

Administration Total 454 683 566,755 357 692 624324 630 909 64.153 11.3% 611247 (19.662) A 

Page 1 of 8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sawer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

,v,., uerau1t 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025 SB S Increase{- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase{-
Ora ObJect Description Actual 2024 Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 

Bllllna 

1 FT Utilities Clerk (50/50 split W&S) 
03432134 51110 SB- Sal/WaQeS FT 79,908 89,762 69,599 96,142 97,933 8,171 9.1% 97,349 (584) & GF Allocations 

1 PT Utilities Clerk 24 hrs/wk (from 16 
03432134 51200 SB- Sal/Wages PT 3,793 13,819 3,314 14,519 14,389 570 4.1% 14,160 (229) hrs/wk PRYR) (50/50 split W$S) 
03432134 51300 SB- Sal/Wages OT - 75 56 25 25 (50 -66.7% 25 - Allocations from GF 

Salaries Total 83,701 103,656 72,969 110,686 112,347 8,691 8.4% 111,534 (813) 

03432134 52100 SB- Health Insurance 28,329 28,031 22,209 33,361 33,268 5,237 18.7% 33,268 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52110 SB- Dental Insurance 1,904 1,869 1,484 1,962 1,962 93 5.0% 1,962 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52120 SB- Life Insurance 108 92 72 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52130 SB - LTD Insurance 119 113 85 110 110 (3) -2.7% 110 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52200 SB-FICA 5,053 6,427 4,394 6,863 6,966 539 8.4% 6,915 (501 Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432134 52210 SB- Medicare 1,182 1,503 1,028 1,605 1,629 126 8.4% 1,617 (121 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun: 
03432134 52300 SB- Retirement Town 11,011 12,155 9,424 12,632 12,849 694 5.7% 12,774 (75) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432134 52600 SB- Workers Comp Insurance 1,199 1,271 1,271 1,347 1,347 76 6.0% 1,347 - Primex 

Benefits Total 48,905 51,461 39,968 57,976 58,227 6,766 13.1% 58,089 (1381 

Water bill processing, ink cartridges, 
paper, letterhead, pens, etc - based 

03432134 55200 SB- Supplies 2,773 3,250 1,611 3,000 3,000 (250) -7.7% 3,250 250 on historical 

Postage for sewer bills - based on 
03432134 55224 SB-Postage 2,000 2,750 3,000 2,750 2,750 - 0.0% 2,750 - review of historical spend. 

Allocation of actuarial costs for GASB 
compliance. Split 50/25/25 GF/W/S 
(only need statement disclosure in 

03432134 55055 SB- Consultina Services 270 1,650 1,650 215 215 (1,435) -87.0% 1,650 1,435 2025) 

Annual and Single Audits Fees • Year 
2 of 3-Year fee schedule. Allocated 
50/25125% between GF, Water & 

03432134 55014 SB-Audit Fees 6,250 14,500 8,555 13,500 13,500 (1,000] -6.9% 14,500 1,000 Sewer-Total $54K 
03432134 55213 SB- Phone Utilization 5,319 6,875 5,273 5,400 5,400 (1,475) -21.5% 6,875 1,475 12.5% allocation of IT cost 
03432134 55247 SB- Re!listrv of Deeds 26 - - - Sewer Lien Releases 

12.5% allocation of IT internet 
03432134 55159 SB- Internet Services 729 4,646 2,223 5,613 5,613 967 20.8% 4,646 (967) services (website) 
03432134 55383 SB- Email ArchivinQ 1,113 1,238 - 263 263 (975) -78.8% 1,238 975 12.5% allocation of IT cost 

1/2 Munilink UB Software 
Maintenance (5% incr for 8 mo.) & 
Munis Allocation @ 7% increase 

03432134 55270 SB- Software Agreement 17,254 17,893 17,579 18,080 18,080 187 1.0% 17,893 (187) (projected) 
Previously was for munis PACE 

03432134 55308 SB- Travel Reimbursement - 250 - - - (250) -100.0% 250 250 traininr, travel 

03432134 55091 SB- Education & Trainin!l 140 - - - - - - - Previously was for munis travel 
General Exoenses Total 35,872 53,052 39,890 48,821 48,821 (4,231) -8.0% 53,052 4,231 

Sewer Bllllna Total 168 478 208.169 152,827 217 483 219,395 11.226 5.4% 222.675 3280 A 

Page 2of8 



Town of Exeter - .. 

2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

,u,., uerau11 
2025 SB Budget 2025 SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/• 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Org Oblect Description Actual 2024 Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) %· Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Collection 
03432532 51110 SC- SalJWages FT 155,796 236,716 135,271 239,221 238,729 2,013 0.9% 238,729 - 8 FT split 50/50 WD/SC 

WD/SCIWWTP/PS (calls from 
03432532 51300 SC- SalJWages OT 640 21,000 283 21,000 21,000 - 0.0% 21,000 - dispatch or SCAOA alarms) 

Pay for after hours on-call status, 1 
employee at $210/week split 50/50 

03432532 51310 SC- SalJWages Stand-By 844 7,280 3,090 5,460 5,460 (1,820) -25.0% 5,460 - WO/SC 
8 FT per union contract split 50/50 

03432532 51400 SC- Lonaevitv Pav - 2,150 - 2,200 2,200 50 2.3% 2,200 - WO/SC 
03432532 51121 SC- Education/Training - 1,125 - 1,125 1,125 - 0.0% 1,125 -

Salaries Total 157,280 268.271 138,644 269,006 268,514 243 0.1% 268,514 -
03432532 52100 SC-Health Insurance 34,103 74,334 26,360 88,271 71,368 (2,966) -4.0% 71,368 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
03432532 52110 SC- Dental Insurance 2,020 4,936 1,390 5,183 4,437 (4991 -10.1% 4,437 - 5.0% Increase in the oremium rate 
03432532 52120 SC- life Insurance 126 184 102 192 192 9 4.6% 192 - No increase 
03432532 52140 SC • Health Insurance Buyout 6,655 1,606 1,359 1,746 3,756 2,150 133.9% 3,756 . 
03432532 52200 SC-FICA 9,807 16,633 8,393 16,678 16,648 15 0.1% 16,648 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432532 52210 SC- Medicare 2,294 3,890 1,963 3,901 3,893 4 0.1% 3,893 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
03432532 52300 SC- Retirement Town 22,586 36,297 18,768 35,335 35,196 (1,101) -3.0% 35,196 - 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432532 52600 SC- Workers Comp Ins 9,559 10,132 10,132 10,740 10,740 608 6.0% 10,740 - Primex 

Benefits Total 87,149 148,011 68,466 162,045 146,230 (1,781] -1.2% 146,230 -

10 pumping stations, PW campus 
03432532 55022 SC- Building Maintenance 7,252 10,000 5,734 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 - analysis 

03432532 55105 SC- Equipment Maintenance 4,428 5,000 3,516 S.000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - consumables; repairs: cutting heads 
03432532 55211 SC- Phone Lease Alarms 98 - - - . -

Sewer trench paving: compaction test 
requirements, service repairs at 

03432532 55252 SC- Road Repairs 350 10,000 - 5,000 5,000 (5,000) -50.0% 10,000 S.000 mains 
Mainl, catch basin & sump pump 

03432532 55153 SC- 1/1 Abatement - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - removal, smoke & dye testing 
03432532 55369 SC- Pipe Refining 5.000 4.302 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - Relining vitrified clay, RCP 

10 vehicles, 3 trailers, sp&t 50/50 with 
03432532 55319 SC- Vehicle Maintenance 9,715 10,000 4,648 12,000 12,000 2,000 20.0% 10,000 (2,()_Q!)) water dist 

Transport of gravel, sand, etc. to 
03432532 55140 SC- Grit Removal 664 2,750 1.402 2,750 2,750 - 0.0% 2,750 - Waste Management 

Maintenance fee for Combined Sewer 
Overflow (CSO) S 13.5K annual 
contract for monitoring NPDES public 

03432532 55543 SC- CSO Monitoring 13,500 13,500 10,125 13,500 13,500 - 0.0% 13,500 - notification of CSO events 

Manholes, piping & service repairs 
(reduced $20k in FY24 due to staffing 

03432532 55179 SC- Manhole Maintenance 55,241 50,000 18,498 50,000 50,000 - 0.0% 50,000 - shortages) 

Maintain 22 sewer pumps; wear rings, 
03432532 55236 SC- Pump & Control Maintenance 25508 30000 7,067 30000 30000 - 0.0% 30000 - imoellers, shaft couplings, seals 

Page3of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

.:u.::, oeratm 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB S Increase/• 2024 Budget 2025 Default lncrease/-
Org Object Descrlntlon Actual 2024 Budaet October Budaet Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budaet fDecrease) Exnlanatlon 

19 certifications for 16 individuals in 
sewer collection; 1/2 master 

03432532 55173 SC- Licenses 399 850 15 850 850 . 0.0o/o 850 . electrician fdue in Novl 
03432532 55190 SC- Mobile Communications 1.819 1,780 816 1,780 1,780 . 0.0o/o 1,780 . 4 MiFrs (50%),2 tablets 

Contract w/Fleet Screen & 
Convenient MD; USDOT required 
random testing for all CDL holders & 

03432532 55003 SC- DruQ/Alcohol Testin11 149 500 202 500 500 . 0.0o/o 500 . screening 

Main Pump Station fire alarm, 

03432532 55545 SC- Fire Alarm Communication 700 1,500 1,750 1,500 1,500 . 0.0o/o 1,500 . Webster Pump Station 

PPE & tools for new asbestos pipe 
OSHA standards, confined space 

03432532 55257 SC- Safetv Eauioment 2,669 2,750 818 2,750 2,750 . 0.0o/o 2,750 . equlo. malnt. 
03432532 55314 SC- Uniforms 2,363 2.400 1,055 2,400 2,400 . 0.0% 2,400 . 7 solit 50/50 WO/SC 

Neptune handheld and software 
agreement with Ti-Sales S6,000 (50% 
W/S); PeopleGIS asset managment 
modules $5,000, Upgrades & Support 

03432532 55136 SC- GIS Software 4,893 10,000 8,413 12,000 12,000 2,000 20.0% 10,000 (2,000) $4,000 
VT SCADA/Telemet,y, On-Call 

03432532 55260 SC- SCADA Software 2,133 3,000 364 3,000 3,000 . 0.0% 3,000 . SUDDOrl Services 

03432532 55301 SC-Tools 300 2,500 702 2,500 2,500 . 0.0o/o 2,500 . Sewer auaers, CCTV oarts 
03432532 55194 SC· Natural Gas 12,443 15,000 8,491 15,000 15,000 . 0.0% 15,000 . Heat & aenerator fuel 
03432532 55092 SC- Electricitv 121,044 105,000 73,937 120,000 120,000 15,000 14.3% 105,000 (15,000 Heat, fights, pumps, etc. 

Diesel, propane, gasoline for vehicles, 
03432532 55128 SC-Fuel 12,677 14,200 11,724 14,200 14,200 . 0.0% 14,200 - equipment and pumping stations 

General Exoenses Total 278,342 300,730 163.579 314,730 314,730 14,000 4.7% 300,730 (14,0001 
. 

Collectlon Total 522.772 717.012 370 689 745 781 729473 12461 1.7% 715473 114 0001 A 

Page4of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

,v,~ uerau1t 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Ora Oblect Description Actual 2024 Budget October Budnet Budnet (Decrease) o/o· Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Treatment 

03432633 51110 ST- Sal/Waaes FT 236,662 331,804 207,218 372,313 374,932 43,128 13.0% 373,489 (1,443) 6 FT (First FY of Treatment Operator) 
03432633 51200 ST- Salaries/Wages PT 32,530 - -

average OT rate= $36.95/hr, 514 
03432633 51300 ST- Sal/Wages OT 17,876 19,000 15,052 19,000 19,000 - 0.0% 19,000 - hours 

After hrs on-call status, 2 employees 
03432633 51310 ST- Sal/Wages Stand-By 7,000 14,560 6,100 21,840 21,840 7,280 50.0% 21,840 - at $210/wk 
03432633 51400 ST- Longevity Pay 850 900 - 950 950 50 5.6% 950 - 1 FT per union contract 
03432633 51121 ST- Education/Training 1,750 1,750 - 1,250 1,250 (500) -28.6% 1,250 -

Salaries Total 264,138 368,014 260,900 415,353 417,972 49,958 13.6% 416,529 (1,443) 

03432633 52100 ST- Health Insurance 90,744 141,814 83,285 181,947 172,266 30,452 21.5% 172,266 - 18.7% increase in the oremium rate 
03432633 52110 ST- Dental Insurance 5,900 9,160 5,513 11,039 11,039 1,879 20.5% 11,039 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
03432633 52120 ST- Life Insurance 216 252 153 288 288 36 14.3% 288 - No increase 
03432633 52200 ST-FICA 15,431 22,817 15,259 25,752 25,914 3,097 13.6% 25,825 (89) Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432633 52210 ST- Medicare 3,609 5,336 3,569 6,023 6,061 724 13.6% 6,040 (21) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
03432633 52300 ST- Retirement Town 36,238 49,792 29,878 54,559 54,803 5,011 10.1% 54,619 (184) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432633 52600 ST- Workers Comp Insurance 9,561 10,135 10,135 10,743 10,743 608 6.0% 10,743 - Primex 

Benefits Total 161,698 239,306 147,791 290,351 281,114 41,808 17.5% 280,820 (294) 

3 high exposure buildings; 6 new 
03432633 55022 ST- Building Maintenance 8,926 11,000 12,890 11,000 11,000 - 0.0% 11,000 - bldgs & 4 large process tanks 
03432633 55050 ST- Conf/Room/Meals 315 - -

Equipment repair & replacement: 
chem feed pumps; flow meters; 
motorized valves; aerators; 
centrifuges (2); RAS/WAS pumps (6), 
UV Bulbs, Ballasts & wiper motors 
($50k); DO, ORP & TN probes 
replacement ($15k); Atlas Copco, 

03432633 55105 ST- Eauipment Maintenance 98,788 100,000 77,027 130,000 130,000 30,000 30.0% 100,000 (30,000) Solarbee circulator maint. contract 
Invasive species control in lagoons 

03432633 55337 ST-Weed Control 2,243 4,500 2,482 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - from 2x to 3x/yr 

03432633 55204 ST- Outfall Dredging 3,000 6,000 - 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - Cleaning & Inspection on plant outfall 

Industrial pre-treatment permit 
03432633 55154 ST- Industrial Pre-treat 9,733 15,000 5,475 12,000 12,000 (3,000) -20.0o/o 15,000 3,000 renewals w/monitoring (Typ. 5/YR) 

Inter-lagoon sluice gates/piping, wires, 
03432633 55220 ST- Pond/Lagoon Maintenance 1,193 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - etc. 

Required training for licensing; 
professional development; master 

03432633 55173 ST- Licenses 569 1,000 200 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - electrician 15 hr training 

WWTP Ops. Sup. & On-call 
03432633 55190 ST- Mobile Communications 1,157 3,000 847 2,600 2,600 (400) -13.3% 3,000 400 cellphones, 1 MiFi for SCADA backup 

WWTF fire alarms and SCADA 
alarms, 2 A TT Cellular Alarm Dialers, 

03432633 55545 ST- Alarm Communications 4243 8000 1473 8000 8000 - 0.0% 8000 - Comcast 

Page 5 of 8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version #4 

o1:uo1:.J uetau11 
2025 SB Budget 2025S8 Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Org Object Description Actual 2024 Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Contract w/Fleet Screen & 
Convenient MD; USDOT required 
random testing for all CDL holders & 

03432633 55003 ST· Drug/Alcohol Testing 20 500 132 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - screening new hires 

PPE, gas monitors. Tyvek suits, 
03432633 55257 ST- Safety Equipment 2.277 3,500 2,325 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - gloves, confined space equip. maint. 

03432633 55314 ST- Uniforms 2,751 3,700 1,949 3,000 3,000 {700) -18.9% 3,700 700 Uniforms for 5 WWTP operators 
VT SCADA & maintenance 

03432633 55260 ST- SCADA Software/Hardware 6,966 7,500 5,185 7,500 7,500 - 0.0% 7,500 - agreement 

Annual NHDES Dam registration 
fees: WWTP Outfall & Clemson Pond 

03432633 55072 ST- Dam Registration 1,500 1,500 - 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - $750 ea 
CSO testing, GBTN Permit testing, 
NPDES EPA effluent testing 
(PFAS/PFOA, Arsenic), groundwater 
monitor report, Great Bay & river 
monitoring fmm PREP $85k & TN 
annual report; Biosolids monitoring 

03432633 55161 ST- Lab Testina 115,016 120,000 105,838 120,000 130,000 10,000 8.3% 120,000 (10,000) (PFAS/PFOA including car washes) 

polymer, magnesium hydroxide, & 
03432633 55034 ST- Chemicals 107,857 130,000 77,164 130,000 130,000 - 0.0% 130,000 - supplemental carbon 

Biweekly centrifuge solids generation 
& weekly disposal at Turnkey; July 
2024 price increase ($145 to 
$155/ton); July 2025 price increase 

03432633 55373 ST- Solids Handling 262,867 325,000 196,387 300,000 300,000 (25,000) -7.7% 325,000 25,000 ($155 to $164/ton) 
03432633 55194 ST- Natural Gas 15,236 30,000 10,304 17,500 17,500 (12,500) -41.7% 30,000 12,500 Building heat 

Aerators, lights, recirc. & chem feed 
03432633 55092 ST- Electricity 206,796 250,000 169,728 230,000 230,000 (20,000) -8.0% 250,000 20,000 pumps; increase in rate 

WWTP vehicles: pick-up w/plow, 
03432633 55128 ST-Fuel 5,120 5,400 3,117 4,100 4,100 (1,300) -24.1% 5,400 1,300 SUV. front end loader, UTV 

03432633 55131 ST- Gas Monitorina - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 - Hydrogen sulfide monitoring 
General Expenses Total 856,256 1,027,700 672,838 994,800 1,004,600 {22,900) -2.2% 1,027,700 22,900 

Sewer Treatment Total 1.282.092 1.635 020 1.081.528 1700 504 1703.886 68.866 4.2% 1725049 21,163 A 

Page6 of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

,u,.i ue,au1t 
2025 SB Budget 20258B Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Org Oblect Description Actual 2024 Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decreasel Explanation 

Debt Service 
03471135 58009 Jady Hill Phase II 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 - 0.0% 130,000 - 2032 Final payment 
03471135 58013 Portsmouth Av Sewerline 79,732 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
03471135 58011 Sewerlne Lincoln & Main Sts 15,000 15,000 15,000 - - (15,000 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
03471135 58025 Lincoln Street Ph#2 53,219 53 219 53,219 53,219 53,219 - 0.0% 53,219 - 2032 Final payment 
03471135 58035 Salem St. Utility Design & Engin 24,538 24,538 24,538 - - (24,5381 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
03471135 58033 Wastewater Treatment Plant 2,620,678 2,620,678 - 2,620,678 2,620,678 - 0.0% 2,620,678 - 2039 Final payment 
03471135 58040 SWTP Lagoon Sludge Removal 145,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 - 0.0% 145,000 - 2036 Final payment 
03471135 58041 Salem St. Utility Improvements 88,853 88,853 88,853 87,294 87,294 (1,559 -1.8% 87,294 - 2036 Final payment 
03471135 58046 Westside Drive Desmn & Engin 8,737 - (8,737 -100.0% - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
03471135 58053 Court Street Pump Station 76,056 76,056 76,055 76,055 (1 0.0% 76,055 - 2028 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
03471135 58051 Westside Drive Construction 19,757 19,757 19,757 19,757 - 0.0% 19,757 - excludes SRF) 
03471135 58054 Squamscott River Sewer Siphons 510,000 510,000 510,000 510,000 - 2034 Final payment 

Sewer Debt Service Principal Total 3,157,020 3,181,838 552,423 3,642,003 3,642,003 460,165 14.5% 3,642,003 -

03472136 58520 Jady HiD Phase II 31,879 27,350 27,350 23,150 23,150 (4,200 -15.4% 23,150 - 2032 Final payment 
03472136 58505 Portsmouth Ave Sewerins 4,266 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
03472136 58503 Sewerline Lincoln & Main Sts 1,530 765 765 - - (765 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
03472136 58526 Lincoln Street Ph#2 25,013 22,299 22,299 19,585 19,585 (2,714 -12.2% 19,585 - 2032 Final oavment 
03472136 58535 Salem St. Utitity Desian & Enain 2,503 1,251 1,251 - - (1,251 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
03472136 58533 Wastewater Treatment Plant 838,617 786,203 - 733,790 733,790 (52,413 -6.7% 733,790 - 2039 Final payment 
03472136 58540 SWTP Lagoon Sludge Removal 92,455 85,060 85,060 77,665 77,665 (7,395 -8.7% 77,665 - 2036 Final payment 
03472136 58541 Salem St. Utifitv Improvements 56,376 51,845 51,845 47,313 47,313 (4,532 -8.7% 47,313 - 2036 Final payment 
03472136 58546 Westside Drive Design & Engin 874 - (874 -100.0% - 2029 Final oavment ESTIMATE 
03472136 58553 Court Street Pump Station 19,717 19,717 15,515 15,515 (4,202 -21.3% 15,515 - 2028 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
03472136 58551 Westside Drive Construction 15,366 15,366 14,107 14,107 (1,259) -8.2% 14,107 - excludes SRF) 
03472136 58554 Sauamscott River Sewer Siphons 102,000 102,000 102,000 102,000 - 2034 Final payment 

Sewer Debt Service Interest Total 1,052,639 1,010,730 223,654 1,033,125 1,033,125 22,395 2.2% 1,033,125 -

Debt Service Total 4,209,659 4,192,568 776 077 4,675,128 4,675,128 482,560 11.5% 4,675,128 - A 

Canltal Outlav 

03490237 57010 CO- Capital Outlav - Leases 15,329 106,655 87.001 87,001 87,001 (19,654} -18.4% 87,001 - See separate Lease schedule 
CO- Capital Outlay • Land 

03490237 55361 Acquisition/Purchase - 1 - (1) -100.0% 1 1 
Allocation of Vehicle Data Gathering 

03490237 57006 CO- Capital Outlay - Equipment - 22,500 15,951 1,935 1,935 (20,565) -91.4% 22,500 20,565 l(M Tracking) system 
Fine Bubble Aeration Blower Repair 
($50k), Centrifuge 6,000 HR Service 

03490237 57017 CO- Capital Outlay- WWTP 33,620 15,000 9,567 100,000 100,000 85,000 566.7% 15,000 (85,000) ($50,000) 

03490237 57009 CO- Capital Outlay - Vehicle - 26,750 - (26,750) -100.0% - See separate Lease schedule 
Capital OuUav Total 48,949 170,906 112,519 188936 188,936 18,030 10.5% 124,502 (64,4341 A 

Sewer .4n1i ronriations from Reserves 
03490363 55010 SF-Aoorop from Res Rate Study 20,000 - - -
03490363 55540 SF-Approp frm Reserves-Siphons 47,134 468,938 - -

Sewer Appropriations from 
Reserves Total 67,134 - 468,938 - - - - -
Sewer Fund Total 6 753 767 7.490 430 3 320 270 8152155 8147 727 657.296 8.8% 8.074074 (73,653) A 

Warrant Artlcles/Borrowlna 

Page 7 of 8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

.r;u.r;" ueJ8Ull 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budgetvs.2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB S Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Om Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual 2024 Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budaet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

CIP pg.16 - Replacement of drainage 
infrastructure (from prior bond 

03500000 59122 Front/Pine Linden Street Drainage - 150,000 150,000 proceeds) 

03500000 59126 Clemson Pond Cleaning & lnsp. - 500,000 500,000 CIP pg.29 (from prior bond proceeds) 

03500000 59127 WWTP Effluent Flume Repair - 245,000 245,000 CIP pg.33 (from prior bond proceeds) 
03500000 59045 SEIU 1984 Collective Bargaining TBD TBD SEIU 1984 CBA 

School Street Area Reconstruction 2,603,800 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 
Webster Ave Pump Station 213,300 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 

Total Warrant Artlcles/Borrowlnn - 2,817,100 - 895,000 895,000 (1,922,100) -68.2% - (895,000) 

Total Sewer Fund with WAR 6i153,767 1013071530 313201270 910471155 91042i727 1112641804) -12.3% 810741074 19681653) 

Page 8 of 8 



,;--. 

/••/'_. I 

PETITION TO THE EXETER SELECT BOARD TO INSERT A WARRANT ARTICLE CB 
On the petition of Gerry Hamel and other registered voters of the town of Exeter, NH to see if the town shall vote: 

· To discontinue the community Revitalization Tax Incentive Program (RSA 79E) adopted by the Town of Exeter 
in March of 2014. The program was used to give tax incentives to owners and investors in certain districts to 
spur revitalization of property. 
With property values more than doubling in the past ten years and the lack of needing incentives to renovate. we 
feel the incentive program should be discontinued so that the taxes on all future projects can be utilized by the 
town and the citizens instead of investors. 

NAME (PLEASE PRINT) SIGNATURE ADDRESS 

1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 ,l:J-e.,,,-



PETITION TO THE EXETER SELECT BOARD TO INSERT A WARRANT ARTICLE 

We, the undersigned registered voters of the Town of Exeter request the following article be inserted 
into the Town Warrant for Town Meeting: 

-to 
By petition of Karishma Manzur and others, Shall the Town voteieirect the Exeter Select Board, our 
Governor, and State elected representatives to disclose and divest au town and state pension funds 
and withdraw investments from weapons manufacturers that are profiting from gun violence? 

Everyyeat. gun violence kills more than 40,000 people in America and wounds twice as many. Injury 
from firearms is now the leading cause of death for children and teens in America, Gun violence is 
costing our nation over $557 billion in health care treatments and lost economic opportunity. The 
lost human potential cannot be measured. PYt simply, America cannot afford gun violence. 

As citizens, we want to make the world safer for everyone, especiallY children. 

The record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal 
representatives and the Governor of New Hampshire, 

NAME (PLEASE PRINT) SIGNATURE ADDRESS 

1 A-\ i OOQ l!c(h- b Winden".er-e 
2 A leytl\l\a~v (,{ac,h , Wi·V\ de 1/V\ e tl'e_, 

3 Kft~JSHMA MlrN~ h w1N1>wm 

4 

" f(\~n Pl. 'KO 
5 

l..ouu~ 

6 
1 

7 
1-. 

8 l3,~r/, -.-. 

✓ 

/ 
./ 

#30S-

'~f✓ 
/ 
/ 



. ·• PETITION TO THE EXETER SELECT BOARD TO INSERT A WARRANT ARTICLE @) 
We, the undersigned registered voters of the Town of Exeter request the following article be insertea 
into the Town Warrant for Town Meeting: 

By petition of Karishma Manzur and others, Shall the Town vote to call upon our Governor and State 
and Federal elected representatives to conserve and maintain New Hampshire's public natural 
resources for the benefit of this and future generations? 

As citizens. we recognize the fundamental right of people, plants, and animals to have clean air. 
pure wate~ and a healthy environment, We urge our State and Federal governments to ensure that 
our beautiful state continues to have a clean, health~ and sustainable environment upon which we 
au rely. 

Iba record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal 
representatives and the Governor of New Hampshire, 

NAME (PLEASE PRINT) SIGNATURE ADDRESS 

1 Al EYAIV~Etl KDCfi ~ £ Vl½UVJ~Llt 

2 K~1SliMA M~NW~ ~ Wt NJ>~I\At?b 

3 A\\ b Ninderner-e 

4 '°1\ C.,,/ 

5 

6 

7 
~~tte.T S-: s,CV~ bi,f,c~(, 

8 
~~ l~~ lf'-{ R.."-~.S', &~ ~}\~ 

9 11 114,1r1e1- W,,k R 

/ 

t/ 
f✓ 

.W.J oS 

./ 

/ 



• 

PETITION TO THE EXETER SELECT BOARD TO INSERT A WARRANT ARTICLE 

We, the undersigned registered voters of the Town of Exeter request the following article be inserted into 
the Town Warrant for Town Meeting: 

By petition of Karishma Manzur and others. Shall the Town vote to authorize and direct the Exeter Select 
Board, our Governor, and state and Federal elected representatives to support a $5,000 limit on 
contributions to political action committees (PACs) and super PACs that spend money to support or 
defeat candidates for office in New Hampshire? 

Democracy means that we elect our political Leaders. and they represent us. As citizens. we are 
concerned that corporations and billionaires use money to make our elected officials do what they want, 
and most ordinary Americans do not have that power. 

The record of the vote approying this article shall he sent to Exeter's State and Federal representatives 
and the Governor of New Hampshire, 

NAME (PLEASE PRINT) SIGNATURE ADDRESS 

1 Al t>-A wJ,tu_ v(DCH ~ { ~I lv'j)E° fat R£ 

2 ~A~\S~MF\ MANW(l.. (p WlNl>~~E 

3 
A-H Qna ~-l\Qn b N ·, ~ 

4 

5 

6 . ,~ 
7 

fnt.~ -
8 //wJe(q~ ft1o s-, I<)~ Dt. r~ 6l 

9 
I ir .~}" J-.! ti ;c-~ . '(} C~Mil 5 . fr 

10 
.Y~,Pl~ £...~~ 44 Ri_~....)..,. s~ ""~J 

ti 

✓ 

✓ 

t)~ 

✓ 

✓ 



, .. 

PETITION TO THE EXETER SELECT BOARD TO INSERT A WARRANT ARTICLE 

We, the undersigned registered voters of the Town of Exeter requestthe following article be inserted 
into the Town Warrant for Town Meeting: 

By petition of Karishma Manzur and others, Shall the Town vote to call upon our federal elected 
representatives to investigate the massive fraud and waste in the us Department of Defense. cut 
the vast $800 bilUon defense budget, and use taxpayer funds to help ordinary Americans? 

While over 46 million Americans are struggling with hunger, billions of dollars will go to a few giant 
defense contractors that overcharge the us government and make enormous profits for their CEOs 
and shareholders. Ibis is disgraceful. As citizens, we want our tax funds to help ordinary 
Americans, 

The record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal 
representatives and the Governor of New Hampshire, 

NAME (PLEASE PRINTI SIGNATURE ADDRESS 

1 Al c)'A tv..bE ~ }.(oitt ~ t v,fV}~/f/lcRE 

2 )lA-f2.lSHMf.\ MPr~W (o V\IINbt'"M~t' 

3 
ttr ro ~-V\o Co Ninde~ 

4 Qt 
5 

6 

7 R,lv· tr-blo .,J t 7 
8 

~c!.pfi&,...J- w,ec..v~Sr~~ t-.~ 

9 ff iter,6,(j" s-. fl\o .it- !fv.JxµS 5" ( w 1z,ff(t Pre ;>,,,.,~rtr£r4-

j 

j 

✓ 
J) ~3DS""° 

i,/ J 

✓ 

I ✓ 

✓ 



... 

PETITION TO THE EXETER SELECT BOARD TO INSERT A WARRANT ARTICLE 

We, the undersigned registered voters of the Town of Exeter request the following article be inserted 
into the Town Warrant for Town Meeting: 

By _petition of Karfshma Manzur and others, Shall the Town vote to call upon our Federal elected 
representatives to use the us government's considerable influence to (l) support the safety and 
right to life of all people living in Israel and Palestine, (2) enforce u.s, taws prohibiting weapons 
sales to countries that violate human rights, and (3) ensure the safe delivery of food and medical 
supplies to the people in Gaza? 

While many Americans struggle to live from paycheck to paycheck, many are homemss, children 
are going hungry, elderly people are unable to afford to heat their homes, and millions of Americans 
don't have health insurance, our government spent qver $80 million of New Hampshire tax money in 
2024 to buy weapons for Israel. 

We want our government to spend our money to help ordinary Americans, As citizens, we are also 
concerned that our money and weapons are being used to make Gaza the most dangerous place in 
the world to be a child, 

The record of the vote approving this article shall be sent to Exeter's State and Federal 
representatives and the Governor of New Hampshire. 

NAME (PLEASE PRINT) SIGNATURE ADDRESS 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

J 

J 

✓ 

✓ 



Electric Vehicle Charging 

Project Cost: $120,000 

CFI Grant: Provides 
80% of Project Costs 
$96,000 Grant, cost to Town 
$24,000 ($0.20/$1.00) 

30% Inflation Tax Credit 

2 ChargePoint Level II Chargers 
providing 4 Charging Ports 

5 YR Network Service 
5 Yr Warranty 

Article XX 

Flexible Pay Structure so we can control 
charging costs and payback which also 
helps us manage parking space usage 

Economic Incentive for Downtown 
Supports moving away from Fossil 
Fuel Emission Vehicles 



ADDITIONAL DETAILS 
Funding Facts 
If supported by voters, this project would only be funded if we are successful 
at obtaining a grant to cover 80% of the project costs. We intend to apply for 
a NH State Charging Fueling Infrastructure ( CFI) grant which would reimburse 
80% of the project cost leaving the Town responsible for the remaining 20% or 
$24,000. The State used this project example in their application to receive 
the CFI Federal Funding, so we know the project qualifies and the State found 
value in it. 

ADA Compatibility 
The original proposed location was modified slightly to locate EV chargers at the 
Bow Street end of the lot. This will improve layout and ensure ADA compatibility. 

Return on Investment 
There are many factors that influence ROI. To estimate ROI we assumed 
a 10% utilization rate (2.5 hrs/day for each unit) with a $0.35/kWh with 
$0.50 use fee. 

• With CFI grant we would break even in year 2 and be cash flow positive in 
year 3. 

Parking Impact 

In addition to adding parking spots, we also plan to modify an existing island 
in the lot to add 2 additional spots. Therefore the 4 car charging system will 
only reduce parking by 2 spaces. The 2024 Downtown Parking and Pedestrian 
Study showed though the Water Street lot had high utilization during peak 
times, this section received the least use. The study also indicates there is 
parking availability for downtown users and wayfinding would greatly improve 
congestion. To reduce parking impact, we will modify an existing parking 
island to create 2 additional parking spaces. 

Enforcement 
Nearby communities have success deterring parking in EV charging spaces 
simply through added signage. Pay structures allow you to add fees for staying 
in an EV spot after your vehicle has fully charged, to ensure good turnover at the 
charging sites. 



Styrofoa1n Densifier Unit Article XX 

Project Cost: 
$80,000 F0AMCYCLE 

RecycleFoam 
Grant: 
$50,000, cost to 
Town $30,000 
( $0.38/$1.00) 

20'x8' Locking Container Densifier 

Electrical Site Prep & Hookup Training & Marketing 

Collection Bin 

Collection Bags 

BENEFITS * Savings as realized by Gilford NH for example , 

Heavier loads = Hauling Savings 
(1.5t heavier,$3,000+ /yr) 

Densified foam can be sold as a 
commodity ($500-700/ton*) 

Diverts from limited landfill space. Our 
landfills are quickly filling. We need to focus 
on diverting waste where possible. 
( 90:l compaction rate) 

• Residents will also avoid having to 
• purchase blue bags for foam disposal 



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 
What does the purchase include? 
A self contained SY-stem: The price includes a container box with the densifier unit and 
space to store loose styrofoam before processing. It also includes a drop bin and 
collection bag inserts for residents to deposit their styrofoam. Densified styrofoam can be 
stored on pallets in the elements until it is sold without harming its value. There is sufficient 
room at the transfer station for the unit, the drop box and the densified foam. 

Why spend money on this unit? 
Turning an exP-ense into a source of income: We currently pay to dispose of styrofoam as 
part of our $3.9M annual municipal solid waste expense. Removing bulky items from our 
bins means a single trip can fit more waste. This results in a hauling savings. This unit also 
converts styrofoam into densified foam product that we can sell. Proceeds will help offset 
some of our solid waste costs. In addition, we could accept styrofoam from other towns, 
increasing the amount of densified styrofoam we can sell, further increasing our income. 
The Turnkey landfill is predicted to meet capacity in 2037. Much like recycling and 
composting, removing unnecessary bulky waste like styrofoam is a key step to extend the 
lifespan of our landfills. 

Will we need more staff to run the program? 
We control the amount we acceP-t Based on Gilford NH's program, existing DPW staff 
could cover periodically running the styrofoam densifier to manage Exeter's styrofoam 
needs. Gilford has experienced strong demand from neighboring towns wanting to drop 
off foam. We have the ability to control the amount of foam accepted from other towns to 
ensure we do not exceed existing staff capacity. 

Where does the densified styrofoam go? 
The densified foam called ingots is sold to companies that produce products such as rigid 
foam insulation, picture frames, trim boards and more. The manufacturer will assist with 
training and marketing if desired, at no cost. There is current market demand for the ingots 
and depending on whether you sell a full truck load, return from $500-700 per ton. Gilford & 
VT sell to Soprema Canada who makes insulation. Densified foam can be stored outside. 
Approx 10 pallets is the quantity at pickup 

What is acceptable? 
Units will accept clean #6 rigid polystyrene (aka styrofoam). Pipe insulation and packing 
peanuts can not be accepted. 

Doesn't this just promote more styrofoam use? 
The best approach is to reduce or eliminate styrofoam use all together but the reality is it is 
still being produced and landfilled. This is a measure that will divert this large bulky product 
from our landfills until the time when we move away from styrofoam use altogether. We can 
still exercise our purchase power to choose to refuse styrofoam. 



Tax Abatements, Veteran's Credits & Exemptionl 
I 



List for Select Board meeting January 21, 2025 

Eaulization Letter from DRA FYI only 
Final ratio for 2024 is 94. 7 

Solar Exemption 

Map/Lot/Unit 
94/1 
101-8-4 

Veteran Credit 
Map/Lot/Unit 
87-18-03 
18-4-4 

Abatements 
Map/Lot/Unit 

Location 
110 Court St 
7 John West Rd 

Location 
3 Pine Meadows Dr 
14 Oaklands Rd 

Location 

Amount 
1,000 

14,000 

Amount 
500 
500 

Amount 

Tax Year 
2025 ----------------, 
2025 - ~--- --1 

-~---·-- ·---1 
I 

Tax Year 
2025 ,__ ___________ _ 
2025, 

-----~ - - -~ 

- i 

Tax Year 

1 



Permits & Approvals 



Town Manager Report 



Select Board Committee Reports 



Correspondence 
.) 

t 



January 7, 2025 

Board of Selectmen 
Town of Exeter 
10 Front St. 
Exeter, NH 03833 

Re: Programming Advisory 

Dear Members of the Board: 

As part of our ongoing commitment to keep you and our customers informed about changes to Xfinity TV services, 

we wanted to update you that Comcast's right to continue carrying Fuse TV HD and FM HD expired at 8:59pm Eastern 

time on December 31, 2024. As a result, absent a renewal of the agreement, we are not current ly authorized to carry 

HD and FM HD as part of our lineup. In your area, the change will impact the following channel(s): 

• Fuse HD channel 1414 

• FM HD channel 1638 

We always work to reach deals that make sense for our customers. To date, however, Comcast has been unable to 

reach an agreement to continue to carry Fuse TV HD and FM HD content. 

Since we are not currently authorized to carry Fuse TV HD and FM HD programming, we have implemented a channel 

slate (advising of unavailability) on the channel and activated www.xfinity.com/programmingchanges to help keep 

our customers informed during this period. We will continue to provide updates to you and our customers as they 

become available. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions. For your convenience I can be reached at 

Bryan_Christiansen@comcast .com. 

Very truly yours, 

Jlryan Cfinstiansen 

Bryan Christiansen, Di rector 
Government & Regulatory Affairs 

RECEIVED 
JAN 1 3 2025 

Town Manager's Office 



Town 
of 

Exeter 

Bulletin #2: Be Heard on Right-to-Know Amendments 
1 message 

NHMA Government Affairs <governmentaffairs@nhmunicipal.org> 
To: Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov> 

New Hampshire Municipal Association 

Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov> 

Fri, Jan 17, 2025 at 1 :39 PM 

THE SERVICE AND ACTION ARM OF NEW HAMPSHIRE MUNICIPALITIES 

LEGISLATIVE 
BULLETIN 

·•_:,-..~ - ~~~ • -~· ·.~ ....... , ...... 1~·1 ·.~···~~'.' 

. . ' . . 
I • - 'r 

l •- • • ~ /' .- • • - • ... , 

Legislative Bulletin 2 2025 Session 

Live Bill Tracker 
Bill Hearings Schedule 

January 17, 2025 

Be Heard on Right-to-Know Amendments 

On Wednesday, January 22, beginning at 10 a.m. in LOB 206-208 the House Judiciary Committee will hold 
hearings on six bills modifying various sections of RSA 91-A, New Hampshire's Right-to-Know (RTK) Law. 

These proposals are mixed bag, but some should be of serious concern to municipalities related to cost and/ or 
administrative concerns. 

HB 66 (10:00 a.m. hearing) changes the definition of "citizen" to "person," allowing any individual, anywhere, to make 
an RTK request without ever setting foot in the State of New Hampshire, let alone in your town hall. Additionally, the 
bill mandates that records must be sent electronically or by mail - rather than simply being made available for public 
inspection - and allows for electronic requests with the requester choosing the method of delivery. The bill also 
mandates that preliminary drafts distributed to the public body be accessible to the public. NHMA opposes this bill 
because the use of "person" could lead to a flood of requests from non-residents, increasing administrative burdens and 
costs for municipalities. Another concern is that expanding the definition to "person" could aid in fraudulent activities 
and identity theft - including, but not limited to, AI "bots" posing as individuals to harvest personal information from 
municipal records. 

HB 74 (10:30 a.m.) defines the requester as a "citizen" of New Hampshire, or as press acting to inform NH residents. It 
also makes preliminary drafts accessible to the public. NHMA supports this bill because it conforms with the purpose of 
the law and would prevent an influx of out-of-state requests, ensuring RTK requests are manageable for municipalities. 



HB 80 (11:00 a.m.) replaces "not reasonably practicable" with "unavoidable" regarding reasons for board members not 
attending meetings in person and prevents members participating virtually from voting. NHMA opposes this bill 
because the stricter standard may discourage remote attendance, potentially increasing absenteeism. 

HB 265 (1:00 p.m.) requires the start and stop times of public meetings to be recorded in the minutes and the printed 
name and signature of the recording secretary. This is standard practice for many bodies and NHMA is neutral on this 
bill. 

HB 114 (1:30 p.m.) eliminates the collection of fees for compiling RTK requests and allows for liability in cases of 
wrongful disclosure. Removing fee collection reduces revenue while increasing expenses, leading to higher property 
taxes, and so NHMA opposes this bill. In addition, creating liability for wrongful disclosure adds another layer of risk 
(and cost) for municipalities. 

HB 313 (2:15 p.m.) amends non-public session rules regarding "reputation," allowing the subject of the session to be 
notified and request a public meeting. The vague text could hinder the ability to discuss sensitive issues in non-public 
sessions, which is why NHMA opposes this bill. 

HB 376 (3 :00 p.m.) exempts library information from disclosure. NHMA is neutral on this bill. 

To sum up, the general concerns with the opposed bills are: 

• Administrative Burdens and Costs: The increased volume of RTK requests, especially from non-residents, 
will strain municipal resources. 

• Resource Diversion: Without the ability to charge fees, municipalities will face higher expenses with no 
offsetting revenue. 

• Privacy and Security Risks: Allowing any person, regardless of ties to NH, to request records could lead to 
privacy concerns and security issues. 

• Mandated Response Methods: Requiring municipalities to send records in specific ways adds logistical 
challenges and potential for miscommunication. 

NHMA urges members to testify or sign in and submit optional testimony about the bills that will add costs and 
administrative burdens - as well as any bills they support. 

Key Bills Impacting Local Election Officials 

On Tuesday, January 21, beginning at 10:20 a.m. in LOB Room 306-308, the House Election Law Committee 
is holding hearings on several bills, including two of particular importance to local officials. 

HB 67 aims to transform last year's pilot program regarding Accessible Voting Systems into a permanent law, ensuring 
that the state provides accessible voting systems through agreements with municipalities. Under this bill, 
municipalities would continue to be responsible for programming costs. However, without HB 67, the pilot program 
would expire, leaving municipalities to shoulder the cost of acquiring voting tablets independently. NHMA supports 
this bill, recognizing its importance in promoting accessible voting while sharing the financial responsibilities between 
the state and municipalities. 

On the other hand, HB 340 proposes significant changes to the laws governing public employees and electioneering. 
This bill would repeal and reenact the existing section, making it substantially longer and more complex. NHMA 
opposes this bill due to concerns about the broad prohibitions and vague language, which may curtail speech and have 
unintended consequences due to unclear definitions of terms like "in an unbiased manner" and "expressly or primarily 
partisan" events. 

These bills are scheduled for executive sessions immediately following the day's hearings, so local officials should 
engage with the committee on these bills now, either by planning to testify on Tuesday or by signing in support or 
opposition through the House online testimony submission system, which also allows you to attach written 
testimony. 

HB 428 Threatens Local Building Code Authority 

On Wednesday, January 22, at 11:30 a.m. in LOB Room 306-308, the House Executive Departments and 
Administration Committee (ED&A) will hold a public hearing on HB 428. This bill would strip municipalities of their 
authority to adopt local building code amendments beyond what is included in the state building code. NHMA opposes 
this bill because of its impact on local control and governance and because it effectively dismantles legislative efforts 
from just last year. 



In 2024, legislation was passed that introduced new conditions for the adoption of local building codes. One of the 
most notable changes is the requirement that all local codes be submitted to the state Building Code Review Board for 
review and confirmation. Failure to comply renders the local codes unenforceable. This statute also clarified that 
municipalities cannot adopt amendments that are less stringent than or are intended to replace the most recent 
versions of the state building code. The new parameters established last year, which involved input from various 
stakeholders, should be given a chance to play out. 

The passage of SB 428 would have profound implications for municipalities. By overriding local control, the bill would 
nullify local ordinances that were thoughtfully adopted by voters to reflect the unique needs and preferences of 
individual communities. 

NHMA is urging members to actively oppose SB 428. Local officials and community members are encouraged to 
testify, submit written testimony, or sign in opposition to the bill through the House on line testimony submission 
system. 

The House ED&A Committee also is considering other building code-related bills on the same day, including HB 134, 
HB 244, and HB 96. See next week's Hearing Schedule for details. 

"Sanctuary City" Bill Would Create New Local Mandate 

On Wednesday, January 22, at 3:30 p.m. in LOB Room 202-204, the House Criminal Justice and Public 
Safety Committee will hear HB 511, a bill that would prohibit the adoption of sanctuary city policies by cities and 
towns. HB 511, which is materially similar an unsuccessful Senate bill introduced last year, creates a new mandate by 
requiring that "[a] law enforcement agency shall use best efforts to support the enforcement of federal immigration 
law." NHMA opposes this bill as a clear intrusion on local control, usurping the authority of municipalities and local 
police departments to make decisions about how staff and resources should be allocated. The bill proposes no funding 
from the state, and several provisions - including what using "best efforts" to comply means - would leave local 
officials guessing how to apply the law. 

Municipal officials are encouraged to testify to the importance of local control and oppose the bill as overriding both 
the decision-making authority of municipal police departments and of the residents they serve. If that is not possible, 
consider contacting the committee to express opposition to this bill. 

Two other bills related to local law enforcement participation in federal immigration enforcement , SB 62 and SB 71 , 
have hearings with Senate Judiciary Committee next Thursday, January 23, at 1:15 p.m. and 1:30 p.m., 
respectively, in SH Room 100. 

State Aid Grants for Wastewater Projects 

On Thursday, January 23, at 10:30 a.m. in LOB Room 210-211, the House Finance Committee will hold a 
public hearing on HB 97, an NHMA-supported bill which appropriates $15 million for each of the 2026 and 2027 fiscal 
years to fund the state share of eligible and completed wastewater projects under the State Aid Grant (SAG) program 
pursuant to RSA 486. Historically, the legislature has, by law, expressly authorized the SAG program to provide grants 
to municipalities of 20% to 30% of the principal and interest payments on completed and eligible environmental 
infrastructure projects. However, sufficient funding for the grants has not been included in the state budget in recent 
years - thus the need for a separate funding bill. Please support HB 97 by testifying or registering your position online . 

Standing Up For Retirement Funding 

Municipalities made their voices heard this Tuesday at the Senate Finance Committee public hearing on SB 20, which 
establishes a 7.5 percent state contribution toward local employer retirement costs for police, firefighters, and teachers 
participating in the New Hampshire Retirement System. (History lesson: Prior to the Great Recession the state 
provided a 35 percent subsidy for more than 30 years!) 

Senior leaders from Dover, Derry, and Nashua testified to the merits of this bill and pushed back clearly and 
respectfully on the misconception that restoring state aid toward public safety retirement contributions would simply 
encourage municipalities to spend more on other items, rather than use the savings to provide property tax relief. One 
municipal official pointed out that more than 75 percent of current NHRS employer contribution rates go toward the 
systems' unfunded pension liability - which the legislature helped create with "kick the can down the road" policy 
decisions in the 1980s and early 1990s. 

Several other municipalities sent letters or signed in remotely to support SB 20. 



With increasing pressure on state revenues, the chances of this bill making it out of the Senate are low. However, going 
on the record about the impact this funding will have on municipalities is always worthwhile. 

A bill with the same wording, HB 197, has been introduced. On Thursday, January 23, at 10 a.m. in LOB Room 
210-11, the House Finance Committee has a public hearing on this bill, so there's still time for municipalities to make 
the case for retirement funding by testifying at the hearing or signing in support the House on line testimony 
submission system. 

Getting Serious About Ambulance Reimbursement Rates 

The House Commerce and Consumer Affairs Committee held public hearings Wednesday on two polar-opposite 
bills dealing with ambulance reimbursements and billing. 

HB 316 would eliminate balance billing - i.e. billing a patient for the difference between the full cost of the service and 
the amount their insurance plan pays - and set a reimbursement rate for non-Medicare/Medicaid health insurance 
carriers at approximately 200% above the current Medicare reimbursement rate. This reimbursement rate was based 
on a study released this week by the NH Department of Insurance pursuant legislation enacted in 2024. The report is 
available here. 

NHMA opposes this bill because in many cases the proposed rates are much lower than the actual cost of providing 
services, which, coupled with the elimination of balance billing, would put significant financial strain on municipal-run 
ambulance services. 

HB 185, which NHMA supports, mandates that insurance carriers pay the rate set by the ambulance provider in full if 
no negotiated agreement exists. This bill is viewed as more favorable for municipalities, encouraging insurers to 
negotiate equitable reimbursement rates and, if no agreement is reached, ensuring municipalities receive full payment 
for services rendered. HB 185 is unlikely to pass without further compromise. 

These bills are set for further discussion in a future subcommittee/work session. Now is a great time to reach out to 
committee members regarding these bills. With related legislation anticipated from the Senate, input from local 
officials could be pivotal in shaping future reimbursement policies. 

Municipal ambulance services are essential services and not profit-driven; thus, appropriate reimbursement rates are 
crucial for their sustainability. The elimination of balanced billing and inadequate reimbursement rates could 
negatively impact town and city budgets. 

The Elephant in the Room: The State Budget, Part II 

The Legislative Budget Assistant (LBA) and his team gave briefings to the House and Senate finance committees this 
week - and the news was not good. According to the LBA, state government is on track to end the current fiscal year 
with a deficit for the first time in more than a decade. The projected deficit of approximately $20 million, which would 
be more than offset by a surplus in the first year of the two-year budget cycle, will be top of mind when the governor's 
budget goes the legislature in mid-February. 

"We will certainly not be looking to pass additional costs to localities, but they have to live within their means as well," 
said Governor Kelly Ayotte when asked about the budget following Wednesday's Executive Council meeting. 

Stay tuned ... 

Update: Waiting For More Bill Text 

Due to the late start to the session coupled with the volume of proposals filed, we are still waiting to see the actual 
language on close to 200 LSR tiles that we are monitoring. As the text of these bills becomes available, the NHMA 
Advocacy Team reviews each proposal and determines whether to support, oppose, or remain neutral on a bill based on 
our member approved 2025-2026 Legislative Policies and Principles. 

Several dozen bills were dropped off our list once the text became available and we saw that they had no actual impact 
on municipal operations, but that still leaves around 400 legislative proposals that we are tracking. 

The next House session isn't scheduled until Thursday, Feb. 6, so the-public hearings will be coming fast and furious 
over the next two weeks. 

Visit our online Bill Tracker page to learn more and feel free to subscribe to weekly or daily updates on subjects and 
bills of interest. 



Reminder: Sharing is Caring ... About Good Public Policy! 

If you know of anyone who may benefit from the NHMA Legislative Bulletin feel free to pass this email along and 
encourage them to sign up! 

Members can subscribe to the Bulletin through our member portal at: https://nhmunicipal. 
weblinkconnect.com/portal 

Once you are logged in, click "edit this profile" and "newsletter management." You can sign up for the Legislative 
Bulletin, Newslink, and Town & City magazine in one place! (If you are having trouble logging into your account, 
fo llow these steps.) 

Nonmembers can email info@nhmuniciapl.org to be added to our email list for the Legislative Bulletin. 

NHMA Events Calendar 
2024 Final Legislative Bulletin 

Editorial Staff: 
Margaret M.L. Byrnes, Executive Director 

Marty Karlon, Editor in Chief, Policy & Research Analyst 
Sarah Burke Cohen, Legislative Advocate 

Brodie Deshaies, Legislative Advocate 

Layout & Communications: 
Miranda Augustine, Communications Coordinator 

New Hampshire Municipal Association 
25 Triangle Park Drive 
Concord, NH 03301 
Tel: 603.224.7447 

Email: governmentaffairs@nhmunicipal.org 
Website: www.nhmunicipal.org 



1 /17 /25, 3:07 PM Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Fwd: Proposed 20 Amendment For SB 

Niko Papakonstantis <npapakonstantis@exetemh.gov> 
To: Russ Dean <rdean@exetemh.gov>, Melissa Roy <mroy@exeternh.gov> 

-- Forwarded message --
From: Ryan O'Brien <ryan@functionalart.us> 
Date: Tue, Jan 14, 2025 at 4:10 PM 
Subject: Proposed 20 Amendment For SB 
To: <selectboard@exetemh.gov> 

Tue, Jan 14, 2025 at 4:36 PM 

CC: Barbara McEvoy <bmcevoy@exeternh.gov>, <dsharples@exetemh.gov>, linda.haskins@leg.state.nh.us <Linda. Haskins@leg.state.nh.us> 

Dear Exeter Select Board, 

Please see my attached email regarding a Zoning Ordinance Amendment Warrant Article. It has come to my 
attention I missed the 20 Amendment by Petition date which is different from all other by petition dates which is why 
I would like the Board(s) to consider submitting this Amendment directly. 

I would like to present this Warrant Article Amendment to the board at the next meeting on Jan 20th. 

Ryan O'Brien 
Functional Art Solutions, LLC 
ryan@functionalart.us 
603-477-9968 

.,, ZO_AmendmenL4BOS_20250114.pdf 
LC 316K 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=dcec2506f9&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f: 1821261778048881292&simpl=msg-f: 182126177804888129... 1 /1 



Date: January 14, 2025 

Re: Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

Dear Exeter Select Board, 

Due to an oversight on my behalf it appears I have missed the deadline for a Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment Warrant Article by petition for this year's vote. To show support for 
this proposed amendment, I sent an email poll to the Jady Hill Community distribution list 
and received 25+ replies in support of this petition. I can supplie the list should you 
request them. I live in the Jady Hill Neighborhood and am actively opposing the Phase 1 
development at the end of Haven Lane for 76 Portsmouth Ave. I am not opposed to 
Phase 2 since it is a completely different scenario. 

It was always my intention to have a town board champion this proposed amendment. So 
I am appealing to the good graces of this Board to do so. Aside from the emotion of 
starring out your window at a HUGE structure, having a large structure overshadowing 
your home and yard for long periods of the year poses real burdens such as mold and an 
inability to grown things. See Exhibit A 

The purpose of this amendment is to reduce the likelihood of a wildly inappropriately tall 
structure being placed too close to a vastly smaller home. If you live in a residential zone 
with a maximum height limit of 25 feet (like the Jady Hill Neighborhood), this amendment 
prevents a structure taller than 25 feet from being built within 100 feet of your property line. 
It does not prevent a structure less than 25 feet high within 100 feet of your property line. 

The proposed Exeter Zoning Ordinance Amendment is as follows: 

Add a new note 21 under Section 4.4 Schedule Ill Notes with the following text: 

"No structure within 100 feet of a residential zone should exceed the maximum 
allowed height of that residential zone. This article shall supersede all special 
exceptions and variances. In the event of a conflict between zones, the shortest 
maximum height allowed shall be followed." 

Under Section 4.4 Schedule Ill add note ". 21 11 under the heading District ~ 
Maximum ~ Height. 

Under Section 4.3 Schedule II add note", 22" under the heading Maximum Height. 

Under Section 4.3 Schedule II Notes add a new note 22 which states "See Section 
Ill Notes number 21 for height restrictions". 

I examined the allowed zoning heights throughout town in conjunction with the Zoning 
Ordinance Map, and did some rough measurements using Google Earth. Most lots, where 
large structures are allowed, are sufficiently large enough to build large away from homes 
and smaller close to them, such as the C2, C3, CT, I, & H zones. The biggest impact to 
existing heights would be MUND heights along the peripheral of C1 districts and for the 
most part this would be restricted to 35 ft which is the default height in C1. I believe this 
amendment will help protect home owners throughout Exeter from the extreme case 
scenarios of large structures being placed too close to them. 



I include the "This article shall supersede ... " part because I believe there is no need to ever 
allow a height variance as that would negate the purpose of this amendment, because I 
don't want current or future sections to override this , and because things can always 
change at town vote. 

Thank you for your consideration of championing this amendment and I look forward to 
discussing it with you at the next BOS meeting on January 20th

• 

Ryan O'Brien 
20 Haven Lane 

cc: Planning Board 
Zoning Board 
Dave Sharples 

Exhibit A - MUND Height / Setback vs R3 Height / Setback 
Inappropriate Scale, Setback, & Sun Shadowing 

100 rt 

Cape will be partially to corn1>kltely shadow,id by th<i MUND stn,cture 
from Sep 21st to Dec 21st. and completely to partially shadow,id from 

Dec 21st to Mar 21st. 

; ~~/•~. ~~ • ~ f~~ 
I ,,_{£ ~t' ~---~'"" -j:t-, 
~ ••,i.c,;,_ 
I = ~, 
i~ 
:r••••·••·"·,~•·•• ,--
' . 
[• 

r 
751'1 

MUNO Allowed 50 ft High 
Bldg wl 20 ft setback t 

Lot 
Linc 

50ft 

Existing 20 ft High 
Cape w/ 25 ft setback 

100 rt 



Review Board _Calendar 




